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In fiscal 2007, AAR surpassed
$1 billion in sales.

This is an important milestone. Coupled with record earnings and strong growth
across all four of our operating segments, it's evidence of our intense, successful
[ocus on innovation and execution. It validates our sirategy to build a strong,
diversihied, trend-aligned business and, most important, demonstrates AAR’s
dedication to making a real contribution 1o our customers’ success.

So we've reached a billion. There’s no pause, no rest.
Our focus is on beyond.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31 _IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA
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TG OUR EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND STOCKHQLDERS,

Fiscal 2007 was

a great year for AAR.

We achieved record sales and earnings while
positioning the Company for the future.

We made numerous investments to support our robust organic
growth and completed two acquisitions that expand and deepen our
capabilities. We made moves to strengthen our senior leadership
team and continued to invest in our people.

Our markets are ripe with opportunity, and our unigue portfolio of
products and services, combined with our close-to-the-customer
business model, places us in a strong competitive position.

Following are select financial highlights {rom fiscal 2007:
—20% sales growth

— 66% increase in income from continuing operations

— Record net income of $58.7 million

We surpassed $1 billion in sales, achieved a 5.5 percent afier-tax
margin, saw operating margins imaprove 160 basis points to 9 percent
and lowered SG&A as a percentage of sales to just below 10 percent.

Sales to our commercial customers grew 24 percent driven by
supply chain programs, increased MRO activities and momentum
in our Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment. The U.S. domestic
airline industry’s financial results are improving and many of our
iniernational airline customers are growing — both contributing
to a2 more favorable environment for the products and services
that we provide.

Sales to defense customers increased 14 percent during the year
and represent 36 percent of consolidated revenues. We continue
to expand our mobility sysiems capability to support the warfighter
and our supply chain solutions for “behind-the-scenes” logistics
support. The U.S. Department of Delense {(DoD) also presents
numerous opportunities for AAR's MRO businesses.

Segment Highlights

Our Aviation Supply Chain business remained strong. We benefited
from an expansion of our global parts business and new programs,

including one to support U.S. Army ground vehicles. We are looking

to more fully integrate our supply chain capability into our customers'
operations, relieving them of this non-core, yet essential, activity.
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In our Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment, we increased
our customer base, ramped up operations at our Indianapolis MRO
facitity and expanded our regional maintenance capabilities. Resulis
at our Oklahoma City MRO and Landing Gear Services businesses
were strong, The Indianapolis operation has grown {rom a start-up
in 2004 to one of the premier MRO facilities in the U.S. today.
We are doing an excellent job earning our customers’ confidence
and are focused on improving profitability. Based on total man-hours
performed in 2006, AAR now ranks among the 10p ten MRO
providers in the world. In January 2007, we acquired the assets
of Reebaire Aircraft, Inc., a move that more than doubled our
MRO capacity for regional aircraft.

In our Structures and Systerns segmennt, we continued to experience
higher demand for specialized mobility products that support the
maovement of troops and supplies into theaters of aperation and
sustain in-theater activity. We are keeping pace with changing
requirements and, in April 2007, acquired Brown International,
adding sophisticated systems integration capabilities. The Brown
acquisition establishes an AAR presence in Hunisville, Alabama,
strategically near the Redstone Arsenal, an increasingly important
army installation that is growing as a result of the DoD's Base
Realignment and Closure (BRAC) Act and is home 1o the U.S.
Army’s strategic aviation and missile commands and major civilian
contractors. With this acquisition, we are taking our services
deeper into theaters of operation, inctuding Iraq and Kuwait.
This work includes uparmoring ground vehicles to provide better
protection for soldiers in harm’s way. Additionally, we are developing
new services for the sustainment of equipment aging {rom harsh
environments and higher operaticnal tempos. By offering a wider
range of integrated solutions, we are positioning the Company as
a full-service provider to the defense market.

AAR has established a leadership position in the design and
manufacture of cargo systems for military transport aircraft and we
are currently developing a system for the next-generation Airbus
A400M. We opened a new 200,000-square-foot manulacturing
facility to build these and other products as we look to capitalize on
the tobust build cycles underway in commercial and defense markets.




David P. Storch
Chairman and
Chief Executive Offieey
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Timothy ). Romenesko
Prisident and
Chicf Operating Officer

“l am committed to strengthening AAR’s position

in strategic, high-growth markets and advancing

AAR’s culture of innovation and execution.”

— David I* Storch
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“I will continue to invest in our people and capabilities while bringing
a razor-sharp focus on operational excellence and profitability.”

— Timothy ], Romenesko

Qur Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment benefits from AAR’s global
presence in the commercial aviation market. We leveraged our
long-standing relationships in the Asian marketplace and, working
with a joint venture partner, acquired 18 Boeing 737-400s in the
first quarter of fiscal 2008. These aircraft are operated by MAS,

a leading airline in the region. We were successful because of our
ability to provide certainty of closure, our knowledge of the aircraft
and our ability to move quickly. Our sales and leasing activity also
serves as a portal for AAR’s supply chain and MRO businesses.

Our People

Creating a dynamic work environment and developing our
employees remain top priorities. We continue to invest in facilities
and training 1o provide our people with the tools they need to be the
best they can be. We are very proud that for the third consecutive
year, 100 percent of AAR’s eligible aviation maintenance technicians
(AMT) received FAA Diamond Awards for meeting or exceeding
FAA training requirements, earning AAR special recognition from
the FAA. We want to extend our persenal congratulations to the
1,279 AMTs who earned this prestigious recognition.

We made a number of moves to strengthen cur senior leadership
team, beginning the new fiscal year with Tim Romenesko as AAR’s
new President and Chief Operating Officer. Tim has a deep
understanding of our operations and culture, having joined AAR
in 1981 and served as our CFO since 1994, Tim was also elected to
AAR’s Board of Directors. Additionally, we promoted Rick Poulion
to Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. Rick has more than

15 years of financial and leadership experience, including senior
executive-level positions with UAL Corp. and United Airlines.

Subsequent to year-end, Terry Stinson, an industry veieran with
outstanding credentials, joined AAR to head up our Structures and
Systems segment. Terry previously served as Chairman and CEQ
of Bell Helicopter Textron Inc., a leading manufacturer of vertical
lift aircraft, and as President and CEO of Hamilton Standard,

a division of United Technologies.

AARCORP.COM

Looking Forward

As we look to the future, we have several strategic and tactical
initiatives underway. We expect L0 grow our revenues at a raie
faster than the industry growth rate by capturing new supply
chain programs, expanding our capabilities for defense customers,
leveraging our position in support of the growing regional aircraft
fleet, increasing sales in the rapidly expanding Asian market and
complementing our organic growth with acquisitions.

We look to improve our margins by leveraging our cost structure,
increasing our efficiency through lean initiatives and integrating more
higher-margin engineering content into our products and services.

Qur vision is to build upon AAR’s solid repuzation as a provider of
producis and services by moving further “upstream” in our customers
operations — forging stronger and more strategic partnerships
and becoming an integral part of our customers’ success.

)

As we sit here in the middle of August putting the finishing
touches on this letter, there is turbulence in the world’s financial
markets. We are monitoring the situation very closely for its
effects on our cusiomers, markets and business. Since the
beginning of the decade we have significantly strengthened our
balance sheet and improved our liquidity, putting us in a strong
position to weather this period of uncertainty.

In Closing

We are grateful 10 the many people who contributed to AAR’s
successful fiscal 2007. We thank our partners, customers and
stockholders for their confidence and support. We value the
contributions of our Boatd of Direciors and appreciate their active
engagement and sage counsel. We wish to thank our 4,000 fellow
employees for their energy, enthusiasm and dedication to excellence
and are proud of the work they’re doing to build strong, enduring
relatienships with our customers. It's the people of AAR that
make things happen,

With one billion dollars as our new baseline, we look forward to
taking AAR to new heights in fiscal 2008 and beyond.

Sincerely,

ﬁm P St
David P. Storch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Timothy J. Romenesko
President and Chief Operating Officer

August 17, 2007




Stackholder Return Performance Graph
The following graph compares the five-year cumulative total stockhotder retum (including reinvestment of dividends) ot the Company,
the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 600 Aerospace/Defense Index.

1
Comparison of Cumulative Five-Year Tnte:l Return'

May 02 ' May 06 May 07

INDEX May 02 May 05 May 06 May 07
$140.61 $211.09 $284.90

[ AAR CORP. $100.00
23 S&P 500 Index 100.00

Wl 5&P 600 Aerospace & Defense 1&0.00

| Source: Stancard & Poor's

'Assumes $100 invested on June 1, 2002, and reinvestment of dividends in the Company’s Carmmen Stock, the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 600 Aerospace/
Defense Index.

The S&P Index is comprised of domestic industry leaders in four major seclors: Industrials, Financials, Utilities and Transportation, and serves as a broad
indicator af the performance of the U.S. equity market. The S&P 600 Aerospace/Defense Index is comarised of small cap companies engaged in aerospace/
detense business activities, including: AAR’CORP., Applied Signal Technology, Inc., Armor Holdings, Inc., Ceradyne Inc., Cubic Corp., Curtiss-Wright Corp.,
EDO Corp., Estarline Tecknolagies Corp., GenCorp Inc., Kaman Corp., Moog Inc., Teledyne Technologies Inc. and Triumph Group, Inc.

Sales by Segment, Market and Region

Sales by Segment Sales by Market Sales by Region

QO 51% Aviation Supply Chain Q 63% Commercial Aviation O 73% North America
@ 25% Structures and Systems @ 36% Defense Services @ 158% Europe

@ 20% Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul ® 1% Other @ 6% Asia/Pacific
O 4% Aircraft Sales and Leasing O 3% Other

AARCORP.COM 3
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* Beyond a billion. Beyond what we've done|
We're moving forward — doing what it takes

First and foremost, we work to stay close to our customers, always
and everywhere. The key to AAR’s success is our ability to understand

our customers’ needs, apply innovative thinking and execute consistently.

& AARCORP.COM



before. Beyond all expectations.
O continue to iImprove and grow profltably
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MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND OVERHAUL

Helping Southwest fly high

AAR is an increasingly valuable partner to one of the airline industry’s
best-performing carriers, providing heavy maintenance and winglet
installations at our state-of-the-art Indianapolis facility.

e e

Qur Indianapalis facilily's unigue
docking slructure enables two
complete crews to work simultane-
ously above and below the floor level
of the aircraft, minimizing the need
{or tadders and stands while
increasing both the safety and
speed of operatiens.

AAR's MRQ services are backed
by a proven AAR-developed salely
managgment system that leverages
best practices from the worid’s
most successiul air ¢arriers and the
FAA, and incfudes a companywide
airworthingss awareness program.

B AARCORP.COM



Southwest Airlines has a well-earned
reputation as an on-time, no frills, always-
there kind of carrier. With its quick-turn
approach to managing assets, Southwest
requires maximum efficiency and reliability
from its MRO providers. It gets exactly that
from AAR. > Selected in December 2006
to perform nose-to-tail heavy maintenance
services and winglet installations for

.5 Since January 2007, AAR has
i expanded its business for Southwest
e e omtineg dineat.nose
(ﬁﬂ]f‘miw aintenanceandionagirig
ofiwng|silinstaliations¥addingiiwol
(ore] maﬁmmm
i -

Southwest’s Boeing 737 aircraft, AAR quickly
established itself as a top performer. Qur
FAA Diamond Award-winning technical
personnel are one faclor; another is our
advanced MRO f{acility located at the
Indianapolis International Airport, where
we do the work. ? Our Indianapolis facility
is equipped to provide a wide range of
maintenance, repair and overhaul services.

winglets improve aircraft
performance by reducing wingtip
drag — vortices that develap at
the end of the wing dur:ng flight.
ARIsgwiripletinsiallati

aaimaaﬁmaﬁm
HGWEREMSSICHISY
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-

My
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Built from the ground up to support lean
principles, the facility has features like
two-level docking structures, in-hangar
production control and high-speed HVAC
recovery systems designed 1o engineer
waste out of the MRO process and maximize
productivity. More and more, airlines are
aligning themselves with AAR for cost-
effective MRO services.

S

—e—-AAR'S MRO,S8gMent provigas
nose-to-1ail support for our
customers, including everything
fram major structurat repairs to
‘the replaceméntiotia,singte part.
tn addition to indianapolis, we
operate MRO facilities in Cktahoma
City, Oklahoma, and Hot Springs,
Arkansas; Landing Gear Services

{acilities in Miami, Florida, and Kuala'-

Lumpur, Malaysia;-and an aircraft
storage and maintenance operation
in Roswell, New Mexico.

“AAR has met or exceeded our expectations from day one.
They’ve been an excellent fit for the way we like to run our airline.”

— Jim Sakol, Vice Presidenty Maintenance & Engincering, Southwest Airlines

AARCORP.COM 9
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AVIATION SUPPLY CHAIN

Supply chain support for the |
USAF’s eye in the sky

JSTARS is a mission-critical airborne ground surveillance capability
for U.S. defense forces. AAR Aviation Supply Chain plays a key role
in keeping it mission capable. !

To ensure uninterrupled supply
ang manage costs, AAR assists
Narthrop Grumman with the
Diminishing Manufacturing Sources JSTARS utitizes sophisticated
and Material Shartages {DMSMS) radar technology agoard specially
! modmed Boemg 707s to detect,
track ant targel hosnle
I3

[CoracomimandCosISk
[Becauseloflibelextentfaffa:rcrat
[modificationsMNogbroplGaimman)
mmmm@m

cost-cllective support has significantly contributed to making our supply
chain performance a benchmark for the industry.”

— Terry Jones, Supply Chain Program Manager, TSSR Rubins AFB Operations, Northrop Grumman Corporation

10 AARCORP.COM



The Joint Surveillance Target Attack Radar
System (JSTARS} is the most advanced
airborne ground surveillance and battle
maragement system in the world. Through
secure, real-lime tracking and communica-
tion of hostile-force ground position and
movement, JSTARS is a critical tool for
U.S. defense forces. » AAR partners with
Northrop Grumman under a performance-
based logistics (PBL) contract to manage

AAR moniters and maintains
inventory levels in the flyaway kits
for JSTARS jets to enable crews to
handle many maintenance and repair
functions while deployed. AAR hag
consistently exceeded the required
filt rates metri¢ since the beginning
of the program. )

AAR CORP. 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

the supply chain for JSTARS components. base in less than 45 days, well ahead of
Northrop Grumman is the prime Total contractual requirements. ¥ PBLs focus
Support Systems Responsibility (TSSR) on desired ouicomes, such as system
contractor to sustain the 17 JSTARS reliability, operational availability and
aircraflt and systems. > Awarded the reduced logistical footprint. By consistently
contract in September 2000, AAR was exceeding goal metrics for inventory

up and running quickty, interfacing with availability and accuracy as wetl as on-time
USAF, commercial and AAR IT software delivery, AAR has developed a reputation
systems and establishing a new, dedicated for excelling in PBLs and is now involved
program warehouse near the JSTARS home  in 10 PBL programs.

AAR's Aviation Supply Chain
segment provides comprehensive
supply chain solutions to help
commercial and defense customers
increase parts availability, minimize
downtime and reduce costs. AAR
manages everything from individual
spare parts to gnd-tg-end programs.
In 2ddition, we maintain an extensive
invenlory of new and refurbished
parts far virtually every aircraft type.

Qperational tempao is a key
measurement of equipment
deploymeni that drives demand

in a PBL program. The higher the
ops tempo, the greater the pressure
on the supply chain. AAR has
exceeded all outcome metrics in
the face of consistently high JSTARS
ops tempo, driven by U.S. counter-
terrorism operations overseas.

AARCORP.COM 11
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STRUCTURES AND SYSTEMS

Capability and responsiveness

for military mobility

AAR Mobility Systems delivers both quality and quantity as a supplier of shelter
units for Medium Tactical Vehicles manufactured by BAE Systems (formerly
Armor Holdings' Stewart & Stevenson).

AAR shelters contain benches, rack
systems and workstations 1o support
such field operations as electronics
and vehicle repair, supply manage-
ment and intelligence plarning. AAR
delivers the units with basic HVAC,
lighting and electrical infrastructure
in place.

AARCORP.COM

AAR engineers provided valug

in the beginning of the process,
developing a series of Engineering
Change Proposals {ECP} after
reviewing the government data
drawing package to improve
product performance and make

it more cost-effective to produce.

BAE Systems signed AAR to
provide logistics support for
repair and maintenance of
the FMTVs, once deployed.
AAR will manage logistics
and parts inventory out of a
warehousing facility located
near the Red River Army
Oepot in Texarkana, Texas.




The 2.5-1on M1079 shop van and M1087
expansible van are part of the Family of
Medium Tactical Vehicles (FMTV) designed
10 support mobile field operations for the

U.5. military. Specially designed shelter
units attached to the truck chassis are used
to provide environmentally protected work
space for a variety of activities rom mainte-
nance to intelligence planning funciions.

> AAR was awarded the contract 1o
manufacture the shelters in 2003 and
demand has escalated rapicly, more than
doubiing the original quantity. Now in
vear four of the contract, AAR has leveraged
lean processes and expanded its production
footprint to increase capacity, improving

on-time delivery and quality for the program.

> We see continued growth in demand for

AAR CORP. 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

the product over the next two years. To meet
that growth, we anticipate increasing the
delivery of systems from our current 24 per
month to 40 systems per month. Adding 1o
our manufacturing role in the program, BAE
Systems selected AAR in 2007 10 provide
logistics and inventory management support
for FMTV repair.

AAR's Structures and Systems
segment specializes in mobility
praducts, including custam pallets,
containers and shelters used by the
1).5. defense forces and their allies,
Other products include customized
in-aircraft cargo loading systems
and advanced compasite structures
for the aviation and transporiation
industries.

AAR's new manutacturing facility
in North Carelina is capable of
providing additional capacity and
flexibility to meet the growing
demand of the FMTV pragram.

Prad

“We have enjoyed a growing, mutually beneficial relationship with AAR
based on clear, honest communication and professional respect throughout
our organizations. The ultimate benefit of this has been to our customers.”

— Tammara Mailen, Vice Presicdent, Contracts and Supply Chain. BAE Systems Sealy

AARCORP.COM | 13
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AIRCRAFT SALES AND LEASING

A new relationship in Asia

Responsiveness, flexibility, global teamwork and aircraft expertise
were essential to conducting our largest aircraft transaction to date
and expanding AAR’s presence in a key Asian market.

auo s[iplwithEM BRR g
SUppoLISIAARIStoveraistialeqy,
@El';m@fﬁ]xg:-
f0row]i(STAS @l recenceyAtdeal
Gighiskscalefwiitinellagshiplcaricd
about maintaining i . oifaknajoisianinationienhances)
winning customer experience. :

AAR's Aircraft Sales and Leasing
segment comprises a team of
experts in the sourcing, purchasing
and remarketing of a broad range

of aircraft. They also provide
technical services, including air¢raft
evaluation, lease return condition
analysis, aircraft and engine records
audits, aircraft preparation and
storage, and asset management.

AARCORP.COM
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Penerbangan Malaysia Berhad (PMB) — ol weeks. » The oppoertunity fit perfectly were met in the transaction. » The market
a subsidiary of the Malaysian government with key AAR strengths — specialized for midlife aircraft is strong. New aircraft
and parent company of Malaysian Airlines  expertise in midlife, midsize aircraft, deliveries are falling short of orders while
(MAS) — tendered for sale 18 Boeing 737-  and extensive experience with airlines. global air traffic continues 1o grow. This, plus
400 aircraft in two lots of nine on April 30,  Waorking with this type of aircraft affords the high cost of capital, makes the purchase
2007. On May I, AAR was at PMB’s offices  us the opportunity to interface with our or leasing of midlife aircraft a better, more
in Malaysia with an offer to purchase all 18, other divisions to get maximum value flexible option for many carriers.

We completed the PMB transaction and throughout the life of the asset; our airline

leased the aircraft back to MAS in a matter  experience helped ensure that MAS's needs

—

LT 1

> N
XD MO DI I Y HID AN 11w
proce ) e

The PMB/MAS transaction
represented a strategic buy for
AAR, the first 18-aircraft purchase
in our history. Working with a joint
venture partner, we leveraged our
speciaiized knowledge of airgraft
and understanding of airline
requirements.

“Diesyplite [hfmi@ constraints and working [rom different localim]a
andiunzonc-Siliguransaction was completed successfully as a rggult

’ L L tll ‘. { l )I‘
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TAKING AAR FORWARD

Positioning AAR for the long term
in a changing global marketplace

AAR’s operations leadership team is a highly experienced group of industry veterans,
dedicated to delivering real, long-term customer value.

Jim Clark Tim Romencsko Rick Poulion Juhin johnson

Group Vice President, President and Vice President. Group Viee President,

Aviation Supply Chan Chief Operating Officer Chicf Financial Officer Arrcrudt Sales and Leasing
and Teeasurer

16 AARCORP.COM



Achieving one billion dollars in sales is the
result of foresight, solid execution and the

alignment of our products and services to
customer needs and high-growth markets.
We've reached an important milestone, but
more important is where we go from here.
» AAR has assembled a strong operations
leadership team with the vision and industry

Peter Chapman

Vice President and

Chiel Commerciat Officer

experience to take the company to the next
level. Their strong knowledge of our
customers’ industry and business dynamics
is a key aspect of our close-to-the-customer
philosophy that contributes significantly 1o
our ability to provide value. » As we enter
our next phase of growth, the team’s focus
is to ensure that AAR remains an innovator

Terry Stinson
Group Vice Presidem,
Struactures and Systems

AAR CORP. 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

in the aerospace and defense industry while
maintaining our focus on operational
execution, financial performance, integrity
and sccial responsibility. Our vision: to
position AAR for the long term in a changing
global marketplace and continuously improve
our ability 1o help customers meet the
challenges they face woday.

David Storch
Cluis s ad
Chiel Exveutive Olhcer

AARCORP.CCM 17
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AAR LEADERSHIP

Officers, Directors
and Committees

An accomplished and experienced leadership team dedicated
to integrity, fiscal responsibility, operational excellence, customer
satisfaction and generating shareholder value.

Corporate Olficers

David P Storch

Chairman und Chiel Exceative Olficer
Timothy |. Remeneska

President and Chiel Operating Officer

Michael K. Carr

Vice President, Tax

Perer K. Chapman

Viee President and Chief Commercial (Mficer
James ). Clark

Group Vice President, Aviation Supply Chain
Michacl *Mickey™ Cohen

Vice President, Operations and Engineering

Kevin M. Larson
Viee President, Chiel Information Officer

Richard J. Poulion

Vice President, Chiefl Financial Qfficer and Treasurer
David E. Prusiecki
Vice President, Delense Programs

Howard A, Pulsiler

Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Michacl [. Sharp

Vice President, Comroller and
Chicf Accounting Officer
Timuothy O. Skelly

Vice President, Human Resources

Terry D. Stinson
Group Vice President. Structures and Systems

18 | AARCORP.COM

Board ol Dircctors

Daviel P Storch
Chairman and Chicl Executive Ollicer,
AAR CORT,

Michacl R. Boyce

Chairman and Chief Exccuative Olficer,
PQ Corporation

Chairman and Chief Executive Oflicer,
Peak [nvestments

James G. Brocksmith, Jr.

Independent Business Consultant
Retired Deputy Chairnun
and Chief Operating Officer, KPMG LLP

Gerald F. Fitzgerald, [r.
Chairman and President,
Corerstone Banrcorp, Inc.

Chairman and President,
LaSalle Bancorp, Inc.

Genceral Ronald R. Fogleman,
USAF (Red )

President and Chief Operating Officer,
B Bar ) Cande Company

Chairman, Durangoe Group, LLC

James E. Goodwin

Independent Business Consuliani

Retired Chairman and Chiel Exceutive
Oflficer, UAL, Ine.

Patrick ]. Kelly
Chiefl Executive Olhcer,
Resource One

Munaging Director,
KMK & Associates, LLC

Timothy J. Romenesko

President and Chiel Operating Officer,
AAR CORP.

Marc ). Walfish
TFounder, Merit Capital Pariners

Ronald B. Woodard
Chairman of MagnaDrive, Ine.

Retired President of the Boeing
Commercial Airplane Group

Honrovary

Ira A. Eichner

Founder and
Chairman of ihe Board Emeritus

Board Committees

Audit

James E. Goodwin,
Chairmuan

James G. Brocksmith, Jr.
Gerald F. Fitzgerald, Jr.
Marc ], Walfish

Ronald B. Woaodard

Executive

David P. Storch,
Chairman

James E. Goodwin
Timothy ]. Romenesko

Mare ). Walfish

Compensation

James G. Brocksmith, Jr.,
Chutirman

Michael R. Boyee
Ronald R. Fogleman
Patrick ). Kelly

Ronald B. Waoodard

Nominating & Governance

Renald R. Fogleman,
Chairman

Michael R. Bovee
James E. Goodwin

Marc ). Walfish




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

X Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2007
or

a Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 1-6263

AAR CORP.

{Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 36-2334820
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer ldentification No.)
incorporation or organization)

One AAR Place, 1100 N, Wood Dale Road, Wood Dale, Illincis 60191
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (630) 227-2000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Tide of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
(Dollars in thousands)

General

»

AAR CORP. and its subsidiaries are referred to herein collectively as “AAR,” “Company,” “we,
us,” and “our” unless the context indicates otherwise. AAR was founded in 1951, organized in 1955 and
reincorporated in Delaware in 1966. We are a diversified provider of products and services to the
worldwide aviation and defense industries. We conduct our business activities primarily through six
principal operating subsidiaries: AAR Parts Trading, Inc., AAR Aircraft & Engine Sales & Leasing, Inc.,,
AAR Services, Inc.,, AAR Aircraft Services, Inc., AAR Manufacturing, Inc., and AAR International, Inc.
Our international business activities are conducted primarily through AAR International, Inc.
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We report our activities in four business segments: (i) Aviation Supply Chain, comprised primarily of
business activities conducted through AAR Parts Trading, Inc, AAR Services, Inc., AAR Allen
Services, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of AAR Parts Trading, Inc. and AAR Services, Inc., respectively,
and AAR International, Inc. (ii) Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul, comprised primarily of business
activities conducted through AAR Services, Inc., AAR Allen Services, Inc. and AAR Aircraft Services, Inc.
(iii) Structures and Systems, comprised primarily of business activities conducted through AAR
Manufacturing, Inc., and (iv) Aircraft Sales and Leasing, comprised of business activities primarily
conducted through AAR Aircraft & Engine Sales & Leasing, Inc.

Aviation Supply Chain

Activities in our Aviation Supply Chain segment include the purchase and sale of a wide variety of
new, overhauled and repaired engine and airframe parts and components for our airline and defense
customers. We also repair and overhaul a wide variety of avionics, electrical, electronic, fuel, hydraulic and
pneumatic components and instruments and a broad range of internal airframe components for the same
customer categories. We provide customized inventory supply and management programs and
performance-based iogistics programs for engine and airframe parts and components in support of airline
and defense customer’s maintenance activities. The types of services provided under these programs
include program and warchouse management, parts replenishment and parts and component repair and
overhaul. We are an authorized distributor for more than 125 leading aviation product manufacturers. In
addition, we sell and lease commercial jet engines. We acquire aviation parts and components for the
Aviation Supply Chain segment from domestic and foreign airlines, original equipment manufacturers,
independent aviation service companies and aircraft leasing companies. In the Aviation Supply Chain
segment, the majority of our sales are made pursuant to standard commercial purchase orders. In certain
inventory supply and management programs and performance-based logistics programs, we supply
products and services under agreements reflecting negotiated terms and conditions.

Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul

Activities in our Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment include airframe maintenance services
and the repair and overhaul of most types of landing gear for our airline and defense customers. We have a
long-term lease 1o occupy a portion of an airframe maintenance facility in Indianapolis, Indiana (the
Indianapolis Maintenance Center or IMC), which is owned by the Indianapolis Airport Authority (IAA).
We believe the IMC is one of the most efficient and state-of-the-art airframe maintenance facilities in the
world and our occupancy of the IMC significantly expands our maintenance and repair capacity and
capabilities. The IMC is comprised of 12 airframe maintenance bays, backshop space to support airframe
maintenance activities, warehouse and office space. At May 31, 2007, we occupied and were performing
maintenance activities in seven bays and occupied certain office space within the IMC. We have options for




three additional bays and additional office space under a lease which expires in December 2014, with a ten-
year renewal option. The lease agreement contains early termination rights for AAR and the 1AA, which
may be exercised in specified circumstances, In addition to the IMC, we operate an aircraft maintenance
facility located in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma providing airframe maintenance, modification, special
equipment installation, painting services and aircraft terminal services for various models of commercial,
defense, regional, business and general aviation aircraft. On January 12, 2007, we acquired substantially all
the assets of Reebaire Aircraft, Inc. (“Reebaire”), a regional airframe maintenance and repair overhaul
facility located in Hot Springs, Arkansas. This acquisition increases our regional MRO capacity in North
America. The purchase price was approximately $11,800 and was paid in cash. We also operate an aircraft
storage facility in Roswell, New Mexico. In this segment, we purchase replacement parts from original
equipment manufacturers and suppliers that are used in our maintenance, repair and overhaul operations.
We have ongoing arrangements with original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) that provide us access 1o
parts, repair manuals and service bulletins in support of parts manufactured by the OEM. Although the
terms of each arrangement vary, they typically are made on standard OEM terms as to duration, price and
delivery. When possible, we obtain replacement parts used in repair and overhaul activities from operating
units in our Aviation Supply Chain segment.

Structures and Systems

Activities in our Structures and Systems segment include the manufacture and repair of pallets and a
wide variety of containers and shelters in support of military and humanitarian tactical deployment
activities. On April 2, 2007, we acquired 100% of the shares of common stock of Brown International
Corporation (*Brown”), a privately held defense contractor that provides engineering, design,
manufacturing and systems integration services. The purchase price was approximately $26,700 and was
paid in cash. We design, manufacture and install in-plane cargo loading and handling systems for
commercial and military aircraft and helicopters. We also design and manufacture advanced composite
materials for commercial, business and military aircraft as well as advanced composite structures for the
transportation industry. During fiscal 2007, we decided to exit our non-core industrial turbine business
located in Frankfort, New York, and have treated it as a discontinued operation. In this segment, sales are
made to customers pursuant to standard commercial purchase orders and contracts. We purchase the raw
materials for this business, including aluminum sheets, extrusions and castings and other necessary
supplies, from a number of vendors.

Aireraft Sales and Leasing

Activities in our Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment include the sale or lease of used commercial jet
aircraft. Each sale or lease is negotiated as a separate agreement which includes term, price,
representations, warranties and lease return provisions. Leases have fixed terms; early termination by
either party is not permitted except in the event of a breach. In this segment, we purchase aircraft from
airlines and aircraft leasing companies for our own account or in partnership with strategic or financial
partners typically under joint venture agreements. At May 31, 2007, the total number of aircraft held in
these joint ventures was 12, We also directly own nine aircraft outside of the joint ventures. Within this
segment, we also provide advisory services which consist of assistance in remarketing aircraft, records
management and storage maintenance,

Raw Materials

We historically have been able to obtain raw materials and other items for our inventories for each of
our segments at competitive prices, terms and conditions from numerous sources, and we expect to be able
to continue to do so.



Terms of Sale

In the Aviation Supply Chain, Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul, and Structures and Systems
segments, we generally sell our products under standard 30-day terms. On occasion, certain customers
(principally foreign customers) will negotiate extended payment terms (60-90 days}. Except for customary
warranty provisions, customers do not have the right to return products nor do they have the right to
extended financing. In the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, we sell our products on a cash due at
delivery basis, standard 30-day terms or on an extended term basis and aircraft purchasers do not have the
right to return the aircraft. Qur contracts with the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors are
typically firm agreements to provide products and services at a fixed price and have a term of one year or
less, frequently subject to extension for one or more additional periods of one year at the option of the
U.S. Department of Defense.

Customers

For each of our reportable segments, we market and sell products and services primarily through our
own employees. In certain markets, we rely on foreign sales representatives to assist in the sale of our
products and services. The principal customers for our products and services in the Aviation Supply Chain
and Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segments are domestic and foreign commercial airlines, regional
and commuter airlines, business and general aviation operators, original equipment manufacturers, aircraft
leasing companies, domestic and foreign military organizations and independent aviation support
companies. In the Structures and Systems segment, our principal customers include domestic and foreign
military organizations, domestic and foreign commercial airlines, original equipment manufacturers, large
system providers and other industrial entities. The principal customers in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing
segment include domestic and foreign commercial airlines and aircraft finance and leasing companies.
Sales of aviation products and services to our airline customers are generally affected by such factors as the
number, type and average age of aircraft in service, the levels of aircraft utilization (e.g. frequency of
schedules), the number of airline operators and the level of sales of new and used aircraft. Sales to the U.S.
Department of Defense are subject to a number of factors, including the level of troop deployment
worldwide, competitive bidding, government funding and requirements generated by world events.

Licenses

We have 12 Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) licensed repair stations in the United States and
Europe. Of the 12 licensed FAA repair stations, six are also European Aviation Safety Agency (EASA)
licensed repair stations. Such licenses, which are ongoing in duration, are required in order for us to
perform authorized maintenance, repair and overhaul services for our customers and are subject to
revocation by the government for non-compliance with applicable reguiations. Of the 12 FAA ticensed
repair stations, four are in the Aviation Supply Chain segment, five are in the Maintenance, Repair and
Overhaul segment, and three are in the Structures and Systems segment. Of the six EASA licensed repair
stations, two are in the Aviation Supply Chain segment, three are in the Maintenance, Repair and
Overhaul segment and one is in the Structures and Systems segment. We believe that we possess all
licenses and certifications that are material to the conduct of our business.

Competition

Competition in our markets is based on quality, ability to provide a broad range of products and
services, speed of delivery and price. Competitors in both the Aviation Supply Chain and the Maintenance,
Repair and Overhaul segments include original equipment manufacturers, the service divisions of large
commercial airlines and other independent suppliers of parts and repair and overhaul services. Qur pallet,
container and shelter manufacturing activities in our Structures and Systems segment compete with several
large and small companies, and our cargo systems and composite structures competitors include a number




of divisions of large corporations and small companies. In our Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, we face
competition from financial institutions, syndicators, hedge funds, commercial and specialized leasing
companies and other entities that provide financing. Although certain of our competitors have
substantially greater financial and other resources than we do, in each of our four reportable segments we
believe that we have maintained a satisfactory competitive position through our responsiveness to
customer needs, our attention to quality and our unique combination of market expertise and technical
and financial capabilities.

Backlog

At May 31, 2007, backlog believed to be firm was approximately $319,700 compared to $243,200 at
May 31, 2006. Approximately $268,300 of this backlog is expected to be filled within the next 12 months.

Employees

At May 31, 2007, we employed approximately 3,900 persons worldwide. We also retain approximately
600 contract workers, the majority of which are located at our airframe maintenance facilities.

Sales to U.S. Department of Defense

Sales to the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors were $325,280 (30.7% of total sales),
$293,778 (33.2% of total sales), and $249,216 (33.7% of total sales) in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Because such sales are subject to competitive bidding and government funding, no assurance
can be given that such sales will continue at levels previously experienced. The majority of our government
contracts are for products and services used for ongoing military logistic support activities and are subject
to changes in defense spending. OQur government contracts are subject to termination at the election of the
government; in the event of such a termination we would be entitled to recover from the government all
allowable costs incurred by us through the date of termination.

Available Information

For additional information concerning our business segments, see Item 7, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Business Segment Information” in
Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Item 8, “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data”, below.

Our internet address is www.aarcorp.com. We make available free of charge through our web site our
annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as
soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish such material to
the SEC. Information contained on our web site is not a part of this report.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following is a description of some of the principal risks inherent in our business. The risks and
uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to us, or that we currently deem immaterial, could adversely impact our results of
operations or financial condition in the future.




We may be affected by factors that adversely affect the aviation industry.

As a provider of products and services to the aviation industry, we are greatly affected by the overall
economic condition of that industry. The aviation industry is historically cyclical. Early in calendar year
2001, the commercial aviation industry began to experience the negative effects of a worldwide economic
downturn. The events of September 11, 2001 exacerbated that condition, resulting in a significant decline
in air travel and reduced capacity by most of the major U.S.-based airlines. Since September 11, 2001, the
aviation industry has also been negatively affected by historically high fuel prices, the war on terrorism and
the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome, or SARS. As a result of these and other events,
certain customers filed for bankruptcy protection, including Air Canada, Aloha Airlines, Delta Air Lines,
Mesaba Airlines, Northwest Airlines, U.S. Airways, United Airlines and Varig.

Our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely impacted by the
following:

» continued historically high fuel costs;
+ future terrorist attacks and the ongoing war on terrorism;
e deterioration in the financial condition of our existing and potential customers;

* reductions in the need for, or the deferral of, aircraft maintenance and repair services and spare
parts support;

¢ retirement of older generation aircraft, resulting in lower prices for spare parts and services for
those aircraft;

¢ reductions in demand for used aircraft and engines; and
» future outbreaks of infectious diseases.

The economic and other factors affecting the aviation industry may have an adverse impact on our
results of operations and financial condition.

Our customers may not be able to meet their financial obligations to us, which would adversely affect our
Jinancial condition and results of operations.

A number of our existing and prospective worldwide airline customers continue to suffer from the
problems affecting the aviation industry, and some have filed for bankruptcy protection or are only
recently emerging from bankruptcy. As a result, certain of these customers continue to pose credit risks to
us. Our inability to collect receivables from one or more important customers could adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

The market value for our aviation products fluctuates.

We have used a number of assumptions when determining the recoverability of inventories and
aircraft and engines which are on lease or available for lease. These assumptions include historical sales
trends, current and expected usage trends, replacement values, current and expected lease rates, residual
values, future demand, and future cash flows. Principally as a result of the events of September 11, 2001
and its impact on the global airline industry’s financial condition, fleet size and aircraft utilization, we
recorded a significant charge for impaired inventories and engines during the second quarter of fiscal 2002
utilizing those assumptions. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 and the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we
recorded additional charges as a result of a further decline in market value for certain of these inventories,
aircraft and engines. Further reductions in demand for our inventories or declining market values, as well
as differences between actual results and the assumptions utilized by us when determining the
recoverability of our inventories, aircraft and engines, could result in additional impairment charges in




future periods, We can give no assurance that future impairment charges for our inventories, aircraft and
engines will not occur,

QOur government confracts may not continue at present sales levels, which may have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

Our sales to the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors were approximately $325,280 (30.7%
of consolidated sales) in fiscal year 2007. The majority of our government contracts are for aviation
products and services used for ongoing military logistic support activities and for products which support
the U.S. military’s deployment strategy. Qur contracts with the U.S. Department of Defense and its
contractors are typically firm agreements to provide products and services at a fixed price and have a term
of one year or less, frequently subject to extension for one or more additional periods of one year at the
option of the U.S. Department of Defense. Sales to the U.S. Department of Defense are subject to a
number of factors, including the level of troop deployment worldwide, competitive bidding, government
funding and requirements generated by world events, and therefore may not continue at levels previously
experienced, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We face risks of cost overruns and losses on fixed-price contracts.

We sell certain of our products and services under firm, fixed-price contracts providing for fixed prices
for the products and services, regardless of costs incurred by us. The cost of producing products or
providing services may be adversely affected by increases in the cost of labor, materials, fuel, overhead and
other unknown variants, including manufacturing and other operational inefficiencies and differences
between assumptions used by us to price a contract and actual results. Increased costs may result in cost
overruns and losses on such contracts which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

We may be unable to re-lease or sell currently leased aircraft and engines.

We purchase and lease aircraft and engines to our customers on an operating lease basis. Our ability
to re-lease or sell these assets on acceptable terms is subject to a number of factors which drive industry
capactity, including new aircraft deliveries, availability of used aircraft and engines in the marketplace,
competition, financial condition of our customers, overall health of the airline industry and general
economic conditions. Our inability to re-lease or sell aircraft and engines that are currently on lease could
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Significant issues may develop associated with the A400M Cargo system.

In June 2005, we announced that our Cargo Systems business was selected to provide cargo handling
systems for the new A400M Military Transport Aircraft (A400M). We are teaming with Pfalz
Flugzeugwerke GmbH (PFW) of Speyer, Germany on the program. We have incurred, and are expected to
continue to incur, significant development costs in connection with this program. Qur portion of revenue
to be generated from this program is expected to exceed $300,000 through fiscal 2015, based on sales
projections of the A400M. We expect to begin shipments under this program during the second half of
fiscal 2008. If the A400M experiences significant delivery delays or order cancellations, or if we fail to
develop the system according to contract specifications, then our operating results and financial condition
could be adversely affected.

The Indianapolis Maintenance Center success is dependent upon the hiring and retention of a large pool of skilled
aircraft mechanics.

The Indianapolis Maintenance Center is comprised of 12 airframe maintenance bays (10 of which are
available to us), as well as backshop, warehouse and office space. Revenues at the IMC fluctuate based on
the demand for maintenance which, in turn, is driven by the number of aircraft operating and potential
outsourcing of maintenance activities by airlines. Furthermore, we may not be able to hire and retain the




required amount of qualified licensed aircraft mechanics. As a result, we may not be able to execute our
operational and financial plan at the IMC, which could adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

We operate in a highly competitive industry, and competitive pressures may adversely affect us.

The aviation industry and the markets for our products and services are highly competitive, and we
face competition from a number of sources. Qur competitors include aircraft manufacturers, aircraft parts
manufacturers, airline and aircraft service companies, other companies providing maintenance, repair and
overhaul services, and other aircraft spare parts distributors and redistributors. Some of our competitors
have substantially greater financial and other resources than we have. We can give no assurance that
competitive pressures will not adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We are dependent upon continued availability of financing to manage our business and to execufe our business
strategy, and additional financing may not be available on terms acceptable to us.

Our ability to manage our business and to execute our business strategy is dependent, in part, on the
continuing availability of debt and equity capital. Access to the debt and equity capital markets may be
limited by various factors, including general economic conditions, the state of the aviation industry, our
financial performance and current credit ratings. Debt and equity capital may not continue to be available
to us on favorable terms, or at all. Our inability to obtain financing on favorable terms could adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our existing debt includes restrictive and financial covenants.

Certain of our loan agreements require us to comply with various restrictive covenants and some
contain financial covenants that require us to comply with specified financial ratios and tests. Our failure to
meet these covenants could result in default under these loan agreements and would result in a cross-
default under other loan agreements. In the event of a default and our inability to obtain a waiver of the
default, all amounts outstanding under loan agreements could be declared immediately due and payable.
Qur failure to comply with these covenants could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

We are subject to significant government regulation and may need to incur significant expenses to comply with
new or more stringent governmental regulation.

The aviation industry is highly regulated by the FAA in the United States and the equivalent
regulatory agencies in other countries. Before we sell any of our products that are to be installed in an
aircraft, such as engines, engine parts and components, and airframe and accessory parts and components,
they must meet certain standards of airworthiness established by the FAA or the equivalent regulatory
agencies in other countries. We also operate repair stations that are licensed by the FAA and in some cases
the equivalent regulatory agencies in other countries. Specific regulations vary from country to country,
although regulatory requirements in other countries are generally satisfied by compliance with FAA
requirements. Although we believe we comply with all applicable regulatory standards, these standards
may change in the future, requiring our inventory to be modified or scrapped. New and more stringent
governmental regulations may be adopted in the future that, if enacted, may have an adverse impact on us.
If matenial licenses, authorizations or approvals were revoked or suspended by the FAA and in some cases
the equivalent regulatory agencies in other countries, our results of operations and financial condition may
be adversely affected.

Acquisitions expose us fo risks, including the risk that we may be unable to effectively integrate acquired
businesses.

During fiscal 2007, we completed two acquisitions. Further, we explore and have discussions with
third parties regarding additional acquisitions on a regular basis. Acquisitions involve risks including




difficulties in integrating the operations and personnel of the acquired business, the effects of amortization
of any acquired intangible assets and the potential impairment of goodwill on our financial results, and the
potential loss of key employees of the acquired business. For the two acquisitions we made in fiscal 2007,
and for any additional businesses we may acquire in the future, we may not be able to execute our
operational, financial or integration plan of the acquired businesses, which could adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

Our industry is susceptible to product lability claims, and claims not adequately covered by insurance may
adversely affect our financial condition.

Our business exposes us to possible claims for property damage and personal injury or death which
may result if an engine, engine part or component, airframe part or accessory or any other aviation product
which we have sold, manufactured or repaired fails or if an aircraft in which our products are installed
crashes and the cause cannot be determined. We carry substantial liability insurance in amounts that we
believe are adequate for our risk exposure and commensurate with industry norms. However, claims may
arise in the future, and our insurance coverage may not be adequate to protect us in all circumstances.
Additionally, we can give no assurance that we will be able to maintain adequate insurance coverage in the
future at an acceptable cost. Any product liability claim not covered by adequate insurance could adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We must comply with extensive environmental requirements, and any exposure to environmental liabilities may
adversely affect us,

Federal, state and local requirements relating to the discharge of substances into the environment, the
disposal of hazardous wastes, and other activities affecting the environment have had and may continue to
have an impact on our operations. Compliance with environmental requirements and resolution of
environmental claims have, in the past, been accomplished without material effect on our liquidity and
capital resources, competitive position or financial condition. Management cannot assess the possible
effect of compliance with future environmental requirements or of future environmental claims for which
we may not have adequate indemnification or insurance coverage. If we were required to pay the expenses
related to any future environmentat claims for which neither indemnification nor insurance coverage were
available, these expenses could have an adverse impact on our results of operations and financial
condition. Additional information on environmental matters, including an administrative proceeding by
the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, is contained under Item 3 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2007.

We may need to make significant capital expenditures to keep pace with technological developments in our
industry.

The aviation industry is constantly undergoing development and change, and it is likely that new
products, equipment and methods of repair and overhaul services will be introduced in the future. We may
need to make significant capital expenditures to purchase new equipment and to train our employees to
keep pace with any new technological developments. These capital expenditures could adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

Our operations would be adversely affected by a shortage of skilled personnel or work stoppages.

Because of the complex nature of many of our products and services, we are generally dependent on
an educated and highly skilled workforce. Furthermore, we have collective bargaining agreements covering
approximately 600 employees at three of our facilities. Our ability to operate successfully and meet our
customers’ demands could be jeopardized if we are unable to attract and retain a sufficient number of
skilled personnel to conduct our business, or if we experience a significant or prolonged work stoppage,
and may adversely affect our results of operations and profitability.




ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2, PROPERTIES

QOur principal activities in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment and parts distribution activities in
the Aviation Supply Chain segment are conducted from a building in Wood Dale, Illinois, which is owned
by us subject to a mortgage. In addition to warehouse space, this facility includes executive, sales and
administrative offices. We also lease facilities in Atlanta and Macon, Georgia; Jacksonville, Florida;
Garden City, New York and London, England, and we own a building near Schiphol International Airport
in the Netherlands to support activities in the Aviation Supply Chain segment.

Our principal activities in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment are conducted at facilities
leased by us located in Indianapolis, Indiana; Oklahoma City, Oklahoma; Miami, Florida; Roswell,
New Mexico and Hot Springs, Arkansas.

Our principal activities in the Structures and Systems segment are conducted at facilities owned by us
in Clearwater, Florida (subject to an industrial revenue bond); Cadillac and Livonia, Michigan; Goldsboro,
North Carolina and Frankfort, New York. We also lease facilities in Huntsville, Alabama.

We also operate sales offices which support all our activities and are leased in London, England;
Melbourne, Australia; Paris, France; Rio de Janeiro, Brazil; Shanghai, China; Singapore, Republic of
Singapore and Tokyo, Japan.

We believe that our owned and leased facilities are suitable and adequate for our operational
requirements.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
(Dollars in thousands)

Except as described below, we are not a party to any material, pending legal proceeding (including any
governmental or environmental proceedings) other than routine litigation incidental to our business.

AAR Manufacturing, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company (“subsidiary”) received an Administrative
Order for Response Activity (“Order”) dated August7, 2003, from the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality (“MDEQ™) relating to environmental conditions at and in the vicinity of the
subsidiary’s Cadillac, Michigan plant. The Order requires the subsidiary to perform environmental
investigatory work, prepare a feasibility study and a remedial action plan, and perform interim responsc
actions. The interim response actions include continuation of the response activities the subsidiary is
performing under a 1985 Consent Decree, operation of a soil vapor extraction system the subsidiary had
previously installed and operated, determination of the need to provide alternate water supplies to off-site
properties (and if it is so determined then to actually provide them), removal of any free phase liquids
encountered in the ground, providing notices of groundwater contamination migration to off-site property
owners, and other actions determined by the MDEQ or the subsidiary to be appropriate. The MDEQ
further demands payment of environmental response costs already incurred by the MDEQ in the
approximate amount of $2,500 plus interest, and reimbursement of unspecified costs to be incurred in the
future by the MDEQ. The Order and the letter accompanying it threaten the imposition of civil fines up to
$25 for each day of violation of the Order, plus exemplary damages up to three times the costs incurred by
the MDEQ if the subsidiary does not comply with the Order. The Order may require the implementation
of the remedial action plan, although it is not clear on that point. The Order requires the implementation
of emergency response action if a release of hazardous substances, threat of a release, or exacerbation of
existing contamination occurs during the pendency of the Order.

The subsidiary advised the MDEQ that it would perform the requirements of the Order to the extent
those requirements apply to the allegation by the MDEQ that a release of hazardous substances occurred
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after the execution of the 1985 Consent Decree. The subsidiary declined to perform certain work required
by the Order that the subsidiary believes is based on claims resolved in the 1985 Consent Decree. The
MDEQ responded to the subsidiary by saying that the MDEQ “will be taking appropriate action to protect
public health, safety and welfare and the environment, and gain AAR’s compliance with Part 201" (the
Michigan “cleanup law™).

The subsidiary has received funds from an insurance carrier to reimburse it for a portion of the
subsidiary’s costs. The subsidiary sought coverage from another insurance company and that carrier is
paying a portion of defense costs, but has reserved its rights on coverage for the litigation noted below. The
subsidiary has filed suit against one of the insurance carriers for breach of contract and other relief and
recently reached a settlement.

Prior to the issuance of the Order, the subsidiary sought a Court order to enforce the 1985 Consent
Decree, but that relief was denied by the Court, primarily on the basis that the action was premature since
the State was not pursuing an enforcement action at the time. The subsidiary sought leave to appeal that
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals, but leave was denied.

The work performed and data gathered by the subsidiary since the issuance of the Order appears to
support the positions previously taken by the subsidiary regarding the movement of groundwater for
treatment by the subsidiary. There is disagreement with the MDEQ regarding the conclusions to be drawn
from the data developed from that work. The MDEQ has retained contractors to perform environmentat
investigations in the vicinity of the plant.

On March 31, 2005, a comptlaint was filed by the MDEQ in Cadillac, Michigan with the Wexford
County Circuit Court. The case is Michigan Department of Environmental Quality v AAR Cadillac
Manufacturing, a division of AAR Manufacturing Group, Inc., an Hlinois corporation, and AAR Corp., a
Delaware corporation, File No. 05-18853-CE. In its complaint, the MDEQ seeks to enforce the Order
against the subsidiary and to have the Court impose civil fines and exemplary damages upon the subsidiary
for the alleged failure to comply with the Order. The MDEQ seeks to recover its costs incurred in
performing response activities from both the subsidiary and the Company and seeks a declaratory
judgment that both are liable for all future costs incurred by the State at the facility. The MDEQ also seeks
civil fines from the subsidiary for alleged violations of a particular section of a Michigan environmental
law.

The Company and the subsidiary filed their Answer, including Affirmative Defenses, and intend on
vigorously defending the complaint filed by the MDEQ. On June 17, 2005, the subsidiary also filed a
Petition for Reimbursement of its costs in the amount of approximately $200 incurred in complying with
the Order from the State of Michigan cleanup and redevelopment fund established under Michigan law,
plus costs and attorney fees. As of May 31, 2007, the subsidiary has charged to operations $1,309 related to
this matter. The MDEQ has filed a motion for summary disposition which is scheduled for an August 20,
2007 hearing.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
covered by this report.
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Supplemental Item:
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information concerning each of our executive officers is set forth below:

Name Age Present Position with the Company

David P. Storch.................. 54 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Director
Timothy J. Romenesko........... 50 President and Chief Operating Officer, Director
Richard J. Poulton............... 42 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Howard A. Pulsifer .............. 64 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
JamesJ.Clark................... 47  Group Vice President, Aviation Supply Chain

Michael J. Sharp................. 45 Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

Mr, Storch was elected Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer in October 2005,
Previously, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer from 1996 to 2005 and Chief Operating
Officer from 1989 to 1996. Prior to that, he served as a Vice President of the Company from 1988 to 1989.
Mr. Storch joined the Company in 1979 and also served as president of a major subsidiary from 1984 to
1988. Mr. Storch has been a director of the Company since 1989.

Mr. Romenesko was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer effective June 1, 2007
Previously, he served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since 1994. He also served as
Controller of the Company from 1991 to 1995, and in various other positions since joining the Company in
1981. Mr. Romenesko was appointed a director of the Company in July 2007.

Mr. Poulten was appointed Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer effective June 1,
2007. Previously he served as Vice President of Acquisitions and Strategic Investments since joining the
Company in September 2006. Prior to joining the Company, he spent ten years in the aviation industry and
held senior executive leadership positions with UAL Corporation, including Senior Vice President of
Business Development and Senior Vice President and Chief Procurement Officer for United Airlines, Inc.

Mr. Pulsifer has served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of the Company since 1990,
Previously, he served as Vice President (since 1990) and General Counsel (since 1987). Prior to joining
AAR, he was with United Airlines, Inc. for 14 years.

Mr. Clark has served as Group Vice President, Aviation Supply Chain since 2005. Previously, he
served in vartous Group Vice President roles from 2000 to 2005, and previous to that he served as General
Manager of AAR Aircraft Component Services—Amsterdam from 1995 to 2000, and in various other
positions since joining the Company in 1982.

Mr. Sharp has served as Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer since 1999.
Previously, he served as Controller of the Company from 1996 to 1999. Prior to joining the Company he
was with Kraft Foods from 1994 to 1996, and with KPMG LLP from 1984 to 1994,

Each executive officer is elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the Board
held after the annual meeting of stockholders, Executive officers continue to hold office until their
successors are duly elected or until their death, resignation, termination or reassignment.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchange. On
July 1, 2007 there were approximately 7,000 holders of Common Stock, including participants in security
position listings.

The table below sets forth for each quarter of the past two fiscal years the reported high and low
closing market prices of our Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange.

Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006
Per Common Share Market Prices Market Prices
Quarter High Low High Low
First $25.17 81950 3$1797 31494
Second ... ... i 27.69 22.24 20.94 15.10
Third ... 31.52 26.32 26.42 20.50
Fourth ... ... ... 33.55 27.40 29.00 24.05
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Year Ended May 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Sales from continuing operations® .............. $1,061,169 $885,518 5740427 $632,223 $589,085
Grossprofit. ... ........ ... i 184,147' 163,221 120,575 100,389 77,581
OpErating iNCOME. . ..t v vvaenniininanansn 95,366 65,172 34,917 21,612 2,431
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt . .......... 2927 (3,893) 3,562 — —
INErest EXPpense ..o vuvnin s 16,701 18,004 16,917 18,691 19,416
Income (loss) from continuing operations® . .. .. .. 59,447 35,823 19,498 5,430 (9,589)
Loss from discontinued operations®............. (787) (660) (4,045) (1,926) (2,821)
Netincome (I0SS) . ..o v iiiiinn i iiiinninnans 58,660 35,163 15,453 3,504 (12,410)
Share data:
Earnings (loss) per share-basic:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations. .. § 163 8§ 107 $ 060 § 017 § (030
Loss from discontinued operations. . ........ {0.02) (0.02) (0.12) (0.06) (0.09)
Earnings (loss) per share-basic............. b 161 $ 105 $ 048 § 011 $ (039
Earnings (loss) per share-diluted:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations. ..  § 142 $ 09 $ 057 % 017 § (0.30)
Loss from discontinued operations, ......... (0.02) (0.02) (0.11) (0.06) (0.09)
Earnings (loss) per share-diluted .. ......... 3 140 $ 0% § 046 $ 011 $ (039
Cash dividends pershare. . .................. $ 000 $§ o000 $ 000 $ 000 % 003
Weighted average common shares outstanding—
DASIC . . 36,389 33,530 32,297 32,111 31,852
Weighted average common shares outstanding—
diluted ........ . oo 43,309 38,852 36,205 32,392 31,852
FINANCIAL POSITION
Total cash and cash equivalents ................ $ 83317 $121,738 § 50,338 § 41,010 § 29,154
Workingcapital .......... ..o 389,215 436,666 314,517 300,943 192,837
Total assets ..o ovvviee e 1,067,633 978,819 732,230 709,292 686,621
Short-termrecourse debt. ..................... 51,366 361 2,123 2,656 59,729
Short-term non-recoursedebt. . ....... ... .. ... 22,879 1,928 1,622 736 32,527
Long-term recoursedebt........... ... ... ... 232,863 293.263% 199,919 217,434* 164,658
Long-term non-recourse debt . ................. 20,748 25,313 27,240 31,232 —
Totalrecoursedebt ..........cvovivivinennnn, 284,229 203,624 202,042 220,090 224,387
Stockholders’ equity. . .............. ... 494,243 422,717 314,744 301,684 294,988
Number of shares outstanding at end of year ..... 37,729 36,654 32,586 32,245 31,850
Book value per share of common stock . ......... $ 1310 § 1153 § 966 $ 936 § 026
Notes:

1

In fiscal 2007 and 2003, we recorded $7,652 and $5,360, respectively, of impairment charges related to engines and engine and
airframe parts. A portion of the fiscal 2007 charge related to an aircraft. See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In February 2004, we sold $75,000 of 2.875% convertible notes due February 1, 2024.

During fiscal 2007, we decided to exit our non-core industrial turbine business located in Frankfort, New York. In
February 2005, we sold our engine component repair business located in Windsor, Connecticut. The operating results and the
loss on disposal are classified as discontinued operations. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2006, we sold $150,000 of 1.75% convertible notes due February 1, 2026, See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In January and February 2006, we acquired approximately $50,645 aggregate principal amount of our 2.875% Convertible
Senior Notes due February 1, 2024 in exchange for an aggregate 2,724 shares of our common stock plus $3,893 in cash. See
Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

14




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DHSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
{Dollars in thousands)

Forward-Looking Statements

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contain
certain statements relating to future results, which are forward-looking statements as that term is defined
in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are based on
the beliefs of management, as well as assumptions and estimates based on information available to us as of
the dates such assumptions and estimates are made, and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from historical results or those anticipated, depending on a
variety of factors, including those factors discussed under Item 1A, “Risk Factors”. Should one or more of
those risks or uncertainties materialize adversely, or should underlying assumptions or estimates prove
incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those described. Those events and uncertainties are
difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many are beyond our control. We assume no obligation to
publicly release the result of any revisions that may be made to any forward-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances after the date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or
unanticipated events.

General Overview

We report our activities in four business segments: Aviation Supply Chain; Maintenance, Repair and
Overhaul; Structures and Systems; and Aircraft Sales and Leasing.

Sales in the Aviation Supply Chain segment are derived from the sale and lease of a wide variety of
new, overhauled and repaired engine and airframe parts and components to the commercial aviation and
defense markets, as well as the repair and overhaul of a wide range of commercial and military aircraft
airframe parts. We also provide customized inventory supply and management programs and performance-
based logistics programs for engine and airframe parts and components. Sales also include the sale and
lease of commercial jet engines. Cost of sales consists principally of the cost of product (primarily aircraft
and engine parts), direct labor and overhead (primarily indirect labar, facility cost and insurance).

Sales in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment are principally derived from aircraft
maintenance and storage and the repair and overhaul of most commercial landing gear types. Cost of sales
consists principally of the cost of product (primarily replacement aircraft parts), direct labor and overhead.

Sales in the Structures and Systems segment are derived from the manufacture and sale of containers,
pallets and shelters used to support the U.S. military’s tactical deployment requirements, in-plane cargo
loading and handling systems for commercial and military applications and composite products for aviation
and industrial use. Cost of sales consists principally of the cost of product, direct labor and overhead.

Sales in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment are derived from the sale and lease of commercial
aircraft and technical and advisory services. Cost of sales consists principally of the cost of product
(aircraft), labor and the cost of lease revenue (primarily depreciation, lease expense and insurance).
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Our chief operating decision making officer (Chief Executive Officer) evaluates performance based
on the reportable segments and utilizes gross profit as a primary profitability measure. The tables below set
forth consolidated sales and gross profit for our four business segments for each of the last three fiscal
years ended May 31.

For the Year Ended May 31,

2067 2006 2005
Sales;
Aviation Supply Chain ........... .. ... ... i $ 543,674 3$461,166 $390,060
Maintenance, Repairand Overhaul . .......................... 211,516 182,258 111,932
Structures and SYSIEMS . .. ... viiiii it 264,083 228,747 193,296
Aircraft Salesand Leasing ............ ... .. ... ... ... ... .., 41,896 13,347 45,139
$1,061,169 $885518 §740,427
For the Year Ended May 31,
2007 2006 2005
Gross Profit:
Aviation Supply Chain... e 9114383 8 99255 § 67,672
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul ...................................................... 29,015 25,914 14,414
Structures and SYSIEMIS. .. ...ooivvereererereeresnssereraressrssenssreesesssssssssssessssesess 36,021 33,711 35,184
Aircraft Sales and Leasing ......ccccooveveececnmrrsrce e 3,828 4,341 3,305

$184,147 $163,221 $120,575

Business Trends and Highlights

During calendar year 2006 and into the first quarter of 2007, many of the domestic commercial
airlines reported improved financial results, reflecting their ability to implement fare increases to partially
offset the continued high cost of fuel and intense competition. The improvement has also been driven by
the airlines’ continued focus on controlling non-fuel related expenses, the implementation of operational
efficiencies and relatively high load factors. We expect certain carriers will continue to aggressively seek
ways to reduce their cost structure, including outsourcing more of their maintenance and support functions
to third parties. Further, low-cost carriers continue to expand their presence around the world. Many of
these low-cost carriers are flying newer aircraft which will result in increasing demand for maintenance and
parts support in future years, We believe we remain well positioned to respond to the market with our
broad range of products and services as these trends continue to develop.

We continue to experience strong demand for performance-based logistic services and mobility
products supporting our defense customers’ deployment activities. We are monitoring the debate between
the current Administration and the U.S. Congress regarding the troop withdrawal from Iraq and its impact
on demand for our products and services. Although it remains difficult for us to predict long-term demand
for these types of products and services, we believe we are well positioned with our current portfolio of
products and services and growth plans to benefit from longer-term U.S. military deployment and program
management strategies.

Results of Operations

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006
(as compared with the same period of the prior year)

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2007 increased $175,651 or 19.8% over the prior year. Each reporting
segment experienced sales growth with sales to commercial customers increasing 24.3% and sales to
defense customers up 14.4% compared to the prior year. The sales increase to commercial customers
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reflects the improved commercial airline environment, our expanded presence in global markets, growth in
supply chain programs, and increased demand for airframe maintenance and landing gear overhaul
services. Sales to defense customers increased as we continue to experience strong demand for
performance-based logistics programs and specialized mobility products and the impact from acquisitions.

Sales in the Aviation Supply Chain segment increased $82,508 or 17.9% over the prior year. The sales
increase reflects strong demand for engine and airframe parts from commercial customers due to
improved sourcing and program execution as well as the implementation of new supply chain programs.
The increase in sales to defense customers was driven by continued strong demand for parts support from
performance-based logistics programs. Gross profit in the Aviation Supply Chain segment increased
$15,128 or 15.2% over the prior year primarily due to increased sales volume, partially offset by an
impairment charge of $4,750 recorded in this segment during the first quarter of fiscal 2007 (see Note 13 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). The gross profit margin percentage decreased slightly to
21.0% from 21.5% in the prior year due to the unfavorable mix of products sold and the impairment
charge.

In the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment, sales increased $29,258 or 16.1% over the prior
year. The increase in sales is primarily attributable to increased demand for landing gear overhaul services
as well as airframe maintenance at our Oklahoma and Indianapolis airframe maintenance facilities. Gross
profit in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment increased $4,001 or 15.4% over the prior year
due 1o the increase in sales and the gross profit margin percentage decreased slightly to 14.1% from 14.2%.
The gross profit margin improved at our landing gear and Oklahoma airframe maintenance businesses due
to increased sales and operational efficiencies. The gross profit margin declined at our Indianapolis
airframe maintenance facility due to start-up inefficiencies associated with new customers.

In the Structures and Systems segment, sales increased $35,336 or 15.4% over the prior year. The
increase in sales was primarily due to the development and delivery of increasingly complex and specialized
shelter products and higher volume of pallets at our Mobility Systems business. Sales also increased due to
the inclusion of $12,368 of revenue from Brown which was acquired during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007
(see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Sales of our cargo systems were lower as we
relocated production to a new manufacturing facility in North Carolina. Gross profit in the Structures and
Systems segment increased $2,310 or 6.9% compared to the prior year due to the increase in sales. The
gross profit margin percentage decreased from 14.7% to 13.6% due to the unfavorable mix of products
sold, primarily at our Mobility Systems business.

In the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, sales increased $28,549 due to more aircraft sales
compared to the prior year. During fiscal 2007, our joint ventures purchased six aircraft and sold ten. The
increase in earnings from aircraft joint ventures compared to the prior year is primarily due to the sale of
the ten aircraft. At May 31, 2007, the total number of aircraft held in joint ventures was 12 (see Note 7 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Our strategy in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment is to
build an aircraft portfolio through participation in joint ventures and for our own account. We also own
nine aircraft outside of the joint ventures. Of the nine aircraft owned by us outside the aircraft joint
ventures, five were acquired prior to September 11, 2001, Gross profit in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing
segment decreased $513 compared to the prior year principally due to the impairment charge of $2,902
recorded during the first quarter of fiscal 2007 (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements).

In the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded an impairment charge of $4,750 in the Aviation Supply
Chain segment for engine parts that were acquired prior to September 11, 2001, and were subject to
impairment charges recorded in prior years. This impairment charge was triggered by our decision to
agpressively pursue the liquidation of this inventory. We made this decision to recognize the impairment
due to the impact of persistently high fuel costs and fewer operators on demand for these parts, as well as
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to better align human and physical resources with higher potential opportunities in the rapidly growing
Aviation Supply Chain segment (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). In the
Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, we recorded an impairment charge of $2,902 during the first quarter
of 2007 on a wide-body aircraft originally purchased prior to September 11, 2001. The lease and non-
recourse debt on the aircraft were restructured during the quarter, and we made the decision to offer the
aircraft for sale and recorded the impairment charge to reduce the carrying value of the aircraft to
estimated net realizable value. As part of the restructuring, the lender of the non-recourse debt reduced
the outstanding principal balance by $2,927 which resulted in a gain on extinguishment of the same
amount.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we sold substantially all assets, subject to certain liabilities, of a
product line within our Structures and Systems segment. Proceeds from the sale of the product line were
$6,567 and the net carrying value of the assets sold was $1,209, resulting in a gain on sale of product line of
$5,358. The gain on this transaction has been classified as a component of operating income in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets”.

Operating income increased $30,194 or 46.3% compared with the prior year's period due to increased
sales, increased earnings from aircraft joint ventures and the gain on the sale of a product line, partially
offset by impairment charges and an increase in selling, general and administrative expenses. In fiscal 2007,
our selling, general and administrative expenses increased $5,540 or 5.6% over the prior year primarily due
to increased resources to support our growth. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of sales decreased to 9.9% compared to 11.2% in the prior year. Interest expense decreased $1,303 or 7.2%
primarily due to a reduction in average outstanding borrowings on our revolving credit agreements during
fiscal 2007, as well as capitalized interest of $977. Interest income and other increased $2,593 or 80.1% due
to higher average invested cash during the current fiscal year, as well as a $915 gain on sale of an equity
security. Our effective income tax rate for fiscal 2007 was 32.0% compared to 23.0% in the prior year due
to lower tax benefits on export activities. We expect our effective income tax rate to be approximately 35%
in fiscal 2008.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we decided to exit our non-core industrial turbine business,
which was part of the Structures and Systems segment, and classified the results as a discontinued
operation. Sales for this business were $7,778 in fiscal 2007.

Net income increased to $58,660 for fiscal 2007 compared to $35,163 in the prior year due to the
factors discussed above.

Fiscal 2006 Compared with Fiscal 2005

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2006 increased $145,091 or 19.6% over the prior year. The increase in
sales over the prior year was attributable to sales increases in the Aviation Supply Chain; Maintenance,
Repair and Overhaul and Structures and Systems segments due to an 18.8% increase in sales to
commercial airline customers and a 21.7% increase in sales to defense customers. The increase in sales to
commercial airline customers principally reflects improved demand for engine and airframe parts support
due to increased passenger traffic, improved sourcing and program execuotion. Sales to commercial
customers also increased as a result of a full year of revenue during fiscal 2006 at the Indianapolis airframe
maintenance facility, compared to only four full months during fiscal 2005, as that facility commenced
operations in January 2005. The increase in sales to defense customers was principally driven by continued
strong demand for specialized mobility products and new performance-based logistics programs.
Consolidated gross profit increased $42,646 or 35.4% over the prior year. The increase in gross profit was
attributable to the consolidated sales increase, as well as an improvement in the consolidated gross margin
percentage to 18.4% from 16.3% in the prior year.
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Sales in the Aviation Supply Chain segment increased $71,106 or 18.2% compared to the prior year.
The sales increase reflects increased demand for engine and airframe parts to commercial customers as
well as an increase in sales to program customers using our supply chain management programs. The
increase in sales to defense customers served by this segment was driven by continued strong demand for
parts support from existing and new performance-based logistics programs. Gross profit in the Aviation
Supply Chain segment increased $31,583 or 46.7% over the prior year primarily due to increased sales
volume as well as an improvement in the gross profit margin percentage to 21.5% from 17.3% in the prior
year. The improvement in the gross profit margin percentage was attributable to effective purchasing and
favorable mix of products sold.

In the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment, sales increased $70,326 or 62.8% over the prior
year, The increase in sales was primarily attributable to a full year of revenue at our Indianapolis airframe
maintenance facility during fiscal 2006, compared with only four full months of sales during fiscal 2005, as
that facility commenced operations in January 2005. Sales also increased over the prior year at our
Oklahoma City airframe maintenance facility and landing gear overhaul center reflecting stronger demand.
Gross profit in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment increased $11,500 or 79.8% over the prior
year and the gross profit margin percentage improved from 12.9% to 14.2%, primarily due to
improvements at our Oklahoma City-based airframe maintenance facility and the favorable impact of a full
year of operations at the Indianapolis airframe maintenance facility.

In the Structures and Systems segment, sales increased $335,451 or 18.3% over the prior year as we
experienced increased sales at all of our business units within the segment. The increase was primarily
attributable to increased sales of products supporting our defense customers’ deployment activities due to
continued strong demand and new product development, and increased demand for cargo systems and
composite structure products primarily due to successful sales and marketing efforts. Gross profit in the
Structures and Systems segment declined $1,473 or 4.2% compared to the prior year as the gross profit
margin percentage decreased from 18.2% to 14.7% primarily due to the unfavorable mix of products sold.

In the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment, sales decreased $31,792 or 70.4% compared with the prior
year. The decrease in sales is principally due to the fact that the majority of current year aircraft activity is
conducted through unconsolidated joint ventures, which excludes revenues from consolidated net sales.
Since September 11, 2001, most of the aircraft transactions we have entered into have been with joint
venture partners who provide equity capital equal to our equity capital contribution. Debt is provided on a
limited recourse basis by various financial institutions. Gross profit in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing
segment increased $1,036 or 31.3% compared to the prior year.

Operating income increased $30,255 or 86.6% compared with the prior year due to increased gross
profit, partially offset by an increase in selling, general and administrative expenses. During fiscal 2006,
selling, general and administrative expenses increased $13,325 or 15.5% primarily due to increased
resources to support our growth, Net interest expense declined $647 compared to the prior year primarily
due to increased interest income as a result of higher average invested cash balances during fiscal 2006
compared with the prior year.,

During the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we acquired $50,645 aggregate principal amount of our
2.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2024, or approximately 76% of the previously ocutstanding principal
amount, in exchange for an aggregate 2,724 newly issued shares of common stock plus $3,893 in cash, in
privately negotiated transactions exempt from the registration requirements under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. The number of shares issued was equivalent to the number into which the notes were
convertible under the original terms of the notes. We recorded $3,893 of pre-tax expense on the exchange
of the notes into stock in advance of the call date which was comprised of interest that the note holders
would otherwise have been entitled to receive as well as an incentive payment made as part of the
exchange.
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Also during the third quarter of fiscal 2006, upon completion of our fiscal 2005 Federal income tax
return, we determined that the Company qualified for additional tax benefits of $1,606 related to higher
than estimated margin on fiscal 2005 export activities. We recorded a benefit of $496 related to fiscal 2004
export activity in the third quarter of 2005. Our effective income tax rate for fiscal 2006 was 23.0%
compared to 15.5% in the prior year.

Income from continuing operations increased to $35,823 compared to $19,498 in the prior year due to
the factors discussed above.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2005, we sold our engine component repair business located in
Windsor, Connecticut, and during the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we decided to exit our non-core
industrial turbine business. As a result, we have classified the resolts of these businesses as discontinued
operations for all periods presented.

Net income increased to $35,163 for fiscal 2006 compared to $15,453 in the prior year due to the
factors discussed above.

Legal Matters

AAR Manufacturing, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company (“subsidiary”) received an Administrative
Order for Response Activity (“Order”} dated Auvgust7, 2003, from the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality (“MDEQ"}) relating to environmental conditions at and in the vicinity of the
subsidiary’s Cadillac, Michigan plant. The Order requires the subsidiary to perform environmental
investigatory work, prepare a feasibility study and a remedial action plan, and perform interim response
actions. The interim response actions include continuation of the response activities the subsidiary is
performing under a 1985 Consent Decree, operation of a soil vapor extraction system the subsidiary had
previously installed and operated, determination of the need to provide alternate water supplies to off-site
properties (and if it is so determined then to actually provide them), removal of any free phase liquids
encountered in the ground, providing notices of groundwater contamination migration to off-site property
owners, and other actions determined by the MDEQ or the subsidiary to be appropriate. The MDEQ
further demands payment of environmental response costs already incurred by the MDEQ in the
approximate amount of $2,500 plus interest, and reimbursement of unspecified costs to be incurred in the
future by the MDEQ. The Order and the letter accompanying it threaten the imposition of civil fines up to
$25 for each day of violation of the Order, plus exemplary damages up to three times the costs incurred by
the MDEQ if the subsidiary does not comply with the Order. The Order may require the implementation
of the remedial action plan, although it is not clear on that point. The Order requires the implementation
of emergency response action if a release of hazardous substances, threat of a release, or exacerbation of
existing contamination occurs during the pendency of the Order.

The subsidiary advised the MDEQ that it would perform the requirements of the Order to the extent
those requirements apply to the allegation by the MDEQ that a release of hazardous substances occurred
after the execution of the 1985 Consent Decree. The subsidiary declined to perform certain work required
by the Order that the subsidiary believes is based on claims resolved in the 1985 Consent Decree. The
MDEQ responded to the subsidiary by saying that the MDEQ “will be taking appropriate action to protect
public health, safety and welfare and the environment, and gain AAR’s compliance with Part 2017 (the
Michigan “cleanup law”).

The subsidiary has received funds from an insurance carrier to reimburse it for a portion of the
subsidiary’s costs. The subsidiary sought coverage from another insurance company and that carrier is
paying a portion of defense costs, but has reserved its rights on coverage for the litigation noted below. The
subsidiary has filed suit against one of the insurance carriers for breach of contract and other relief and
recently reached a settlement.
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Prior to the issuance of the Order, the subsidiary sought a Court order to enforce the 1985 Consent
Decree, but that relief was denied by the Court, primarily on the basis that the action was premature since
the State was not pursuing an enforcement action at the time. The subsidiary sought leave (o appeal that
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals, but leave was denied.

The work performed and data gathered by the subsidiary since the issuance of the Order appears to
support the positions previously taken by the subsidiary regarding the movement of groundwater for
treatment by the subsidiary. There is disagreement with the MDEQ regarding the conclusions to be drawn
from the data developed from that work. The MDEQ has retained contractors to perform environmental
investigations in the vicinity of the plant.

On March 31, 2005, a complaint was filed by the MDEQ in Cadillac, Michigan with the Wexford
County Circuit Court. The case is Michigan Department of Environmental Quality v AAR Cadillac
Manufacturing, a division of AAR Manufacturing Group, Inc.,, an Hlinois corporation, and AAR Corp., a
Delaware corporation, File No. 05-18853-CE. In its complaint, the MDEQ seeks to enforce the Order
against the subsidiary and to have the Court impose civil fines and exemplary damages upon the subsidiary
for the alleged failure to comply with the Order. The MDEQ seeks to recover its costs incurred in
performing response activities from both the subsidiary and the Company and seeks a declaratory
judgment that both are liable for all future costs incurred by the State at the facility. The MDEQ also seeks
civil fines from the subsidiary for alleged violations of a particular section of a Michigan environmental
law.

The Company and the subsidiary filed their Answer, including Affirmative Defenses, and intend on
vigorously defending the complaint filed by the MDEQ. On June 17, 2005, the subsidiary also filed a
Petition for Reimbursement of its costs in the amount of approximately $200 incurred in complying with
the Order from the State of Michigan cleanup and redevelopment fund established under Michigan law,
plus costs and attorney fees. As of May 31, 2007, the subsidiary has charged to operations §$1,309 related to
this matter. The MDEQ has filed a motion for summary disposition which is scheduled for an August 20,
2007 hearing.

In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have funded our operating activitics and met our commitments through the
generation of cash from operations, augmented by the periodic issuance of common stock and debt in the
public and private markets. In addition to these cash sources, our capital resources include our unsecured
credit facility. Qur ability to borrow from our lenders and issue debt and equity securities to the public and
private markets in the future may be negatively affected by a number of factors, including general
economic conditions, airling and aviation industry conditions, geo-political events, including the war on
terrorism, and our operating performance. Qur ability to generate cash from operations is influenced
primarily by our operating performance and changes in working capital. We have a universal shelf
registration on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission under which, subject to market
conditions, up to $163,675 of common stock, preferred stock or medium- or long-term debt securities may
be issued or sold.

At May 31, 2007, our liquidity and capital resources included cash of $83,317 and working capital of
$389,215. On August 31, 2006, we entered into a credit agreement with various financial institutions, as
lenders, and LaSalle Bank National Association, as administrative agent for the lenders (the “LaSalle
Credit Agreement”). The LaSalle Credit Agreement created a $140,000 unsecured revolving credit facility
that we can draw upon for general corporate purposes. Under certain circumstances, we may request an
increase to the revolving commitment by an aggregate amount of up to $35,000, not to exceed $175,000 in
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total. The LaSalle Credit Agreement expires on August 31, 2010. Borrowings under the LaSalle Credit
Agreement bear interest at the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™) plus 125 to 200 basis points
based on certain financial measurements. There were no borrowings outstanding under this facility at
May 31, 2007. On August 31, 2006, we terminated our secured revolving credit agreement with Merrill
Lynch Capital and during the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we terminated our accounts receivable
securitization program. No borrowings were outstanding and no accounts receivable were sold at the date
of these terminations. No material penalties or fees resulted from the terminations. In addition to our
domestic facility, we also have $3,041 available under a foreign line of credit.

We continually evaluate various financing arrangements, including the issuance of common stock or
debt, that would allow us to improve our liquidity position and finance future growth on commercially
reasonable terms. Our ability to obtain additional financing is dependent upon a number of factors,
including the geo-political environment, general economic conditions, airline industry conditions, our
operating performance and market conditions in the public and private debt and equity markets.

During the year ended May 31, 2007, we used $21,239 of cash from operations primarily due to
investments of $67,750 made in aircraft and engines on both short- and long-term lease, a $25,160 increase
in accounts receivable reflecting higher sales, payment of capitalized program development costs of
$17,023 related to the A400M program which is reported in other on the consolidated statements of cash
flows, and investment in inventories of $8,567. During fiscal 2007, cash flow from operations benefited
from an increase in accounts payable of $6,473 as well as net income and depreciation and amortization of
$90,859.

During the year ended May 31, 2007, our investing activities used $39,129 of cash, principally as a
result of capital expenditures of $29,891, acquisitions of $38,478 (see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements) and investment in aircraft joint ventures of $9,556, partially offset by cash generated
from the sales of our interests in aircraft joint ventures of $32,108 and proceeds from the sale of a product
line of $6,567 (see Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

During the year ended May 31, 2007, cash generated from financing activities was $21,973, comprised
principally of proceeds from borrowings related to aircraft financings of $30,355, cash proceeds from stock
option exercises of $8,576 and excess tax benefits from the exercise of stock options of $4,345, partially
offset by a reduction in borrowings of $20,439, which includes $9,034 for the carly retirement of 6.875%
Notes due December 15, 2007.
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Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

A summary of contractual obligations and off-balance sheet arrangements as of May 31, 2007 is as
follows:

Payments Due by Period

Due in Due in Due in Due in Due in After
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012
On Balance Sheet:
Debt.............ovvtt. $284.220 $ 51,366 $ 200 $§ 200 §$55,108 § — $177,355
Non-recourse Debt . ... ... 43,627 22,879 640 696 757 823 17,832
Interest. ...........counnn 87,679 13,562 9,243 9,008 8,492 3,916 43,458
Off Balance Sheet:
Aviation Equipment
Operating Leases....... 8,960 3,840 3,840 1,280 — — —
Facilities and Equipment
Operating Leases....... 32,506 7,971 6,893 5,581 4,122 3,740 4,199
Garden City Operating
Lease .....covvvinnnnnn 29,092 1,455 1,492 1,529 1,567 1,606 21,443
Purchase Obligations. .. ... 106,783 103,535 3,248 — — — —
Pension Contribution ..... 4,000 4,000 — — — — —

Purchase obligations arise in the ordinary course of business and represent a binding commitment to
acquire inventory, including raw materials, parts and components, as well as equipment to support the
operations of our business. We routinely issue letters of credit and performance bonds in the ordinary
course of business. These instruments are typically issued in conjunction with insurance contracts or other
business requirements. The total of these instruments outstanding at May 31, 2007 was approximately
$11,891.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Estimates

Qur consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. Management has made estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The most significant estimates made by management include adjustments to reduce the value
of inventories and equipment on or available for lease, allowance for doubtful accounts, revenue
recognition, loss accruals for aviation equipment operating leases and assumptions used in determining
pension plan obligations. Accordingly, actual results could differ materially from those estimates. The
following is a summary of the accounting policies considered critical by management.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our altowance for doubtful accounts is intended to reduce the value of customer accounts receivable
to amounts expected to be collected. In determining the required allowance, we consider factors such as
general and industry-specific economic conditions, customer credit history, and the customer’s current and
expected future financial performance.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the specific identification,
average cost or first-in, first-out methods. Provisions are made for excess and obsolete inventories and
inventories that have been impaired as a result of industry conditions. We have utilized certain
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assumptions when determining the market value of inventories, such as historical sales of inventory,
current and expected future aviation usage trends, replacement values and expected future demand.
During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded an impairment charge related to certain engine parts in
the amount of $4,750. These parts were acquired prior to September 11, 2001, and were subject to
impairment charges recorded in fiscal 2002 and 2003. The fiscal 2007 impairment charge was triggered by
the Company’s decision to aggressively pursue the liquidation of this inventory. The Company made this
decision to recognize the impairment due to the impact of persistently high fuel costs and fewer operators
on demand for these parts, as well as to better align human and physical resources with higher potential
opportunities in the rapidly growing Aviation Supply Chain segment. Reductions in demand for certain of
our inventories or declining market values, as well as differences between actual results and the
assumptions utilized by us when determining the market value of our inventories, could result in additional
impairment charges in future periods.

Revenue Recognition

Certain supply chain management programs that we provide to our customers contain multiple
elements or deliverables, such as program and warchouse management, parts distribution and
maintenance and repair services. We recognize revenue for each element or deliverable that can be
identified as a separate unit of accounting at the time of delivery based upon the relative fair value of the
products and services. In connection with these programs, we are required to make certain judgments and
estimates concerning the overall profitability of the program and the relative fair value of each element of
the arrangement. Differences may occur between the judgments and estimates made by management and
actual program results.

Equipment on or Available for Lease

The cost of assets under lease is original purchase price plus overhaul costs. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated service life of the equipment, and maintenance costs are
expensed as incurred.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets”, we are required to test for impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying valve of an asset may not be recoverable from its undiscounted cash
flows. When applying the provisions of SFAS No. 144 to equipment on or available for lease, we have
utilized certain assumptions to estimate future undiscounted cash flows, including current and future lease
rates, lease terms, residual values and market conditions and trends impacting future demand. Differences
between actual results and the assumptions utilized by us when determining undiscounted cash flows could
result in future impairments of aircraft and engines which are currently being leased or are available for
lease.

Pension Plans

The liabilities and net periodic cost of our pension plans are determined utilizing several actuarial
assumptions, the most significant of which are the discount rate and the expected long-term rate of return
on plan assets.

Our discount rate is determined based on a review of long-term, high quality corporate bonds as of
May 31, 2007 and models that match projected benefit payments to coupons and maturities from the high
quality bonds. The assumption for the expected long-term return on plan assets is developed through
analysis of historical asset returns by investment category, our fund’s actual return experience and current
market conditions. Changes in the discount rate and differences between expected and actual return on
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plan assets may impact the amount of net periodic pension expense recognized in our consolidated
statement of operations.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108 (SAB 108). SAB 108 provides guidance regarding the process by which misstatements in financial
statements are evaluated for purposes of determining whether financial statement restatement is
necessary. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006, and early application is
encouraged. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on our results of operations or
financial position.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN
No. 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.”
FIN No. 48 clarifies the recognition threshold and measurement requirements for tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in tax returns and provides guidance on the related classification and disclosure. The
provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Accordingly, we
will adopt FIN No. 48 no later than the beginning of fiscal year 2008. FIN No. 48 will not have a material
impact on our results from operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS No. 157
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not
vet determined the impact of the adoption of this new accounting standard.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
(Dollars in thousands)

QOur exposure to market risk includes fluctuating interest rates under our credit agreements, foreign
exchange rates and accounts receivable. See Part II, Item 8 for a discussion on accounts receivable
exposure. During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, we did not utilize derivative financial instruments to offset
these risks.

At May 31, 2007, $140,000 was available under our LaSalle Credit Agreement. Interest on amounts
borrowed under this credit facility is LIBOR based. As of May 31, 2007, the outstanding balance under this
agreement was $0. A hypothetical 10 percent increase to the average interest rate under the credit facilities
applied to the average outstanding balance during fiscal 2007 would not have had an impact on our results
of operations as we had no borrowings outstanding under this agreement during fiscal 2007.

Revenues and expenses of our foreign operations are translated at average exchange rates during the
year, and balance sheet accounts are translated at year-end exchange rates. Balance sheet translation
adjustments are excluded from the results of operations and are recorded in stockholders’ equity as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). A hypothetical 10 percent devaluation of
foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar would not have had a material impact on our financial position or
results of operations.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
TO THE STOCKHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF AAR CORP.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AAR CORP. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of May31, 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2007.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of AAR CORP. and subsidiaries as of May 31, 2007 and 2006 and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31,
2007, in conformity with U S, generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
May 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ), and our report dated
July 19, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective
operation of, internal control over financtal reporting.

KPMG LLP

Chicago, Hlinois
July 19, 2007
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Sales:

Salesfrom products. ......... ... ...
Salesfrom services. ... ... i e

Sales from leasing

AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Cost and operating expenses:

Costofproducts.............. . i i
COost Of SEIVICES. . o e

Cost of leasing

Cost of sales-impairment charges
Selling, general and administrative and other

Gain on sale of product line
Earnings from aircraft jointventures . ..........................
Operating income. . .

Gain (loss) on extinguishmentof debt .. ........... ... ... ......

Interest expense . ...

Interestincomeandother. ... ... iy
Income before provision for income taxes. . .....................
Provision for income taxes ... ... e

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations, net of tax:

Operating l0ss. . .. ..o e e
Lossondisposal . ... i e

Loss from discontinued operations. .............ccoviiiea...

Net income ........

Earnings per share—basic:
Earnings from continuing operations. .............. ...l ..
Loss from discontinzed operations. .......... ..o,
Earnings per share—basic................... . ..o

Earnings per share—diluted:

Earnings from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Earnings per share—diluted

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Far the Year Ended May 31,

2007

2006

2005

(In thousands except per share data)

$ 882,509 $732,908 $629,054
150,400 128,182 90,021
28260 24428 21352
1,061,169 885518 740,427
724,419 603,643 533,271
126372 102,709 67,523
18579 15945 19,058
7,652 — —
105,091 99,551 86,226
982,113 821,848 706,078
5,358 — —
10,952 1,502 568
95366 65172 34917
2927  (3.893) 3562
(16,701)  (18,004)  (16917)
5,829 3,236 1,502
87421 46511 23,064
27974 10,688 3,566
59447 35823 19,498
(787) (660)  (1,724)
_ —  (2,321)
(787) (660) ~ (4,045)

$ 58660 §$ 35163 §$ 15453
$ 163 $ 107 $§ 060
(0.02) _ (0.02)  (0.12)

S 161 $§ 105 § 048
$ 142 $ 09 §$ 057
0.02)  (0.02) (0.11)

$§ 140 $ 094 § 046

are an integral part of these statements.
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AAR CORP, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
May 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Current assets:
Cash and cashequivalents . ... ... ...t $ 83317 § 121,738
Accounts receivable. .. ... o e e e 181,691 136,272
B NT20 415, 0 1=1: T O O D 244,661 245,690
Equipment on or available for short-termlease.................. ... ... 97,932 771,902
Deposits, prepaidsand other............ i it e 12,607 12,986
DeferTed TaX ASSEES. o o vttt et e v ettt ae et 25,513 29,866
J 00T 71 Bt U= 1 L T3] = O PP 645,721 624,454
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land . e 4,828 4,828
Buildings and improvements ... i i i e 69,564 57,842
Equipment, furniture and fixtures. . ............ ... e 159,313 139,863
233,705 202,533
Accumulated depreciation . ....... oo e (145,518)  (129,896)
88,187 72,637
Other assets:
Goodwill and other intangible assets,net .................... ... 0.t 74,267 44,432
Equipment on long-termlease. ... .......... .. ... i 171,980 140,743
Investment in JOINt VENIUTES. . . ... ...t i iaaianiaenns 17,824 28,498
L 1] 69,654 68,055
333,725 281,728
$1,067,633 § 978,819

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

May 31,

2007 2006

Current liabilities:
Short-termdebt .. ... ... $
Current maturities of long-termdebt. ............ ... ... ..o o
Current maturities of non-recourse long-termdebt.......................
Accounts payable....... ... .. .. e
Accrued liabilities .......... ... ...

(In thousands)

—  § 161
51,366 200
22,879 1,928

110,239 97,002
72,022 88,497

256,506 187,788

Long-term debt, less current maturities. .. ............ ... L.
Non-recoursedebt....... ... ..

232,863 293,263
20,748 25,313
40,121 25,357
23,152 24,381

316,884 368,314

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 250 shares; none issued. ... ...,
Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 100,000 shares; issued 42,230 and
40,789 shares, respectively.. . ... it
Capital suTplus .. ... o e e e
Retained earnings .. ....... .ot i i i
Treasury stock, 4,501 and 4,135 shares at cost, respectively................
Unearned restricted stock awards. ...ttt
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. . ............... ... ... ... ..

42,230 40,789
289,673 274,211
256,052 197,392
(79.813)  (69,664)
—  (6,169)
(13,899)  (13,842)

494,243 422717

$1,067,633 $978,819

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2007

Balance, May 31,2004 . .................
Netincome..................... ...,
Exercise of stock options and stock awards
Restricted stock activity .. .............
Adjustment for net translationloss ......
Minimum pension liability, net of tax. . . ..
Comprehensive income ...............

Balance, May 31,2005 ..................
Netincome................ooooiiin
Exercise of stock options and stock awards
Restricted stock activity .. .............
Common stock issued in debt for equity

transaction . ...............uin..
Adjustment for net translation gain . ... ..
Minimum pension liability, net of tax. . . ..
Comprehensive income ...............

Balance, May 31,2006 .. ................
Netincome.........................
Exercise of stock options and stock awards
Tax benefit related to share- based plans. .
Restricted stock activity . ..............
Adjustment for net translationgain . ... ..
Minimum pension liability, net of tax. .. ..
Adoption of SFAS No. 158, netof tax .. ..
Comprehensive income ...............

Balance, May 38,2007 ..................

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

are an integral part of these statements
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Unearned  Accumulated
Restricted Other
Common Stock Treasury Stock Capital  Retained Stock  Comprehensive Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Surplus Earnings Awards  Income (Loss) Income
{In thousands)
34,525 $34,525 2,280 $(36,030)$172,681 $146,776 $(1,376) 5(14,892)
— - - — — 15453 — — $15,453
1,328 1,328 987 (14,467) 16,936 — — — —
— - - — — — (1,303 — -
— - = — — — — (150) (150
— _ — _ —_ —_ —_ {4,737) (4,737
$10,566
35,853 $35,853 3,267 $(50,497)$189,617 $162,229 $(2,679)  $(19,779)
— — — — — 35,163 — — $35,163
2,212 2,212 868 (19,167 37,876 —_ — — —
— - - - — — (3490 — -
2,724 2,724 —_ — 46,718 — — — —_—
— — — — — — _— 1,058 1,058
— —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ — 4.879 4,879
$41,100
40,789 $40,78% 4,135 $(69,664) $274,211 $197,392 3(6,169) $(13,842)
— - —_ — — 58,660 — — $58,660
1,441 1,441 366 (10,149) 14,230 —_ —_ _ —_
— — — — 4,345 — - — —
— - - — (3113 — 6169 — —
— - - — — — — 1,559 1,559
— —_ _ _ —_ —_ — 1,921 1,921
— - - - — — — (3,537 —
$62,140
42,230 $42,230 4,501 ${79,813)$289,673 $256,052 § — $(13,899)




AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended May 31,
2007 2006 2008
(In thousands)

Cash flows provided from (used in) operating activities:
NeTINCOME L\ttt e e e e e $ 58,660 $ 35,163 3 15433
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from
(used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization .. ............................ 32,199 29222 29,178
Deferred tax provision - continuing operations . ............... 20,411 8,433 2,112
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options. . ............ {4,345) — —
Gainonsale ofproductline. .......... .. ... o i (5,358) — —
Impairment charges. ........... . ... 7,652 — —
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt........................ (2,927) 3,893 3,562
Earnings from aircraft joint ventures .. .. ....... ... ... . ..., {10,952) — —
Gainonsaleof investment............ ... ..o iiiiiien.. (915) — —
Loss on disposal of business, netof tax ....................... — — 2,321
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Accounts and trade notes receivable.. . ............. ... (25,160) (9,324)  (17,596)
INVentomies .. ...t e e e (8,567)  (58,297) (12,013)
Equipment on or available for short-term lease. ............. (5.259)  (12,892)  (3,154)
Equipment on long-term lease ............................ (62,491  (76,156) 18,728
Accountspayable. ....... ... ... ... o 6,473 19,735 19,244
Accrued liabilities and taxes onincome. . ................... 1,903 12,282 5,907
Other liabilities. . . ... ... . (4,696) 10,493 —
Other., (17,867) (3,034) (12,804)
Net cash provided from (used in) operating activities. .......... (21,239)  (40,482) 50,938
Cash flows used in investing activities:
Property, plant and equipment expenditures .................... (29,891)  (16,296)  (13,033)
Proceeds from disposal of assets. ................... ... ... ..... 51 205 7
Proceeds fromsale of productline ................ ...l 6,567 — —
Proceeds from disposal of business. ... ...... ... ... ... ... — — 7,700
Proceeds from sale of available for sale securities .. .............. 11,612 —_ —
Investment in available for sale securities.. . ..................... (10,697) — —
Companies acquired ... ... ... i i e e (38,478) — —
Proceeds from aircraft jointventures. . .......... ... ... ... ..., 32,108 6,439 —
Investment in aircraft joint ventures. .. ........ ... ... .. .. ... (9,556) (23,245) (11,223)
Investment in leveraged leases. . ............ ... iiiiiiia . 139 183 122
Other ... (984) 89 (L157)
Net cash used in investing activities . ......................... (39,129) _(32,625) _(17,584)
Cash flows provided from (used in) financing activities:
Proceeds fromborrowings .................. ... ... ... ... ..., 30,355 161,000 —
Reduction in borrowings. . . ... (20,439)  (20,376)  (24,005)
Financing costs. ... ... . i e (864) (5,371) (34)
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options................ 4,345 — —
Other, primarily stock option exercises ......................... 8,576 9.402 2
Net cash provided from (used in) financing activities . .......... 21,973 144 655 (24,037)
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash .......................... {26) (148) 11
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, .................. (38,421) 71,400 9328
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year...................... 121,738 50,338 41,010
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ........................... $ 83317 §$121,738 § 50,338

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these statements.
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AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts})

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

AAR COREP. is a diversified provider of products and services to the worldwide aviation and defense
industries. Products and services include: aviation supply chain and parts support programs; maintenance,
repair and overhaul of aircraft and landing gear; design and manufacture of specialized mobility and cargo
systems and composite structures; and aircraft sales and leasing. We serve commercial and governmental
aircraft fleet operators, original equipment manufacturers and independent service providers around the
world.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries after elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. The equity method of accounting
is used for investments in other companies in which we have significant influence; generally this represents
common stock ownership of at least 20% and not more than 50% (see Note 7 for a discussion of aircraft
joint ventures).

Revenue Recognition

Sales and related cost of sales for product sales are recognized upon shipment of the product to the
customer. Our standard terms and conditions provide that title passes to the customer when the product is
shipped to the customer. Sales of certain defense products are recognized upon customer acceptance,
which includes transfer of title and transfer of risk of loss. Sales from services and the related cost of
services are generally recognized when customer-owned material is shipped back to the customer. We have
adopted this accounting policy because at the time the customer-owned material is shipped back to the
customer, all services related to that material are complete as our service agreements generally do not
require us to provide services at customer sites. Furthermore, serviced units are typically shipped to the
customer immediately upon completion of the related services. Sales and related cost of sales for certain
long-term manufacturing contracts and for certain large airframe maintenance contracts are recognized by
the percentage of completion method, either based on the relationship of costs incurred to date to
estimated total costs or the units of delivery method. Lease revenues are recognized as earned. Income
from monthly or quarterly rental payments is recorded in the pertinent period according to the lease
agreement. However, for leases that provide variable rents, we recognize lease income on a straight-line
basis. [n addition to a monthly lease rate, some engine leases require an additional rental amount based on
the number of hours the engine is used in a particular month. Lease income associated with these
contingent rentals is recorded in the period in which actual usage is reported to us by the lessee, which is
normally the month following the actual usage.

Certain supply chain management programs we provide our customers contain multiple elements or
deliverables, such as program and warehouse management, parts distribution and maintenance and repair
services. We recognize revenue for each element or deliverable that can be identified as a separate unit of
accounting at the time of delivery based upon the relative fair value of the products and services.

Goodwill

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”, goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized,
but are subject to annual impairment tests.
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The amount reported under the caption “Goodwill and other intangible assets, net” is comprised of
goodwill and intangible assets associated with acquisitions we made, principally since the beginning of
fiscal 1998. Each of the acquisitions involved a single business that now comprises or is included in a single
operating segment. We were not required to allocate goodwill related to specific acquisitions across two or
more segments, For the annual goodwill impairment test, we compare an estimate of the fair value of each
of our reportable segments 1o its carrying amount. The estimated fair value of each reportable segment
was determined utilizing a valuation technique based on a multiple of earnings.

Goodwill by reportable segment is as follows:

May 31,
2007 2006
Aviation SupplyChain ........ ... ... i $20,136  $20,110
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul. ......................... 14,940 5,838
Structuresand Systems. .......... ... .. o o el 37,611 18,484

$72,687 $44,432

The increase in goodwill during fiscal 2007 was attributable to the acquisitions discussed in Note 11.
At May 31, 2007, intangible assets, other than goodwill, are comprised of customer relationships of $1,000
and a covenant not to compete agreement of $580. The customer relationship is being amortized over a
three year period and the covenant not to compete is being amortized over a five year period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

At May 31, 2007 and 2006, cash equivalents of approximately $0 and $40,535, respectively, consist of
investments in funds holding high-quality commercial paper. The carrying amount of cash equivalents
approximates fair value at May 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Marketable Securities

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we sold an investment in equity securities that was classified
as available for sale. These securities were acquired in fiscal 2007, and had a cost basis of $10,697. Proceeds
on the sale were $11,612 and the gain of $915 is reported in interest income and other on the consolidated
statements of operations.

Foreign Currency

All balance sheet accounts of foreign subsidiaries transacting business in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar are translated at year-end exchange rates. Revenues and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates during the year. Translation adjustments are excluded from the results of operations and
are recorded in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Financial Instruments and Concentrations of Market or Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of market or credit risk consist
principally of trade receivables. While our trade receivables are diverse and represent a number of entities
and geographic regions, the majority are with the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors and
entities in the aviation industry. Accounts receivable due from the U.S. Department of Defense were
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$22,098 and $16,347 at May 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We perform regular evaluations of customer
payment experience, current financial condition and risk analysis. We may require collateral in the form of
security interests in assets, letters of credit, and/or obligation guarantees from financial institutions for
transactions executed on other than normal trade terms.

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, requires disclosure of the
fatr value of certain financial instruments. Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term
borrowings and accounts payable are reflected in the consolidated financial statements at fair value
because of the short-term maturity of these instruments. The carrying value of long-term debt bearing a
variable interest rate approximates fair market value.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could
significantly affect the estimates.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, Cost is determined by the specific identification,
average cost or first-in, first-out methods. We also purchase aircraft and engines for disassembly to
individual parts and components. Costs are assigned to these individual parts and components based on list
prices from original equipment manufacturers and recent sales history.

The following is a summary of inventories:

May 31,
2007 2006
Rawmaterialsandparts.............coiiiiiiniinnan.n, $ 55702 § 58421
WOrk-in-process. .. ...oooiuii it 36,580 30,651

Purchased aircraft, parts, engines and components held for sale 152,379 156,618
$244,661  $245,690

Government Grants

In connection with our occupancy of the Indianapolis Maintenance Center (IMC), the State of
Indiana and the City of Indianapolis committed $7,000 of government grants to assist with the initial
mobilization and start-up of the facility, as well as to assist us with the purchase of certain capital
equipment. During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, we received $0, $300 and $3,700, respectively, of grants for
mobilization, training and other start-up related costs, and have offset the receipt of these grants against
applicable mobilization and other start-up related costs incurred by us.

Equipment under Operating Leases

Lease revenue is recognized as earned. The cost of the asset under lease is original purchase price plus
overhaul costs. Depreciation for aircraft is computed on a straight-line method over the estimated service
life of the equipment. The balance sheet classification is generally based on lease term, with fixed-term
leases less than twelve months generally classified as short-term and all others generally classified as long-
term.
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Equipment on short-term lease consists of aircraft engines and parts on or available for lease to satisfy
customers’ immediate short-term requirements. The leases are renewable with fixed terms, which generally
vary from one to twelve months. Equipment on long-term lease consists of aircraft and engines on lease
with commercial airlines for more than twelve months (see Notc 8).

Our aircraft and engine portfolio recorded on our consolidated balance sheet includes seven narrow-
body and two wide-body aircraft and several types of engines. Of the nine aircraft owned by us outside of
aircraft joint ventures, five were acquired prior to September 11, 2001. Several engines also were acquired
prior to September 11, 2001. Demand and lease rates for certain of these assets have not returned to pre-
September 11, 2001 levels. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we are required to test for impairment of
these assets and previously adjusted the carrying value for certain of these assets (see Note 13). During the
first quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded an impairment charge of $2,902 on a wide-bady aircraft originally
purchased prior to September 11, 2001. The lease and non-recourse debt on the aircraft were restructured
during the quarter, and we made the decision to offer the aircraft for sale and recorded the impairment
charge to reduce the carrying value of the aircraft to estimated net realizable value. During the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2005, we recorded a $900 charge related to the write-down of an aircraft as a result of a
renegotiated lease with an airline customer operating under bankruptey protection. When applying the
provisions of SFAS No. 144 to our aircraft and engine portfolio, we utilized certain assumptions to
estimate future undiscounted cash flows, including current and future lease rates, lease terms, residual
values and market conditions and trends impacting future demand. Unfavorable differences between
actual results and expected results could result in future impairments in our aircraft and engine lease
portfolio.

All of the aircraft in our aircraft portfolio are currently on lease. Future rent due to us under non-
cancelable leases during each of the next five fiscal years is $29,025 in 2008, $26,492 in 2009, $23,357 in
2010, $17,059 in 2011 and $16,948 in 2012.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over useful lives of 10-40 years for buildings
and improvements and 3-10 years for equipment, furniture and fixtures and capitalized software.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the
applicable lease.

Repair and maintenance expenditures are expensed as incurred. Upon sale or disposal, cost and
accumulated depreciation arc removed from the accounts, and related gains and losses are included in
results of operations.

Leveraged Lease

We are an equity participant in a leveraged lease transaction. The equipment cost in excess of equity
contribution is financed by a third party in the form of secured debt. Under the lease agreement, the third
party has no recourse against us for nonpayment of the obligation. The third-party debt is collateralized by
the lessees’ rental obligation and the leased equipment.

We have ownership rights to the leased asset and are entitled to the tax deduction for depreciation on
the leased asset and for interest on the secured debt financing.
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Income taxes

Income taxes are determined in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”.
Supplemental Information on Cash Flows

Supplemental information on cash flows follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Interestpaid.........covvvieiineniiiir e, $13,650 $13,588 $13,764
Income taxespaid ........coviiiiiiii i 1,948 1,303 591
Income tax refunds and interest received ............ 1,221 1,137 1,138

During fiscal 2007, we capitalized $977 of interest primarily related to capital projects in our
Structures and Systems segment.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2006, we acquired $50,645 aggregate principal amount of our
2.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2024, or approximately 76% of the previously outstanding principal
amount, in exchange for an aggregate 2,724 newly issued shares of common stock plus $3,893 in cash, in
privately negotiated transactions exempt from the registration requirements under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. The number of shares issued was equivalent to the number into which the notes were
convertible under the original terms of the notes. We recorded a $3,893 pre-tax loss on the exchange of the
notes into stock in advance of the call date of the notes; this loss was comprised of interest that the note
holders would otherwise have been entitled to receive as well as an incentive payment for the exchange. As
a result of these transactions, our long-term debt decreased by $50,645 and stockholders’ equity increased
by $46,600. The 2,724 newly issued shares did not impact diluted earnings per share because the equivalent
shares were already included in the diluted earnings per share calculation.,

As of May 31, 2007, the outstanding balance of the 2.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2024 was
$16,355 and as of March 15, 2006, these notes can be converted into shares of common stock at the option
of the note holder.

During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, treasury stock increased $10,149, $19,167 and $14,467, respectively,
principally reflecting the impact from the exercise of stock options.

Use of Estimates

We have made estimates and utilized certain assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and
liabilities and the disclosures of contingent liabilities to prepare these consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108 (SAB 108). SAB 108 provides guidance regarding the process by which misstatements in financial
statements are evaluated for purposes of determining whether financial statement restatement is
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necessary. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006, and early application is
encouraged. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on our results of operations or
financial position.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN
No. 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.”
FIN No. 48 clarifies the recognition threshold and measurement requirements for tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in tax returns and provides guidance on the related classification and disclosure. The
provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 13, 2006. Accordingly, we
will adopt FIN No. 48 no later than the beginning of fiscal year 2008, FIN No. 48 will not have a material
impact on our results from operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS No. 157
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not
yet determined the impact of the adoption of this new accounting standard.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the prior years’ consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation.

2. Financing Arrangements
Revolving Credit Fucility

On August 31, 2006, we entered into a $140,000 unsecured revolving credit facility with LaSalle Bank
National Association and various other lenders. Under certain circumstances, we may request an increase
to the revolving commitment in an aggregate amount of up to $35,000, not to exceed $175,000 in total. The
credit facility expires on August 31, 2010 and borrowings under the facility bear interest at LIBOR plus 125
to 200 basis points based on certain financial measurements. The credit facility also includes a non-use fee
which is currently equal to 30 basis points on the unused portion of the facility.

There were no borrowings outstanding under either this facility or our previous revolving credit
facilities during fiscal 2007. Short-term borrowing activity under our revolving credit facilities during fiscal
2006 and 2005 was as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2006 2005
Maximum amount borrowed . ...... ... ..o $25,000 $21,000
Average dailyborrowings. ............ ... oL, 7.216 5,248
Average interest rate during theyear.. .................. 6.76% 5.47%
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In conjunction with entering into the new credit facility, we terminated our secured revolving credit
agreement with Merrill Lynch Capital during the first quarter of fiscal 2007, and our accounts receivable
securitization program during the second quarter of fiscal 2007. No borrowings were outstanding and no
accounts receivable were sold at the date of termination. No material penalties or fees resulted from the

termination of these arrangements.

A summary of our recourse and non-recourse long-term debt is as follows:

Recourse debt

Notes payable due December 15, 2007 with interest at 6.875% payable semi-
annually onJune 15and December 15. .. ...
Notes payable due May 15, 2008 with interest at 7.98% payable semi-annually on
June land December L. ... ... i
Notes payable due May 15, 2011 with interest at 8.39% payable semi-annually on
JunelandDecember l.......... ... .. ... . . il
Mortgage loan (secured by Wood Dale, Illinois facility) due August 1, 2015 with
INterest at 50000 . ..o o i e e
Convertible notes payable due February 1, 2024 with interest at 2.875% payable
semi-annually on February land August 1.............. .. .o it
Convertible notes payabie due February 1, 2026 with interest at 1.75% payable
semi-annually on February land August 1. ae,
Industrial revenue bond, (secured by trust indenture on property, plant and
equipment) due December 1, 2010 with floating interest rate, payable
quarterly—interest 3.93% at May 31,2007 .. ....... ...l
Total recourse debt ... . ..ot e e
Current maturities of recoursedebt ....... ... oo o
Long-term recourse debt . ....... ... i

Non-recourse debi

Non-recourse note payable due December 1, 2007 with interest at 6.00% .......
Non-recourse note payable due September 23, 2007 with interest at 8.11%. .. ...
Non-recourse note payable due April 3, 2015 with interest at 838% . ...........
Total non-recourse debt ... ... . i e
Current maturities of non-recourse debt............. ... ... .. oo
Long-term non-recourse debt . ........ . ... . i e

May 31,

2007 2006

$ 31,166 $ 40,200
20,000 20,000
55,000 55,000
11,000 11,000
16,355 16,355

150,000 150,000

708 908

284,229 293,463
(51,366) (200)

$232,863 $293,263

$ 22,252 § 27,241
15,000 —
6,375 —

43627 27,241
(22.879)  (1,928)

$ 20,748 § 25313

During fiscal 2007 and 2006, we retired $9,034 and $7,180, respectively, of 6.875% notes payable due
in December 2007. During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we restructured the lease and non-recourse debt
associated with a 767-300 aircraft. As part of the restructuring, the lender of the non-recourse debt
reduced the outstanding principal balance by $2,927 which resulted in a gain on extinguishment of the

same amount (see Note 13).
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On February 1, 2006, we completed the sale of $150,000 principal amount of convertible senior notes.
The notes are due on February 1, 2026 unless earlier redeemed, repurchased or converted, and bear
interest at 1.75% payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1. Costs associated with this transaction
of approximately $4,875 are being amortized over a seven-year period. Net proceeds from this transaction
were $145,125 and were used in part to repurchase $25,000 of accounts receivable which had been sold
under our accounts receivable securitization facility, to repay $25,000 outstanding under our secured
revolving credit facility and to purchase aviation equipment for $11,232 which was subject to an operating
lease.

A holder may convert the notes into shares of common stock based on a conversion rate of 33.9789
shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of
approximately $29.43 per share, under the following circumstances: (i) during any calendar quarter
beginning after March 31, 2006 (and only during such calendar quarter), if, as of the last day of the
preceding calendar quarter, the closing price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days in a period
of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of such preceding calendar quarter is more
than 120% of the applicable conversion price per share of common stock on the last day of such preceding
calendar quarter; (ii) during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading day period in
which the “trading price” per $1,000 principal amount of notes for each day of that period was less than
98% of the product of the closing price of our common stock and the then applicable conversion rate;
(iii) upon a redemption notice; (iv) if a designated eveat or similar change of control transaction occurs;
{v) upon specified corporate transactions; or (vi) during the ten trading day period ending at the close of
business on the business day immediately preceding the stated maturity date on the notes. Upon
conversion, we will have the right to deliver, in lieu of shares of our common stock, cash or a combination
of cash and shares of common stock, at our option, in an amount per note equal to the applicable
conversion rate multiplied by the applicable stock price.

We may redeem for cash all or a portion of the notes at any time on or after February 6, 2013 at
specified redemption prices. Holders of the notes have the right to require us to purchase for cash all or
any portion of the notes on February 1, 2013, 2016 and 2021 at a price equal to 100% of the principal
amount of the notes plus accrued interest and unpaid interest, if any, to the purchase date. The notes are
senior, unsecured obligations and rank equal in right of payment with all other unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness.

On May 23, 2007, we financed a narrow-body aircraft purchase with a $15,000 note payable. The note
matures September 23, 2007 and bears interest at LIBOR plus 275 basis points. On July 19, 2007, we
refinanced this note payable. Proceeds of the new loan were $17,000 and the term of the financing is five
years with interest at 7.22%. Accordingly, we have classified the $15,000 note payable outstanding at
May 31, 2007 as long-term on the consolidated balance sheet.

The mortgage loan due August 1, 2015 is secured by our Wood Dale, Illinois facility. At May 31, 2007,
the net book value of our Wood Dale, Illinois facility is $14,593. The non-recourse note payable due
December 2007 is secured by a wide-body aircraft. At May 31, 2007, the net book value of this aircraft is
$26,430.

We are subject to a number of covenants under our financing arrangements, including restrictions
which relate to the payment of cash dividends, maintenance of minimum net working capital and tangible
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net worth levels, fixed charge coverage ratio, sales of assets, additional financing, purchase of our shares
and other matters. We are in compliance with all financial covenants under our financing arrangements.
The aggregate amount of long-term recourse debt maturing during cach of the next five fiscal years is
$51,366 in 2008, $200 in 2009, $200 in 2010, $55,108 in 2011 and $0 in 2012, QOur long-term recourse debt
was estimated to have a fair value of approximately $300,000 at May 31, 2007. The fair value was
determined using available market information.

3. Stock-Based Compensation

We provide stock-based awards under the AAR CORP. Stock Benefit Plan (“Stock Benefit Plan”)
which has been approved by our stockholders. Under this plan, we are authorized to issue stock options to
employees and non-employee directors that allow the grant recipients to purchase shares of common stock
at a price not less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. Generally, stock
options awarded under the plan expire ten years from the date of grant and are exercisable in either four
or five equal annual increments commencing one year after the date of grant. We issue new common stock
upon the exercise of stock options. In addition to stock options, the Stock Benefit Plan also provides for
the issuance of restricted stock awards and performance based restricted stock awards, as well as for the
granting of stock appreciation units; however, to date, no stock appreciation units have been granted.

Restricted stock grants are designed, among other things, to align employee interests with the
interests of stockholders and to encourage the recipient to build a career with the Company. Restricted
stock typically vests over periods of three to ten years from date of grant. Restricted stock grants may be
performance-based with vesting to occur over periods of one to ten years after the grant is earned. All
restricted stock which has not vested carries full dividend and voting rights.

Typically, stock options and restricted stock are subject to forfeiture prior to vesting if the employee
terminates employment for any reason other than death, retirement or disability or if we terminate
employment for cause. A total of 5,094 shares have been granted under the Stock Benefit Plan since its
inception, and as of May 31, 2007, awards representing 3,368 shares were available for future grant under
the Stock Benefit Plan.

Effective June 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R), using the modified prospective method of
transition. Under SFAS No. 123(R), compensation expense is recognized for stock option grants made
after May 31, 2006 and for the unvested portion of outstanding stock options that were granted prior to the
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). Compensation cost is measured based on the grant date fair value of the
award and recognized on a straight line basis over the vesting period.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we accounted for stock-based compensation in accordance
with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.25 (“APB 25”), “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. Under APB 25, no
compensation expense was recognized for stock option grants, and accordingly share-based compensation
related to stock options granted prior to June 1, 2006 was included as pro forma disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements.

On April 11, 2006, our Board of Directors approved the acceleration of the vesting of all unvested
stock options. As a result of this action, stock options representing approximately 679 shares that were
scheduled to vest in fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009 became fully exercisable effective May 1, 2006. The
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accelerated vesting enabled us to reduce the amount of compensation expense that would otherwise be
required to be recognized in our consolidated statements of operations with respect to these options upon
the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). The aggregate expense that was eliminated as a result of the
acceleration was approximately $1,800. The acceleration resulted in a non-cash, one-time pre-tax stock
compensation expense of $362 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.

On June 1, 2006, we granted stock options representing 100 shares to a select group of key leadership
track employees. No executive officers were included in the group that received stock option grants. No
stock options were granted during fiscal 2006 and 2005 other than reload options, which resulted from the
exercise of original stock options granted in prior years. Effective May 1, 2006, the reload provision was
eliminated from substantially all outstanding stock option arrangements.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $11.93,
$3.71 and $2.87, respectively. The fair value of each stock option grant was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Stock Options Granted
In Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interestrate. ... i ane. 5.0% 4.3% 33%
Expected volatility of common stock ............ ... .. 58.7% 34.1% 45.6%
Dividendyield ......... .. ... . ... oo it 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected option term inyears. .......... .. ..., 4.0 1.0 1.1

The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The
expected volatility is based on historical volatility of our common stock and the expected option term
represents the period of time that the stock options granted are expected to be outstanding based on
historical exercise trends. The dividend yield represents our anticipated cash dividends over the expected
option term.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if we had applied the
fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to our stock option plan for the years ended May 31,
2006 and 2005.

For the Year Ended
May 31,
2006 2005
Netincome asreported .......o.iiieeiiiie i s, $35,163 $15,453
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in net income
asreported, netoftax................. i i, 2,634 1,540
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value method for all awards, netoftax............ (6,464 (5,170
Proformanet income. ... oot $31,333  $11,823
Earnings per share—basic: Asreported.................. $ 105 § 048
Proforma................... $ 094 § 037
Earnings per share—diluted:  Asreported.................. $ 094 § 046
Proforma................... $§ 084 § 036
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The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) on June 1, 2006 reduced our operating income from continuing
operations by $240 for the year ended May 31, 2007.

A summary of changes in stock option activity for the three years ended May 31, 2007 follows (shares
in thousands):

2007 2006 2005

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Qutstanding at beginning of year ........ 3,080 $16.88 4,607 $15.17 5,154  $14.35
Granted .............. ... ...l 100 $24.08 364  $22.28 845  $14.66
EXETCISed . .o ovv e (1,021) $17.72  (1,818) $13.70 (1,186) $11.03
Cancelled.............. ..., (24) $17.47 (73) $15.19 (206) $16.37
Qutstanding atend of year.............. 2,135 $18.30 3,080 $16.88 4,607 $15.17
Options exercisable at end of year . .... .. 2038 $18.03 3,080 $16.38 3414  $17.48

The total fair value of stock options that vested during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $0, $1,628 and
$818, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$13,582, $17,148 and $4,315, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding as of
May 31, 2007 was $30,255. The tax benefit realized from stock options exercised during fiscal 2007 and
2006 was $4,345 and $7,553, respectively. As of May 31, 2007, we had $9353 of unrecognized compensation
expense related to stock options that will be amortized over an average period of five years.

The following table provides additional information regarding stock options outstanding as of May 31,
2007 (shares in thousands):

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Option Number Remaining Average Number Average
Exercise Outstanding as Contractual Exercise Exercisable as Exercise
Price Range of 5/31/07 Life in Years Price of 5/31/07 Price

$3.20—%$13.00 304 5.9 $ 7.51 304 $ 751
$13.01—8$18.50 783 4.1 $1595 783 $15.95
$18.51—%24.50 955 5.0 $23.12 858 $23.01
$24.51—529.00 93 33 $26.26 93 $26.26
2,135 4.7 $18.30 2,038 $18.03
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3. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)
Restricted Stock

We provide executives and other key employees an opportunity to be awarded restricted shares. The
award is contingent upon the achievement of certain performance objectives, including net income and
return on capital, or the Company’s stock price achieving a certain level over a period of time. After the
shares are granted, the restrictions are released over a five to seven year period. During fiscal 2007, 2006
and 2005, we granted 459, 438 and 150 restricted shares, respectively, under this program.

In addition to the performance-based restricted stock awards, we also granted a total of 21 restricted
shares to members of the Board of Directors and one non-executive employee during fiscal 2007.

The fair value of restricted shares is the market value of our common stock on the date of grant.
Amortization expense related to all restricted shares during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $3,458, $3,690
and $1,263 respectively.

Restricted share activity during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted Average

Number Fair Value

of Shares on Grant Date
Nonvested at May 31,2006 ...................coiia.. 785 $15.00
Granted. .. ... ... 480 $32.91
Bt T (193) $14.20
Forfeited . ... e s €)) $15.88
Nonvested at May 31,2007 ... oo, 1,067 $23.16

As of May 31, 2006, unearned compensation related to restricted shares was included in unearned
restricted stock awards, a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Upon the adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R), the balance was reclassified to capital surplus. As of May 31, 2007, we had $16,538 of
unearned compensation related to restricted shares that will be amortized to expense over a weighted
average period of 2.9 years.

Shareholders’ Rights Plan

Pursuant to a shareholder rights plan adopted in 1997, each outstanding share of our common stock
carries with it a Right to purchase one and one half additional shares at a price of $83.33 per share. The
Rights become exercisable (and separate from the shares) when certain specified events occur, including
the acquisition of 15% or more of the common stock by a person or group {an “Acquiring Person™) or the
commencement of a tender or exchange offer for 15% or more of the common stock.

In the event that an Acquiring Person acquires 15% or more of the common stock, or if we are the
surviving corporation in a merger involving an Acquiring Person or if the Acquiring Person engages in
certain types of self-dealing transactions, each Right entitles the holder to purchase for $83.33 per share
(or the then-current exercise price), shares of our common stock having a market value of $166.66 (or two
times the exercise price), subject to certain exceptions. Similarly, if we are acquired in a merger or other
business combination or 50% or more of our assets or earning power is sold, each Right entitles the holder
to purchase at the then-current exercise price that number of shares of common stock of the surviving
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3. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)
corporation having a market value of two times the exercise price. The Rights do not entitle the holder
thereof 1o vote or to receive dividends. The Rights will expire on August 6, 2007, and may be redeemed by
us for $.01 per Right under certain circumstances. On July 10, 2007, our Board of Directors adopted a new
Shareholders’ Rights plan effective August 7, 2007.

On June 20, 2006 our Board of Directors authorized us to purchase up to 1,500 shares of our common
stock on the market. This action superseded our previous stock repurchase plan which had remaining
authorization to purchase 1,255 shares.

4. Income Taxes
Our pre-tax income was substantially from domestic activities. The provision for income taxes on
continuing operations includes the following components:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federal . ....ovvrine et $ 6,863 $ 1,355 $1,034
oY 221 ¢ =P A 700 900 420
7,563 2,255 1,454
Deferred .. e e 20,411 8,433 2,112

$27,974 $10,688 §$3,566

The deferred tax provision results primarily from differences between financial reporting and taxable
income arising from depreciation and leveraged leases.

The provision for income taxes on continuing operations differs from the amount computed by
applying the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate of 35% for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 to income before
taxes, for the following reasons:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Provision for income taxes at the federal statutory rate .. $30,597 $16,279 § 8,073
Tax benefits on exempt earnings from export sales. ... (3,257)  (5,806)  (3,430)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit and refunds. 455 585 270
Changes in valuation allowance .................... — — (1,579
Reduction in income tax accrued liabilities and other . 179 (370) 228
Provision for income taxes on continuing operations .... $27,974 $10,688 § 3,566

In October of 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”) was signed into law and
included a number of Federal income tax reforms, including the phase-out of tax benefits on earnings from
export sales. This benefit was climinated effective December 31, 2006 resulting in a lower benefit on
exempt earnings from export sales during fiscal 2007.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2006, upon completion of our fiscal 2005 Federal income tax return,
we determined that the Company qualified for additional tax benefits of $1,606 related to higher than
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4. Income Taxes (Continued)

estimated margin on fiscal 2005 export activities. Similarly, we recorded a $496 benefit during the third
quarter of fiscal 2005 which primarily related to additional tax benefits from fiscal 2004 export activities,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets result primarily from the differences in the timing of the recognition
of transactions for financial reporting and income tax purposes and consist of the following components:

May 31,
2007 2006

Deferred tax assets-current attributable to:

IOV O Y COSIS . L Lttt ittt e e e $ 24,162 § 26,099

Employee benefits (accruals) ................ ... ... {878) (175)

Allowance for doubtful accounts .........oovieonn ... 1,293 1,473

Advanced billings andother .............................. 936 2,469

Total deferred tax assets-current ........oovviviionnnnon... $ 25513 § 29,866
Deferred tax assets-noncurrent attributable to:

Postretirement benefits (liabilities) . ................ ... ... $ 8366 § 7495

Alternative minimum tax carryforwards, NOL carryforwards

and foreign tax credit carryforwards ........... ... ... ... 1,063 16,545

Total deferred tax assets-noncurrent ... .................... $ 9,429 § 24,040

Total deferred tax assets . .........ccoterieneirirrnnnnne.. $ 34942 § 53,906
Deferred tax liabilities attributable to:

Depreciation . ..........ii i $(43,031) $(42,345)

Leveragedleases ......... ... ... ... ittt (6,518) (7,052)

Total deferred tax liabilities, .. ............................ $(49,549) $(49,397)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities). . ................ooie.. $(14,607) $ 4,509

As of May 31, 2007, we have determined that the realization of our deferred tax assets is more likely
than not, and that a valuation allowance is not required based upon our history of operaling earnings, the
nature of certain of our deferred tax assets, our expectations for continued future earnings and the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, primarily related to depreciation.

5. Earnings Per Share

The computation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during each period. The computation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period plus, when their effect is
dilutive, incremental shares consisting of shares subject to stock options, shares issuable upon vesting of
restricted stock awards and shares issuable upon conversion of convertible debt.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, we adopted the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue
No. 04-08, “The Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share” (“EITF
No. 04-08"), which requires companies to use the “if converted” method set forth in SFAS No. 128,
“Earnings Per Share,” for calculating diluted earnings per share when contingently convertible debt is
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5. Earnings Per Share (Continued)

outstanding. Under the “if converted” method, the after-tax effect of interest expense related to the
convertible securities is added back to net income, and the convertible debt is assumed to have been
converted into common shares at the beginning of the period. For comparative purposes, diluted earnings
per share information for all periods since the convertible debt securities were issued in February 2004
have been restated as required by EITF No. 04-03.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the computations of basic and diluted earnings per
share information for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2007 (shares in thousands).

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Income from continuing operations. ................. $59,447 $35,823 $19,498
Loss from discontinued operations, netoftax......... (787) (660)  (4,045)
NEtIMCOMIE . vttt ii it e e e e enns $58,660 $35,163 $15,453
Basic shares:
Weighted average common shares outstanding. ... .. 36,389 33,530 32,297
Earnings per share—basic:
Earnings from continuing operations .............. $ 163 § 107 § 060
Loss from discontinued operations, netof tax....... (0.02) (0.02) (0.12)
Earnings per share—basic..................... ... $ 161 § 105 § 048
Nt IMCOTNE . . oottt et iar st e nanrae e eanannnns $58,660 $35,163 $15453
Add: After-tax interest on convertible debt . ....... ... 1,965 1,461 1,230
Net income for diluted EPS caleulation .............. $60,625 $36,624 $16,683
Diluted shares:
Weighted average common shares outstanding. ... .. 36,389 33,530 32,297
Additional shares from the assumed exercise of stock
OPLIONS. . et i aa e 445 487 304
Additional shares from the assumed vesting of
restricted stock. .. .. ... oo 499 473 —
Additional shares from the assumed conversion of
convertibledebt........... ... ... i 5,976 4,362 3,604
Weighted average common shares outstanding—
diluted. ... 43,309 38,852 36,205
Earnings per share—diluted: :
Earnings from continuing operations .............. $ 142 $ 096 § 057
Loss from discontinued operations, netof tax . ... ... (0.02) (0.02) (0.11)
Earnings per share—diluted ...................... $ 140 $ 094 §$§ 046

At May 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, options to purchase 31 thousand, 1.2 million and
3.4 million shares of common stock were outstanding, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share, because the exercise price of these options was greater than the average market price
of the common shares.
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6. Employee Benefit Plans

We have defined contribution and defined benefit plans covering substantially al} full-time domestic
employees and certain employees in The Netherlands.

Defined Benefit Plans

Prior to January 1, 2000, the pension plan for domestic salaried and nen-union hourly employees had
a benefit formula based primarily on years of service and compensation. Effective January 1, 2000, we
converted our defined benefit plan for substantially all domestic salaried and certain hourly employees to a
cash balance pension plan. Under the cash balance pension plan, the retirement benefit is expressed as a
dollar amount in an account that grows with annual pay-based credits and interest on the account balance.
The interest crediting rate under our cash balance plan is determined quarterly and is equal to 100% of the
average 30-year treasury raie for the second month preceding the applicable quarter published by the
Internal Revenue Service. The average interest crediting rate under our cash balance plan for the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2007 was 4.93%. Effective June 1, 2005, the existing cash balance plan was frozen and
the annual pay-based credits were discontinued. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we recorded a
$667 curtailment loss associated with this change to the cash balance plan, Also effective June 1, 2003, the
defined contribution plan was modified to include increased employer contributions and an enhanced
profit sharing formula. Defined pension benefits for certain union hourly employees are based primarily on
a fixed amount per year of service.

Certain foreign operations of domestic subsidiaries also have a pension plan which is a defined benefit
plan. Benefit formulas are based generally on years of service and compensation. It is the policy of these
subsidiaries to fund at least the minimum amounts required by local laws and regulations.

We provide eligible outside directors with benefits upon retirement on or after age 65 provided they
have completed at least five vears of service as a director. Benefits are paid quarterly in cash equal to 25%
of the annual retainer fee payable to active outside directors. Payment of benefits commence upon
retirement and continues for a period equal to the total number of years of the retired director’s service up
to a maximum of ten years, or death, whichever occurs first. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, we
terminated the plan for any new members of the Board of Directors ¢lected after May 31, 2001.

We also provide supplemental retirement and profit sharing benefits for current and former
executives and key employees to supplement benefits provided by our other benefit plans.

Effective May 31, 2007, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”. SFAS No. 158 requires employers to recognize
the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan as an asset
or liability in its statement of financial position, recognize changes in that funded status in the year in
which the changes occur through comprehensive income and measure a plan’s assets and its obligations
that determine its funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year. We have historically measured
the plan assets and liabilities as of our balance sheet date.
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6. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)
Obligations and Funded Status

The following table sets forth the changes in projected benefit obligations and plan assets for all of our
pension plans:

May 31,

2007 2006
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ... ................... $84,427 § 90,829
R 4 1030 ) (PR 1,322 1,567
Interest COSt ... oot i e e 5,058 4,717
Plan participants’ contributions ............... ... ... ..., 271 252
Amendments ... ... — 104
Net actuarial loss {(gain)............... i, (436) (7,141)
Benefitspaid ...t e (5,835) (5,901)
Translation .. ...ttt i e e 4,640 —_
Benefit obligation atend of year. .............. ..ol $89,447 3 84427
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year. . ............... $75,121 § 69,859
Actual returnonplanassets . .......... it 8,471 6,731
Employer contributions . ........... ... 2,947 4,180
Plan participants’ contributions ............... ... .0 271 252
Benefitspaid ... i (5,835) (5,901)
ranslation . .. ... ... i i e e e e 5,070 —
Fair value of plan assetsatend ofyear ........................ $86,045 § 75,121
Funded statusatendofyear.............. ... coooiiireann.. $(3,402) § (9,306)
Unrecognized actuarial losses. ............... ... ..ot 24,416
Unrecognized prior SErvice COSt .........ovvvviinninnninn, 1,021
Accumutated other comprehensive loss—minimum pension
liability. ... oo (20,159}
Net amount 1ecognized ........c.vuiireneannerreneneannnens $ (4,028)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of the following:

May 31,
2007 7006
Deposits, prepaidsandother................... .. ..ol $§ — § 2633
11 =] g 1~ T 3,456 16,820
Accrued liabilities . ........ .. e (2,450)  (3,322)
Other liabilities and deferred income . ......................... (4,408) —

$(3,402) $16,131
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6. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

Amounts recognized in accumulated comprehensive loss, net of tax consisted of the following:

May 31,

2007 2006
ACtUATIAl 10SS . . .o ottt e e $13683 § —
PriOT SEIVICE COSt . . ittt it e et e et et e e a e 571 —
Minimum pension liability. ... e — 13,103
Total, .t e e e i e $14,254  $13,103

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, a minimum pension liability adjustment was required when
the actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits exceeded plan assets and accrued pension
liabilities. During fiscal 2007, we reduced the minimum pension liability by $3,104, and $1,921, net of tax,
was reported as a component of comprehensive income.

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets was as

| follows:
May 31,
2007 2006

| Projected benefit obligation. . ........... ... .. i, $65,027 $63,963
i Accumulated benefit obligation . ............ ... ... ..o 64,381 63,077
‘ Fairvalueof planassets........ ... ... .o i iinnnn. 58,170 53,307
! The accumulated benefit obligation for all pension plans was $82,820 and $82,077 as of May 31, 2007

and 2006, respectively.

Net Periodic Benefic Cost

Pension expense charged to results of operations includes the following components:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
SEIVICE COSt. o vt v ettt et e et $ 1,322 $ 1,567 § 2,841
Interest cost .. .. . i e e e 5,058 4,717 4,899
Expected return on plan assets . ..........oovv o nnns (6,029) (5,764) (5,701)
Amortization of prior service cost ....... ... ... 109 112 295
Recognized net actuarialloss ........................ 633 1,052 1,155
Transitional obligation . ............. ... ... . ... — — 68
Curtailment ........... ... .. . e — — 667
Settlementcharge ............ ... ... .. i 201 156 —

$1294 § 1,840 § 4,224
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6. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

Adoption of SFAS No. 158

Effective May 31, 2007, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 158. The incremental effect of
applying SFAS No. 158 for all of our plans on individual line items in the consolidated balance sheet as of
May 31, 2007 was as follows:

Before Application Adjustments After Application

of SFAS No. 158 Increase (Decrease) of SFAS No. 158
Deposits, prepaids and other............. $ 17,09 $ (4,489) $ 12,607
Other assets ....ovvvvrveinnennnnenan... 84,268 (14,614) 69,654
Totalassets . .....ooovvvini .., 1,086,736 (19,103) 1,067,633
Accrued liabilities ...................... 90,640 (18,618) 72,022
Deferred tax liabilities. . . ................ 42,026 (1,905) 40,121
Other liabilities and deferred income. .. ... 18,194 4,958 23,152
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. . .. (10,362) (3,537) (13,899)
Stockholders’ equity ............. ... ... 497,780 (3.537) 494243

Assumptions

The assumptions used in accounting for the Company’s plans are estimates of factors including,
among other things, the amount and timing of future benefit payments. The following table presents the
key assumptions used in the measurement of the Company’s benefit obligations:

May 31,
2007 2006
Domestic plans:
DiSCOUNE FALE . ..ottt et e ey e e ane s 6.05% 6.40%
Rate of compensationincrease................oociiiiiiie... 3.50 350
May 31,
2007 2006
Non-domestic plans:
Discount rate . ... ... . e 510% 4.75%
Rate of compensation increase. .. .........vviiiennenionennn.. 3.00 3.00
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6. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

A summary of the weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension expense is as
follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005

Domestic plans:

Discount rate ... ...ovvirii i e 6.40% 540% 6.50%

Rate of compensationincrease. . ...................... 3.50 3.00 3.00

Expected long-term return on plan assets. .............. 8.50 8.50 8.50
Non-domestic plans:

Discountrate ..........oitiiiiii i 475% 4.25% 550%

Rate of compensation increase. ....................... 3.00 3.00 3.25

Expected long-term return on plan assets. . ............. 6.50 6.50 6.50

The discount rate was determined by projecting the plan’s expected future benefit payments as
defined for the projected benefit obligation, discounting those expected payments using a theoretical zero-
coupon spot vield curve derived from a universe of high-quality bonds as of the measurement date, and
solving for the single equivalent discount rate that resulted in the same projected benefit obligation.
Constraints were applied with respect to callability and credit quality. In addition, 3% of the bonds were
deemed outliers due to questionable pricing information and consequently were excluded from
consideration.

Plan Assets

The following table sets forth the actual asset allocation and target allocations for our U.S. pension
plans:

May 31 Target Asset

2007 2006 Allocation

Equity securities. ... ... ..o 67% 65% 45-75%
Fixed income securities ............................. 21 27 25-55%
Other (fund-of funds hedge fund) .................... 12 8 0-20%

T T00%

The assets of U.S pension plans are invested in compliance with the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). The investment goals are to provide a total return that, over the long term,
optimizes the long-term return on plan assets at an acceptable risk, and to maintain a broad diversification
across asset classes and among investment managers. Direct investments in our securities and the use of
derivatives for the purpose of speculation are not permitted. The assets of the U.S. pension plans are
invested primarily in equity and fixed income mutual funds, individual common stocks and investments in
fund-of funds hedge funds.

The assets of the non-domestic plan are invested in compliance with local laws and regulations and
are comprised of insurance contracts and equity and fixed income mutual funds.
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6. Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

To develop our expected long-term rate of return assumption on domestic plans, we use long-term
historical return information for our targeted asset mix and current market conditions.

Cash Flow

The following table summarizes our estimated future pension benefits by fiscal year:

Fiscal Year
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 1o 2017
Estimated pension benefits ........ $7,022 $5,535 $5,523 35,504 $5.668  $29217

Our contribution policy for the domestic plans is to contribute annually, at a minimum, an amount
which is deductible for federal income tax purposes and that is sufficient to meet actuarially computed
pension benefits. We anticipate contributing $2,000 to $4,000 during fiscal 2008.

Additional Information

The estimated amounts for our plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive
income into expense over the next fiscal year are as follows:

o
-~
FaS]
|

Amortization of net actuarialloss . ......................
Amortization of prior servicecost ............. ... LL

-
[
£
o0

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

We provide health and life insurance benefits for certain eligible retirees. The postretirement plans
are unfunded, and we have the right to modify or terminate any of these plans in the future, in certain
cases, subject to union bargaining agreements. In fiscal 1995, we completed termination of postretirement
health and life insurance benefits attributable to future services of collective bargaining and other domestic
employees. The unfunded projected benefit obligation for this plan was $1,370 and $1,363 as of May 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. We have omitted substantially all of the required disclosures related to this
plan because the plan is not material to our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Effective May 31, 2007, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No, 158 for this plan resulting in an increase to-

comprehensive loss of $465, net of tax.

Defined Contribution Plan

The defined contribution plan is a profit sharing plan which is intended to qualify as a 401(k) plan
under the Internal Revenue Code. Under the plan, employees may contribute up to 75% of their pretax
compensation, subject to applicable regulatory limits. We may make matching contributions up to 5% of
compensation as well as discretionary profit sharing contributions, Company contributions vest on a pro-
rata basis during the first three years of employment. Expense charged to results of operations for
Company matching contributions, including profit sharing contributions, was $5,501 in fiscal 2007, $4,216
in fiscal 2006 and $897 in fiscal 2005.
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7. Aircraft Joint Ventures

We have invested in limited liability companies that are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. Qur membership interest in these limited liability companies is 50% and the primary business
of these companies is the acquisition, ownership, lease and disposition of certain narrow-body commercial
aircraft. Acquired aircraft are purchased with cash contributions by the members of the companies and
debt financing provided on a limited recourse basis. Twelve aircraft are held in the joint ventures at
May 31, 2007. Under the terms of a servicing agreement with certain of the limited liability companies, we
provide administrative services and technical advisory services, including aircraft evaluations, oversight and
logistical support of the maintenance process and records management. We also provide remarketing
services with respect to the divestiture of aircraft by the limited liability companies. During fiscal 2007,
2006 and 2005, we were paid $1,115, $574 and $229, respectively, for such services. The income tax benefit
or expense related to the operations of the ventures is recorded by the member companies.

Distributions from joint ventures are classified as operating or investing activities in the statement of
cash flows based upon an evaluation of the specific facts and circumstances of each distribution to
determine its nature.

Summarized financial information for these limited liability companies is as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Statement of operations information:
SaleS. . o e $81,626 $28,857 $11,249
Income before provision for income taxes ......... 16,877 3,314 1,136
May 31,
2007 2006
Balance sheet information:
A EES, ittt e e e e $117,185 $123,177
|37 o} AP 80,425 64,934
Members’ capital .. ... ... o 31,603 54,949

We also have an investment in an aircraft joint venture company that we consolidate. We consolidate
the financial position and results of operations of this joint venture because we are the primary beneficiary
of the joint venture. The equity interest of the other partner in the joint venture is recorded as a minority
interest, which was included in other non-current liabilities at May 31, 2007.

8. Equipment on Long-Term Lease

In August 2005, we entered into a ten-year agreement with a customer to provide supply chain
services for their fleet of CRJ 700/900 and ERJ 145 regional jets. As part of the agreement, we purchased
from the customer approximately $36,500 of equipment to support the program. The equipment was
purchased with an initial cash payment of $22,750, with the remaining balance of approximately $13,750
due in three installments ending in August 2008. The equipment is included in equipment on long-term
lease on the consolidated balance sheet and is being depreciated on a straight-line basis over 10 years to a
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8. Equipment on Long-Term Lease (Continued)

30% residual value. The current portion of the deferred payments is included in accounts payable and the
long-term portion is included in other liabilities and deferred income on the consolidated balance sheet.

In November 2005, we signed a similar supply chain services agreement with this same customer to
support their fleet of CRJ 200 regional jets. Under the terms of the agreement, we purchased from the
customer approximately $21,900 of equipment to support the program. The equipment was purchased with
an initial cash payment of $16,750, with the remaining balance of approximately $5,150 due in two
installments ending in August 2009. The deferred payment obligation is included in other liabilities and
deferred income on the consolidated balance sheet.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

On October 3, 2003, we entered into a sale-leaseback transaction whereby the Company sold and
leased back a facility located in Garden City, New York. The lease is classified as an operating lease in
accordance with SFAS No. 13 “Accounting for Leases”. Net proceeds from the sale of the facility were
$13,991 and the cost and related accumulated depreciation of the facility of $9,472 and $4,595, respectively,
were removed from the consolidated balance sheet. The gain realized on the sale of $9,114 has been
deferred and is being amortized over the 20-year lease term in accordance with SFAS No.13. The
unamortized balance of the deferred gain as of May 31, 2007 is $7,533 and is included in other liabilities
and deferred income on the consolidated balance sheet.

In June 2004, we signed an agreement to occupy a portion of the Indiapapolis Maintenance Center
(IMC). In fiscal 2005, we commenced airframe maintenance operations at the IMC and currently occupy
seven bays and certain office space, with options to occupy up to three additional bays. Under the terms of
the lease, we are entitled to receive rent credits as we increase the number of bays we occupy. During fiscal
2007, 2006 and 2005, we received $700, $1,700 and $350, respectively, of such rent credits and in
accordance with SFAS No. 13, we are treating the rent credits as lease incentives, which are being
amortized over the term of the lease.

In addition to the Garden City and IMC leases, we lease other facilities and equipment as well as
aviation equipment under agreements that are classified as operating leases that expire at various dates
through 2023. Future minimum payments under all operating leases at May 31, 2007 are as follows:

Future Minimum Payments

Facilities Aviation
Year and Equipment  Equipment
A $ 9,426 $3,840
1 8,385 3,840
2000 L e, 7,110 1,280
7 5,689 —
2002 e e e e 5,346 —
2013 and thereafter........... ... .. .. i i 25,642 —
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9. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Rental expense during the past three fiscal years was as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,
2007 2006 2005
Facilities and Equipment . .......................... $14,412 $12,514 $9,445
Aviation Equipment . ........... ... o oo 3,471 1,538 2,629

We routinely issue letters of credit and performance bends in the ordinary course of our business.
These instruments are typically issued in conjunction with insurance contracts or other business
requirements. The total of these instruments outstanding at May 31, 2007 was approximately $11,891.

We are involved in various claims and legal actions, including environmental matters, arising in the
ordinary course of business (see Item 3 Legal Proceedings). In the opinion of management, the ultimate
disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition
or results of operations.

10. Discontinued Operations

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we decided to exit our non-core industrial turbine business
based in Frankfort, New York. The industrial turbine business is a unit within the Structures and Systems
segment and is expected to be sold within 12 months. Net assets of the business were approximately $4,500
at May 31, 2007 and consisted of $1,800 of accounts receivable, $1,200 of inventory, $2,100 of net property,
plant and equipment and $600 of accounts payable.

On February 17, 2005, we sold substantially all of the assets, subject to certain liabilities, of our engine
component repair business, located in Windsor, Connecticut. The engine component repair business was a
unit within the Aviation Supply Chain segment. We received as consideration cash of $7,700 and acquired
inventory having a value of approximately $1,200, subject to certain adjustments. As a result of the
transaction, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $3,651 (82,321 after-tax), representing the loss on disposal. Of
the $3,651 pre-tax charge, severance charges were $287 and closing costs related to the transaction were
$619. The remaining portion of the charge of $2,745 represents the difference between the consideration
received and the net book value of the assets sold.

Revenues and pre-tax operating loss for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 for the discontinued
operations are summarized as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,
2007 2006 2005
ReVemnUES, .. i vt i e i e e $ 7,778 $11,766 $13,319
Pre-tax operating loss . ...........ooiiiii i, $(1,212) $(1,015) $(2,800)

11. Acquisitions

On January 12, 2007, we acquired substantially all the assets of Reebaire, a regional airframe
maintenance and repair overhaul facility located in Hot Springs, Arkansas. This acquisition increases our
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11. Acquisitions (Continued)

regional MRO capacity in North America. The purchase price was approximately $11,800 and was paid in
cash.

Our cost to acquire Reebaire has been preliminarily allocated to the assets acquired based on
estimated fair values. The allocation is subject to adjustment when additional information concerning asset
valuations is finalized. We have preliminarily allocated the purchase price as follows:

Lo 1) o $ 560
Equipment.... ..o 660
Identifiable intangibles ................. ... ... oL 1,580
Goodwill. ... e 9,000

We anticipate that the asset valuation will be completed in the first quarter of fiscal 2008.

On April 2, 2007, we acquired Brown, a privately held defense contractor that provides engineering,
design, manufacturing and systems integration services. Brown will operate as part of our Structures and
Systems segment. The purchase price was approximately $26,700 and was paid in cash. We have not yet
finalized the purchase price allocation for the Brown acquisition and are in the process of obtaining
valuations for the acquired net assets.

The results of operations subsequent to the date of the acquisitions are included in the consclidated
financial statements. Had the results of the acquisitions been included in the consolidated financial
statements for each of the periods presented, the effect would not have been material.

12. Gain on Sale of Product Line

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we sold substantially all assets, subject 1o certain liabilities, of a
product line within our Structures and Systems segment. Proceeds from the sale were $6,567 and the net
carrying value of the assets sold was $1,209, resulting in a gain on sale of product line of $5,358. The gain
on this transaction has been classified as a component of operating income in accordance with SFAS
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”.

13. Impairment Charges

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded an impairment charge related to certain engine
parts in the amount of $4,750. These parts were acquired prior to September 11, 2001, and were subject to
impairment charges recorded in fiscal 2003 and 2002. The fiscal 2007 impairment charge was triggered by
our decision to aggressively pursue the liquidation of this inventory. We made this decision to recognize
the impairment due to the impact of persistently high fuel costs and fewer operators on demand for these
parts, as well as to better align human and physical resources with higher potential opportunities in the
rapidly growing Aviation Supply Chain segment. We had previously recorded impairment charges of
$5,360 during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 and $75,900 during the second quarter of fiscal 2002 related
to engine and airframe parts and whole engines.
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13. Impairment Charges (Continued)

A summary of the carrying value of impaired inventory and engines, after giving effect to all
impairment charges recorded by us in fiscal 2007, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

May 31, May 31, May 31, November 30,
2007 2006 2005 2001

Net impaired inventory and engines. ...  $27,400 $36,000 $43,200 $89,600

Proceeds from sales of impaired inventory and engines for the twelve-month periods ended May 31,
2007, 2006, and 2005 were $3,800, $7,300 and $7,900, respectively.

Other Impairment and Gain on Extinguishment of Debt

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we restructured the lease and non-recourse debt on a wholly-
owned wide-body aircraft. This aircraft was originally purchased prior to September 11, 2001. As a result of
the restructuring of the lease and debt, we recorded a $2,927 gain on extinguishment of debt. Further, we
decided to offer this aircraft for sale and recorded a $2,902 impairment charge to reduce the carrying value
of the aircraft to its estimated net realizable value. At May 31, 2007, the carrying value of this aircraft is
$26,430 and is reported in equipment on or available for short term leasc on the consolidated balance
sheets.

14. Other Noncurrent Assets

At May 31, 2007 and 2006, other noncurrent assets consisted of the following:

May 31,
2007 2006
Capitalized program development Costs . ............oouvunin $24,343 § 7459
Cash surrender value of life insurance. . ...................... 9,729 8,444
Investment in leveragedlease . .............. ... ... ... ... 9,096 9,236
Notesreceivable. .. ...ttt e i e et e e 6,303 11,026
Dbt I5SUANCE COSIS . ..o\ttt ittt e e 5,327 5,956
Licensesand rights .. ... .. .. oo i iinens 1,871 2,357
O R . . e 12,985 23,577

$69,654 $68,055

Program Development Costs

In June 2005, we announced that our Cargo Systems business was selected to provide cargo handling
systems for the new A400M cargo aircraft. We are teaming with PFW on the program. Our portion of the
revenue from this program is expected to exceed $300,000 through fiscal 2015, based on sales projections
of the A400M. As of May 31, 2007, we have incurred approximately $24,000 of costs associated with the
engineering and development of the cargo system and have capitalized these costs in accordance with SOP
81-1 “Accounting for Performance of Construction—Type and Certain Production—Type Contracts”.
Sales and related cost of sales will be recognized on the units of delivery method.
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15. Business Segment Information
Segment Reporting

We report our activities in four business segments: Aviation Supply Chain; Maintenance, Repair and
Overhaul; Structures and Systems; and Aircraft Sales and Leasing.

Sales in the Aviation Supply Chain segment are derived from the sale and lease of a wide variety of
new, overhauled and repaired engine and airframe parts and components to the commercial aviation and
defense markets, as well as the repair and overhaul of a wide range of commercial and military aircraft
airframe parts. We also provide customized inventory supply and management programs and performance-
based logistics programs for engine and airframe parts and components. Sales also include the sale and
lease of commercial jet engines. Cost of sales consists principally of the cost of product (primarily aircraft
and engine parts), direct labor and overhead (primarily indirect labor, facility cost and insurance).

Sales in the Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul segment are principally derived from aircraft
maintenance and storage and the repair and overhaul of most commercial landing gear types. Cost of sales
consists principally of the cost of product (primarily replacement aircraft parts), direct labor and overhead.

Sales in the Structures and Systems segment are derived from the manufacture and sale of containers,
pallets and shelters used to support the U.S. military’s tactical deployment requirements, in-plane cargo
loading and handling systems for commercial and military applications and composite products for aviation
and industrial use. Cost of sales consists principally of the cost of product, direct labor and overhead.

Sales in the Aircraft Sales and Leasing segment are derived from the sale and lease of commercial
aircraft and technical and advisory services. Cost of sales consists principally of the cost of product
(aircraft), labor and the cost of lease revenue (primarily depreciation, lease expense and insurance).

The accounting policies for the segments are the same as those described in Note 1. Our chief
operating decision making officer (Chief Executive Officer) evaluates performance based on the
reportable segments and utilizes gross profit as a primary profitability measure. The expenses and assets
related to corporate activities are not allocated to the segments. Our reportable segments are aligned
principally around differences in products and services.

Gross profit is calculated by subtracting cost of sales from sales. Selected financial information for
each reportable segment is as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Net sales:
Aviation Supply Chain .............cooiiiii i $ 543,674 $461,166 $390,060
Maintenance, Repairand Overhaul ........... ... ... ..., ... 211,516 182,258 111,932
Structures and SYStEMS . ... .o i i i e e e 264,083 228,747 193,296
Aircraft Salesand beasing ............ ... .o il 41,896 13,347 45,139

$1,061,169 $885,518 $740,427
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15. Business Segment Information (Continued)
For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Gross profit:
Aviation Supply Chain ......... ... ... ..o, $ 114383 § 99,255 § 67,672
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul .. ........... ... ... ... ..., 29,915 25,914 14,414
Structures and Systems ... ... .. e 36,021 33,711 35,184
Aircraft Salesand Leasing .............. ..o i, 3,828 4,341 3,305
$ 184,147 §8163,221 $120,575
May 31,
2007 2006 2005
Total assets:
Aviation SupplyChain ............ ... .. .. $ 449918 $422,519 $298,477
Maintenance, Repairand Overhaul .. ......................... 124,482 91,332 86,271
Structures and Systems . .. .. ... .. i e 190,386 113,189 97,780
Ailrcraft Salesand Leasing .. ... ... ..o 156,357 141,158 119,581
COTPOTaLE ...t e e s 146,490 210,621 130,121

$1,067,633 $978,819 $732,230

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Capital expenditures:
Aviation Supply Chain ............ ... . .o $ 5376 $§ 5093 § 3,777
Maintenance, Repairand Overhaul ........... ... ... ... ... 4,742 2,556 2,817
Structures and SYSIEMS . .. . it i e e 18,601 6,806 5,222
Aircraft Salesand Leasing . .............. ... .. il 4 — 48
L0107 010 - 1 - O 1,168 1,841 1,169

$§ 29,891 § 16,296 § 13,033

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2008
Depreciation and amortization:
Aviation Supply Chain ............ .. ... ... $ 12,449 § 11,849 § 10,768
Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul ........................... 2,939 2,834 2,534
Structures and Systems ... ... e 4,939 4,929 4,481
Aircraft Salesand Leasing .. .. ... ... . i, 8,725 6,553 7,315
CorpOrate ... e e e 3,147 3,057 4,080

$ 32,199 § 29222 § 29,178
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15. Business Segment Information (Continued)

The following table reconciles segment gross profit to consolidated income before provision for
income taxes.

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Segment gross profit ........ ..o $ 184,147 $163,221 $120,575
Selling, general and administrative and other................... (105,091)  (99,551)  (86,226)
Earnings from aircraft joint ventures .. ........... ... ... .. 10,952 1,502 568
Gainonsaleof productline. ...l 5,358 —_ —
Gain (loss) on extinguishment ofdebt ................. ...t 2,927 (3,893) 3,562
Interest eXPense . . ... ..o vt e (16,701)  (18,004)  (16,917)
Interestincome and other .. ... ... it iinnnees 5,829 3,236 1,502
Income before provision for income taxes. ....................... $ 87421 § 46511 § 23,064

No single non-government customer represents 10% or more of total sales in any of the last three
fiscal years. Sales to the U.S. Department of Defense and its contractors by segment are as follows:

For the Year Ended May 31,

2007 2006 2005
Aviation Supply Chain. ... $ 75185 $ 77,340 § 69,027
Maintenance, Repairand Overhaul . ... 32,184 31,089 25,976
Structures and SySIEmMS . ... .0 o oo 217,911 185,349 154,213
$325,280 $293,778 $249.216
Percentage of totalsales. ... ... ... ... . i 30.7% 33.2% 33.7%
Geographic Data
May 31,
2007 2006

Long-lived assets:

NIt SlaTES « ot vttt ittt et et e et et ar ae e e e $410,285 $343,121

R o o= 11,440 11,090

0 11 =) o 187 154

$421,912  $354,365

Export sales from our U.S. operations to unaffiliated customers, the majority of which are located in
Europe, the Middle East, Canada, Mexico, South America and Asia (including sales through foreign sales
offices of domestic subsidiaries), were approximately $220,974 (20.8% of total sales), $180,752 (20.4% of
total sales) and $178,025 (24.0% of total sales) in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

60




AAR CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{Dollars in thousands, exept per share amounts)

16. Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)
The unaudited selected quarterly data for fiscal years ended May 31, 2007 and 2006 follows.

Fiscal 2007
Net Income  Diluted Earnings
from Per Share-
Continuing Continuing
Quarter Sales Gross Profit Operations Operations
FIrst oo $ 240,242 $ 3537 $12,229 $0.30
Second........... ... ...l 244,272 45,903 13,982 0.34
Third. ... 270,978 47,275 15,519 0.37
Fourth ...... ... .. . 305,677 55,598 17,717 0.42
$1,061,169 $184,147 $59,447 $1.42
Fiscal 2006
Net Income  Diluted Earnings
from Per Share-
Continuing Continuing
Quarter Sales {iross Profit QOperations Operations
First ... e $197,073 $ 34418 $ 5,335 $0.15
Second ....... ... 215,394 37,621 7,944 0.22
Third. ... 223,398 43,106 9,195 0.24
Fourth ... .. .. ... . L 249 653 48,076 13,349 0.32
$885,518 $163,221 $35,823 $0.96
17. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
May 31,
2007 2006 2005
Balance, beginningof year ......... ... .. o i $ 6466 $ 583 $ 6,310
Provision charged to operations ................................ 1,500 2,580 2,391
Deductions for accounts written off, net of recoveries ............. (4,081 (1977 (2,838)
Balance, end of year. . ......oooiiein e $3885 $6466 $ 5863
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As required by Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Act, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of May 31, 2007.
This evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with participation of our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure
controls and procedures. Therefore, effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide
reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives. Based upon our evaluation, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as
of May 31, 2007, ensuring that information required to be disclosed in the reports that are filed under the
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported in a timely manner.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three-month period
ended May 31, 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting,

The Company’s Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the ticker
symbol “AIR”. On October 27, 2006, our Chief Executive Officer certified to the NYSE pursuant to
Rule 303A.12(a) that, as of the date of that certification, he was not aware of any violation by the Company
of the NYSE’s Corporate Governance listings standards.

MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of AAR CORP. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Act. The
Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems which are determined to be effective provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting based on
criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Based on our assessment, management concluded that the Company maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of May 31, 2007. Our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of May 31, 2007, has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report which is included herein.

The scope of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
includes all of our Company’s consolidated subsidiaries except for Brown International Corporation
(“Brown™), a business acquired by our Company on April 2, 2007. Qur Company’s consolidated net sales
for the year-ended May 31, 2007 were $1,061,169 of which Brown represented $12,368. Our Company’s
consolidated total assets as of May 31, 2007 were $1,067,633, of which Brown represented $33,043.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
TO THE STOCKHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF AAR CORP.;

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that AAR CORP. and subsidiaries (the Company) maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of May 31, 2007, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COS0O). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3)provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of May 31, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
May 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSQO.

The scope of management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
as of May 31, 2007 includes all of the Company’s consolidated subsidiaries except for Brown International
Corporation (Brown), a business acquired by the Company on April 2, 2007. The Company’s consolidated
net sales for the year-ended May 31, 2007 were $1,061,169, of which Brown represented $12,368. The
Company’s consolidated total assets as of May 31, 2007 were $1,067,633 of which Brown represented
$33,043. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation
of the internal control over the financial reporting of Brown.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of May 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended May 31, 2007, and our report dated July 19, 2007 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

KPMG LLP
Chicago, Illinois
July 19, 2007
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART 111
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item regarding the Directors of the Company and nominees for
election of the Board is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption “Board
of Directors” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The information required by this item regarding the Executive Officers of the Company appears
under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part 1, [tem 4 above.

The information required by this item regarding the compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitive proxy statement for the
2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The information required by this item regarding the identification of the Audit Committee as a
separately-designated standing committee of the Board is incorporated by reference to the information
contained under the caption “Board Committees” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, and information required by this item regarding the status of one or more
members of the Audit Committee being an “audit committee financial expert” is incorporated by reference
to the information contained under the caption “Board Committees” in our definitive proxy statement for
the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The information required by this item regarding our Code of Business Ethics and Conduct applicable
to our directors, officers and employees is incorporated by reference to the information contained under
the caption “Corporate Governance Information” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

There have been no material changes to the procedures by which stockholders may recommend
nominees to the Company’s board of directors. For a description of those procedures, see the caption
“Board of Directors” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information contained
under the captions “Executive Compensation and Other Information”, “Compensation Committee
Report”, “Employment and Other Agreements™ and “Direciors’ Compensation” in our definitive proxy
statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockhoiders.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management is incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption “Security
Ownership of Management and Others” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
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The following table provides information as of May 31, 2007 with respect to the Company’s
compensation plans under which equity securities of the Company are authorized for issuance:

Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options,  outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a})
(2) (b} (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders. . .................. 2,135 $18.30 3,368
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders ................. — — —
Total........coveiiei i 2,135 $18.30 3,368

|
|

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information contained
under the captions “Board of Directors—Director Independence” and “Corporate Governance
Information—Related Party Transactions” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information contained
under the caption “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Services” in our definitive
proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(1) and (2) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Disclosures

The following financial statements are filed as a part of this report under “Item 8-—Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data”

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . ............. .. ... .. ... oL,
Financial Statements—AAR CORP. and Subsidiaries:
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three years ended May 31,2007 ...............
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of May 31,2007and 2006 . ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ....
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the three years ended May 31, 2007.... ...
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended May 31,2007 ...............
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ... . it
Selected quarterly data (unaudited) for the years ended May 31, 2007 and 2006
(Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).............coiveiinieiinnonn..

(a)(3) Exhibits

The Exhibits filed as part of this report are set forth in the Exhibit Index contained elsewhere herein.
Management contracts and compensatory arrangements have been marked with an asterisk (*) on the

Exhibit Index.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this annual report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,

thereunto duly authorized.

Date: July 20, 2007

AAR CORP.
(Registrant)

BY: /s/ DAVID P. STORCH

David P. Storch

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this annual report on
Form 10-K has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

Title

Date

/s/ David P. Storch

David P. Storch
s/ Timothy J. Romenesko

Timothy J. Romenesko
fs/ Richard J. Poulton

Richard J. Poulton
/s/ Michael J. Sharp

Michael J. Sharp
/s/ Michael R. Boyce

Michael R. Boyce

/s/ James G. Brocksmith, Jr.

James G. Brocksmith, Jr.
/s/ Gerald F. Fitzgerald, Jr.

Gerald F, Fitzgerald, Jr.
/s{ Ronald R. Fogleman

Ronald R. Fogleman

fs/ James E. Goodwin

James E. Goodwin

fs/ Patrick J. Kelly

Patrick J. Kelly
/s/ Marc J. Walfish

Marc J. Walfish
/s/ Ronald B. Woodard

Ronald B. Woodard

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; Director
{Principal Executive Officer)

President and Chief Operating Officer; Director

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President and Controfler (Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, David P. Storch, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of AAR CORP. (the “Registrant”), certify
that:

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of AAR CORP,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) FEwvaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
DATE: July 20, 2007

/s/ DAVID P, STORCH
David P. Storch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Richard J. Poulton, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of AAR CORP. (the “Registrant”),
certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of AAR CORP.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f}) for the Registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
Registrant’s ahility to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control aver financial reporting.

DATE: July 20, 2007

/s/ RICHARD J. POULTON
Richard J. Poulton
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the AAR CORP. (the “Company”) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending May 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, David P. Storch, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify pursuant to 18 us.C
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: July 20, 2007 /s/ DAVID P. STORCH
David P. Storch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the AAR CORP. (the “Company”) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period
ending May 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Richard J. Poulton, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: July 20, 2007 /s/ RICHARD J. POULTON
Richard J. Poulton
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer




3 AAR CORP

One AAR Place
1100 N. Wood Dale Road
Wood Dals, IL 60191

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2007

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of AAR CORP. for the year 2007 will be held at AAR CORP.’'s
headquarters, One AAR Place, 1100 North Wood Dale Road, Wood Dale, lllinois, on Wednesday,
October 17, 2007, at 9:00 A.M. (Chicago time). At the meeting, stockholders will be asked to:

1. Elect four Class Il directors to serve until the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders;

2. Ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting
firm for the fiscal year ending May 31, 2008;

3. Transact any other business that may properly come before the 2007 Annual Meeting or any
adjournment(s) or postponement(s) of the meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Howard A. Pulsifer
Secretary

August 31, 2007
YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

PLEASE DATE AND SIGN THE ENCLOSED PROXY AND RETURN IT IN THE ENCLOSED
STAMPED, ADDRESSED ENVELOPE, OR SUBMIT YOUR PROXY BY TELEPHONE OR THE
INTERNET SO THAT IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING, YOUR SHARES MAY
NEVERTHELESS BE VOTED. NO POSTAGE IS REQUIRED FOR MAILING IN THE UNITED
STATES.




2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
PROXY STATEMENT
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One AAR Place
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3 AAR CORP

One AAR Place
1100 N. Wood Dale Road
Wood Dale, lllinois 60191

PROXY STATEMENT

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
Qctober 17, 2007

I. VOTING INFORMATION

This Proxy Statement and the enclosed proxy card were mailed to stockholders on or about
August 31, 2007, in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of the
Company to be used at the 2007 Annual Meeting (“Annual Meeting”).

Who is entitled to vote?

If you were a stockholder of record {i.e., you hold your shares in your own name rather than through a
broker, bank or other nominee) on August 20, 2007, the Company's record date, you may vote your
shares at the Annual Meeting. If you were a street-name stockholder {i.e., you hold your shares
through a broker, bank or other nominee) on that date, you are considered a “beneficial owner” of the
stock. To vote those shares at the Annual Meeting, you must give voting instructions to your broker,
bank or other intermediary who is the “nominee holder” of your shares. The Company has directed
brokers, banks and other nominee holders to obtain voting instructions from their beneficial owners.
Proxies submitted by nominee holders on behalf of beneficial owners will count toward a quorum and
will be voted as instructed by the nominee holder. You will receive additional instructions from your
broker, bank or other nominee explaining how you may vote your shares held in street name. A list of
registered stockholders entitled to vote will be available at the Company’s offices, 1100 N. Wood Dale
Road, Wood Dale, lllinois, for 10 days prior to the meeting and at the meeting location during the
meeting. '

How do stockholders vote by proxy or in person?

If you owned common stock of the Company (“Common Stock”) outstanding at the close of business
on the record date, August 20, 2007, you may vote at the Annual Meeting by completing, signing,
dating and returning your proxy card in the postage-paid, addressed envelope provided, or you may
vote in person at the Annual Meeting. On that date, 37,882,324 shares of Common Stock were
outstanding. You will have one vote on each matter to be voted on for each share you owned on the
record date. '

How do stockholders vote by telephone or through the internet?

You are encouraged to vote either by telephone or through the internet. This will eliminate the need to
sign, date and return your proxy card. You can vote by telephone or through the internet 24 hours a
day, seven days a week, until 1:00 a.m. (central time) until the day of the Annual Meeting. If you vote
by telephone or through the internet, please do not return your proxy card.

« To vote by telephone:

> using a touch-tone phone, call 1-800-652-VOTE (8683) toll-free, enter the control
number imprinted on your proxy card, and follow the voice prompts




+ To vote through the internet:

> Log onto the internet website at hitp://www.investorvote.com/expressvote and enter
your voter control number imprinted on your proxy card and mark the appropriate
boxes to enter voting instructions

How does a stockholder revoke a proxy?

Yau may revoke your vote at any time befare your proxy is exercised, but only by (i) vating in person
at the Annual Meeting, (ii) submitting another proxy by telephone or through the internet, or

(iiiy delivering a later dated, signed proxy to the Secretary of the Company.

How will proxy holders vote shares?

Proxies will be voted in accordance with instructions on the proxy. If no instructions are specified, the
proxy will be voted FOR the election of the nominees for Class I director designated by the Board,
FOR the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm, and upon any other matter that may properly come before the Annual Meeting
in the discretion and best judgment of the named proxy holders. If any director nominee becomes
unavailable for election for any reason prior to the Annual Meeting vote, the Board may reduce the
number of directors to be elected or substitute another person as nominee, and the named proxy
holders will vote for the substitute nominee.

How will votes be counted?

All votes cast in person or by proxy will be tabulated by the inspectors of election appointed for the
Annual Meeting. A majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote, present in
person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting, will constitute a quorum. The inspectors of
election will treat directions to withhold authority, abstentions and broker non-votes (i.e., where a
nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner has not received voting instructions from the beneficial
owner with respect to a particular matter and such ncminee does not possess or choose to exercise
his discretionary authority with respect to such matter) as shares that are present for purposes of
determining a guorum. Directions to withhold authority will have no effect on the election of directors,
because directors are elected by a plurality of votes cast. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be
disregarded for purposes of determining whether a matter has been approved, because they are not
considered votes cast. it is not anticipated that there will be any broker non-votes on the eiection of
directors or the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP since brokers will have discretion to vote
on these proposals.

Who is the Company’s proxy solicitor?

The Company has engaged D. F. King & Co., 48 Wall Street, New York, New York, to assist the
Company in soliciting proxies at a total estimated cost of $10,000, plus reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses. The cost of soliciting proxies will be paid by the Company. D. F. King & Co. may solicit
proxies by mail, telephone, facsimile, e-mail, of in person. Centain officers, directors and smployees of
the Company may also solicit proxies.




Il. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INFORMATION

General

The Company has an ongoing commitment to good governance and business practices. We regularly
review our policies and procedures, giving due consideration to current developments and “best
practices” in the area of corporate governance. We comply with all applicable Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) rules and regulations and New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE") listing
rules and have adopted additional corporate governance practices that we believe are in the best
interests of the Company and its stockholders,

Copies of the following corporate governance documents are available on the Company’s web site
(www.aarcorp.com/investorrelations/corporategovernance):

» Corporate Governance Guidelines

Categorical Standards and Policy for Determining Director independence

Director Nominating Process and Selection Guidelines
Code of Business Ethics and Conduct
Audit Committee Charter

Compensation Committee Charter

Nominating and Governance Committee Charter
¢ Executive Committee Charter

All these corporate governance documents are also avaitable in print to any stockholder upon written
request to the Secretary of the Company at the Company's address listed on the first page of this
Proxy Statement. The Company’s Code of Business Ethics and Conduct adopted by the Board of
Directors applies to all employees, officers and directors of the Company, including the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, the President and Chief Operating Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Chief Accounting Officer and Controller. Employees are encouraged to report to the Company any
conduct that they believe in good faith to be in violation of the Code of Business Ethics and Conduct.
Amendments to the Code of Business Ethics and Conduct and any waivers from the Code granted by
the Board to directors or executive officers will be filed with the SEC in accordance with applicable . -
rules and regulations and posted on the Company's web site under the corporate governance link
cited above. > -

The Company maintains an Ethics Assist Line through a third-party provider to receive confidential
complaints, information, suggestions or recommendations, anonymously or otherwise, concerning the
Company, its officers, directors and employees, policies, procedures, employment and business
practices, accounting or audit matters, financial reporting or compliance with other Company policies
or applicable regulatory or legal requirements. The Ethics Assist Line is toll-free and permits callers, at
their election, to identify themselves or remain anonymous. The Ethics Assist Line can be accessed by
dialing 1-800-418-6423 (x227) or via e-mail to confide2sv@securityvoice.com.

Information concerning insider transactions in the Company’s securities (SEC Section 16(a) Forms 3, 4
and 5) is also available on the Company’s web site (www.aarcorp.com/investor relations/insider trading).

Information concerning the structure, composition and independence of the Board of Directors and
Committees of the Board of Directors, as well as information regarding director nomination and
recommendation procedures, is provided in Section IV, “Board of Directors,” on page 7.



Related-Party Transactions

The Nominating and Governance Committee reviews, and makes recommendations to the Board of
Directors with respect to, all related-party transactions and relationships involving a director or
executive officer and the Company. The Company has no separate related-party transaction policy;
rather, various policy and procedures, including the Company’s Code of Business Ethics and
Conduct and the annul directors’ and officers’ guestionnaires, require disclosure of transactions or
relationships that may constitute conflicts of interest or require disclosure or affect an independence
determination under the applicable SEC rules. Upoen learning of a transaction or a relationship that
may constitute a conflict of interest, require disclosure or cause a director not to be treated as
independent, the Nominating and Governance Committee determines if further investigation is
required and, if so, whether it should be conducted by the Company’s legal, internal audit, or other
staff, or by outside advisors. The Nominating and Governance Committee reviews the related-party
transaction or relationship, including the results of any investigation, and makes a recommendation to
the Board of Directors whether to approve or reject the transaction or relationship. The Board of
Directors then considers the matter and makes its decision. Transactions and relationships that are
determined to be directly or indirectly material to the Company or a related person are disclosed in
the Company’s Proxy Statement.

Mr. Ira A. Eichner, a former director and Founder and Chairman of the Board of the Company, who
retired from the Board on October 19, 2005, provides consulting services to the Company pursuant to
a consuiting agreement that expires on October 18, 2010, under which he receives a quarterly
consulting fee in the amount of $37,500. During Fiscal 2007, Mr. Eichner received $150,000 in
consulting fees. Mr. Eichner is Founder and Chairman of the Board Emeritus, an honorary position,
and Mr. Storch's father-in-law.

Director nominee Norman R. Bobins is the Chairman of the Board and a former President and Chief
Executive Officer of LaSalle Bank Corporation (“LaSalle Bank”) and former Senior Executive Vice
President of ABN AMRO Bank N.V., the Dutch parent of LaSalle Bank. Since August, 2008, the
Company has been party to a $140,000,000 unsecured revolving credit facility with LaSalle Bank
National-Association, an affiliate of LaSalle Bank, and various other Lenders. LaSalle Bank’s
participation under the facility is $40,000,000. Under certain circumstances the revolving credit
commitment can be increased up to a maximum of $175,000,000. The credit facility expires on
August 31, 2010 and borrowings bear interest at LIBOR plus 125 to 200 basis points depending on
specified financial measurements. The credit facility also includes a non-use fee which is currently 30
basis points on the unused portion of the facility. The facility was made in the ordinary course of
business and on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable loans. There were no borrowings outstanding under this facility
during Fiscal 2007 and no interest was paid. The Company paid approximately $600 000 in fees and
non-use charges under the facility during Fiscal 2007.




Il. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS

The following tables show the shares of Common Stock beneficially owned, as of July 31, 2007, by

(i) each current director and nominee for election to the Board, (i) each executive officer named in the
Summary Compensation Table, (iii) all directors and executive officers of the Company as a group,
and (iv) each beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. Except
as noted, the nature of beneficial ownership for shares shown in the tables is sole voting and
investment power, and none of the shares shown in the tables are ptedged by any of the persons
listed.

Security Ownership of Management

Shares Percent of Shares
Beneficially Qutstanding if
Name Owned' Greater than 1%
NOMMAN R, BOBINS . . o oot iiiae et it isa e aa e ma e aa s ¢
MIChEE! R BOYEE . . .o o vttt et 7,000
James G. Brocksmith, Jr.. c . oo v i et i s 22,000
JAMES J ClarK . . e 208,600
Gerald F. Fitzgerald, Jr. .. ... oottt 12,500
Ronald R. FOQIBMAN . ... ...t 22,000
JAMES E. GOOOWIN . oo oo ettt ae ittt e 24,000
PAtFCK J. KEIY © o v ot et e e 10,5002
Mark MEDONAIG . .. oo v ottt ittt e e e 11,521°
Howard A. PUISIIEN . ..ot et a it aa i 195,672
Timothy J. ROMENESKO . .. .o oeut it 247,089
DAVIA P. SlOMCN & ottt et e ittt i e 1,750,176* 4.67%
Mare J. WaiSN . . . .ottt et i e 29,000
Ronald B. WOoOaM . .. oo iiir i i 8,500
All directors and executive officers A8 @ groUP . ... voe vt i vttty 2,548,5581234 6.63%

1 includes the following shares of the identified person that may be acquired within sixty days of July 31, 2007 through the
exercise of stock options: Mr. Brocksmith, 17,000 shares; Mr. Clark, 98,094 shares; Mr. Fogleman, 17,000 shares;
Mr. Goodwin, 17.000 shares; Mr. Pulsifer, 113,678 shares; Mr. Romenesko, 146,868 shares; Mr. Storch, 881,183 shares;
Mr. Walfish, 17,000 shares; and Mr. Woodard, 3,500 shares; and all directors and executive officers as a group, 2,439,145
shares.

2 |ncludes B,000 shares beneficially owned through KMK & Associates, LLC in which Mr, Kelly is a one-third owner.

3 |ncludes 3,700 shares beneficially owned by Mr. McDonald's dependent children, as to which Mr. McDonald disclaims
beneficial ownership.

* Includes 26,224 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Storch’s wife (18,810 shares) and minor children (7,414 shares), as to
which Mr. Storch disclaims beneficial ownership.




Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

Name and Address Shares Percent of Shares
of Beneficial Qwner Beneficially Owned Qutstanding
Barclays Global

45 Fremont Street

San Francisco, CA94105. . ... ... . ... it e 1,899,057" © 5.16%
FMR Corp.

82 Devonshire Street

Boston, MA Q2100 . ... ... . e e 4,047,126° 10.98%
Lord, Abbett & Co. LLC

90 Hudson Strest

Jarsey City, NJO7302. ... ...ttt 2,254 571% 6.14%

Putnarm Investments
One Post Office Square
Boston, MA D210 . . .. . i i e i 1,643,418¢ 5%

Based on a Schedule 13G filing dated January 9, 2007, the reporting person disclosed beneficial ownership with respect to
the shares as follows:

(i) sole voting power: 1,752,244
(i) shared voting power: 0
(i}  sole investment power: 1,899,057
(iv)  shared investment power: 0

¢ Based on a Schedule 13G filing dated February 14, 2007, the reporting person disclosed beneficial ownership with respect
to the shares as follows:

(i sole voting power: 1,010,400
(i1 shared voting power: 0
(i)  sole investment power: 4,047,126
(iv)  shared investment power: 0

* Based on a Schedule 13G filing dated February 12, 2007, the reporting person disclosed beneficial ownership with respect
to the shares as follows:

0] sole voting power: 2,103,871
(i) shared voting power: 0
(iii) sole investment power: 2,254,571
(iv}  shared investment power: 0

* Based on a Schedule 13G filing dated February 3, 2008, the reporting person disclosed beneficial ownership with respect to
the shares as follows:

) sole voting power: 0
{ii} shared voting power: 366,495
(i) sole investment power: 0
fivy  shared investment power: 1,643,416




Section 16(a) Beneficlal Ownership Reporting Compliance

Based solely upon a review of SEC Forms 3, 4 and 5 and upon related written representations
furnished to the Company with respect to its most recent fiscal year, the Company believes that each
person who, at any time during the fiscal year, was a director or officer filed on a timely basis all
reports required by Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, during the
most recent fiscal year, except that Mr. McDonald filed a late Form 4 reporting a stock option exercise
of 64,140 shares and the sale of 37,780 shares used to pay the related option exercise price and
withholding taxes.

IV. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Restated Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Company provide that the Board shall
consist of between three and fifteen directors, with the exact number of directors to be set from time to
time by the Board. The number of directors is presently set at eleven with one vacancy for which the
Board of Directors has proposed and recommends a nominee to be elected by Stockholders at the
October Annual meeting. The members of the Board are divided into three classes: Class | (three
directors), Class Il (four directors) and Class Il (four directors). One class is elected each year for a
three-year term.

During the fiscal year beginning June 1, 2006 and ending May 31, 2007 (“Fiscal 2007"), the Board
held five meetings. Seven incumbent directors attended 100% of the aggregate meetings of the Board
and the committees on which they served during Fiscal 2007; due to medical reasons, Mr. Boyce and
Mr. Walfish attended less than 75% of the aggregate meetings of the Board and the committees on
which they served. All the members of the Company’s Board of Directors attended the Company's
2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Director Independence

A majority of the members of the Board of Directors must be independent directors under the criteria .
established by the Board and under applicable NYSE rules. The Nominating and Governance
Committee and the Board of Directors review each director annually and make a determination
concerning independence after consideration of all known facts and circumstances. The Board has
established categorical standards to assist it in determining director independence. The Company’s
“Categorical Standards and Policy for Determining Director Independence” include all of the elements
of the applicable SEC and NYSE rules with respect to director independence, as well as those of the
Company, and are attached as Appendix 1 to this Proxy Statement. Based on these categorical
standards and its review of all relevant facts and information available and the recommendations of
the Nominating and Governance Committee, the Board, at its meeting in July 2007, affirmatively
determined that no director has a material relationship with the Company that would impair the
director’s ability to exercise independent judgment and, accordingly, each director is an independent
director, except for David P. Storch, due to his status as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and Timothy J. Romenesko, due to his status as President and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company. Under the NYSE rules, a director employed by the Company is not
an independent director by definition.

The Board of Directors also affirmatively determined that director nominee Norman R. Bobins is
independent. Mr. Bobins is the Chairman of the Board and former President and Chief Executive
Officer of LaSalle Bank and former Executive Senior Vice President of ABN AMRO Bank N.V., the
Dutch parent of LaSalle Bank. The Company has an unsecured revolving credit facility with LaSalle
Bank National Association, an affiliate of LaSalle Bank. See "Corporate Governance Information —
Related-Party Transactions” for additional information regarding this transaction. The Board
considered this relationship in making its affirmative determination that Mr. Bobins is independent.



Executive Sessions

Independent directors of the Board meet in executive session without management as part of each
regular Board meeling and otherwise when circumstances deern it advisable or necessary. The
Chairman of the Nominating and Governance Committee presides at the executive sessions of
independent directors.

Communications with the Board of Directors

Stockholders and other interested parties may communicate with the Board, the Chairman of the
Board, independent directors as a group, or any individual director or Committee Chairman by mail
addressed to: AAR CORP., Attention: Independent Directors, or the name of the individual director,
cf/o Corporate Secretary, AAR CORP., 1100 N. Wood Dale Road, Wood Dale, lllincis 60191. The
independent members of the Board of Directors have approved procedures for the processing, review
and disposition of all communications sent by stockholders or other interested parties to the Board of
Directors. -

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors

Alt directors are subject to the Company's Code of Business Ethics and Conduct. Each director is
furnished a copy of the Code of Business Ethics and Conduct at the time he becomes a director.

Board Committees

The Board has an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, a Nominating and Governance
Commitiee, and an Executive Committee. The following table shows the committee structure and
membership:

Nominating &

Audit Compensation Governance Executive
Director Committee Committee Committee Committee
Michael R.BoyCe. ......... .o i X X
James G, Brocksmith, Jr.. ... ... ... i e X Chair
Gerald F.Fitzgerald, Jr. ... ... X
RonaldR.Fogleman ...............coiiivniinneean, X Chair
JamesE. Goodwin. .. ... ... . ... i e Chair X X
Patrick J Kelly . ...t X .
Timothy J, Romenesko ........ ... ... ot X
DavidP.Storch ....... . ... . it Chair
MarcJ. Walfish. ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... .. X X X
RonaldB.Woodard . ............v i X X

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors qualified to serve on the Audit
Committee under applicable SEC regulations, NYSE rules and the Company’s Categorical Standards
and Policy for Determining Director Independence. Its members are James E. Goodwin {Chairman},
James G. Brocksmith, Jr., Gerald F. Fitzgerald, Jr., Marc J. Walfish, and Ronald B. Woodard. The
Board of Directors has determined that each member of the Audit Committee is an “audit committee
financial expert,” within the meaning of applicable SEC rules. In addition, the Board of Directors has
determined that service by Mr. Brocksmith on the Audit Committee of more than three public
companies does not impair his ability to serve effectively on the Company's Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee acts pursuant to a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors. The charter
was last reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors at their July 2007
meetings. The fulf text of the Audit Committee charter appears on the Company’s web site and is
available in print to any stockholder upon written request to the Secretary of the Company at the
Company's address listed on the first page of this Proxy Statement.

The Audit Committee is primarily concerned with the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and the performance of the Company’s internal
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audit function and independent registered accounting firm. The Audit Committee performs the specific
functions described in its charter and, among other things:

« approves and engages the independent registered public accounting firm who audits the
Company’s consolidated financial statements;

« pre-approves all non-audit/audit related services furnished by the independent registered
public accounting firm;

« maintains communication between the Board and the independent registered public
accounting firm; : .

+ monitors the qualifications, mdependence and performance of the independent reglstered
public accounting firm,

« oversees and reviews the Company’s financial reporting processes and practices;

¢ oversees and reviews the quality and adequacy of internal controls over financial reporting,
disclosure controls and the organization and performance of the Company’s internal audit
department;

« reviews the scope and results of audits; and

» meets with the independent registered public accounting firm representatives and internal audit
department representative without members of management present.

The Audit Committee held seven meetings during Fiscal 2007. The Audit Commlttee Report for Fiscal
2007 appears on page 42.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors as defined under
applicable NYSE rules and the Company’s Categorical Standards and Policy for Determining Director
Independence. lts members are James G. Brocksmith, Jr. (Chairman), Michael R. Boyce, Ronaid R.
Fogleman, Patrick J. Keily, and Ronald B. Woodard.

The Compensation Committee acts pursuant to a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors.
The charter was |ast reviewed by the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors at their
July 2007 meetings. The full text of the Compensation Committee charter appears on the Company’s
web site and is available in print to any stockholder upon written request to the Secretary of the
Company at the Company's address listed on the first page of this Proxy Statement. The
Compensation Committee is primarily concerned with establishing, reviewing and approving Chief
Executive Officer compensation, reviewing and approving other senior executive compensation and
overseeing the Company’s Stock Benefit Plan and any other compensation and employee benefit
plans. The Compensation Committee performs the specific functions descrlbed in its charter and
among other things: ‘

« reviews and approves compensation policies and practices for all elected corporate officers,
including named executive officers;

» fixes the compensation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and, together with the fuII
Board, evaluates the Chief Executlve Officer's performance; .

« administers the Company’s annual cash incentive and long-term stock incentive programs for
officers, the AAR CORP. Stock Benefit Ptan, and the AAR Section 162(m) Incentive Goal
Program;

» recommends director compensation and benefits to the Board for approval; and

« oversees administration of certain other employee benefit, director deferred compensation,
savings and retirement plans.




The Compensation Committee held three meetings during Fiscal 2007. The Compensation Committee
Report for Fiscal 2007 appears on page 17.

Nominating and Governance Committee

The Nominating and Governance Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors as
defined under applicable NYSE rules and the Company’s Categorica! Standards and Policy for
Determining Director Independence. Its members are Ronald R. Fogleman (Chairman), Michael R,
Boyce, James E. Goodwin, and Marc J. Walfish.

The Nominating and Governance Committee acts pursuant to a written charter adopted by the Board
of Directors. The charter was last reviewed and approved by the Nominating and Governance
Committee and the Board of Directors at their July 2007 meetings. The full text of the Nominating and
Governance Committee charter appears on the Company’s web site and is available in print to any
stockholder upon written request to the Secretary of the Company at the Company's address listed on
the first page of this Proxy Statement.

The Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for both nominating and governance
functions as described in its charter. The Nominating and Governance Committee performs the
specific functions described in its charter and, among other things:

* oversees the composition, structure and evaluation of the Board and its commitiees;
+ develops and recommends corporate governance guidelines for Board approval; and

+ monitors and screens directors for indepsndence and recommends to the Board qualified
candidates for election as directors and to serve on Board committees.

In seeking qualified candidates, the Nominating and Governance Committee abtains referrals from
management, other directors and business and community leaders, and may retain the services of a
consultant to assist in identifying candidates. The Nominating and Governance Committee seeks
candidates that complement the Board as a whole and who collectively are strong and diverse in
knowledgse, skills, experience, and background. The Committee screens all candidatss in the same
manner regardless of the source of the recommendation. When selecting nominees, including those
proposed by stockholders, the Committes looks for candidates who are independent and have a high
level of integrity and professionat and persanal ethics and values, as well as demonstrated business
acumen, leadership and policy making experience or special technical skills, irrespective of gender or-
ethnicity, as well as other factors the Committee deems approptiate. The Committee has full discretion
in considering its nominations to the Board. The Company's Director Nominating Process and
Selection Guidslines appear on the Company's web site and are available in print to any stockholder
upon written request to the Secretary of the Company at the Company's address listed on the first
page of this Proxy Statement. The Nominating and Governance Committee will consider director
candidates recommended by stockholders in the same manner as other candidates. Stockholders
may submit a proposed nomination to the Nominating and Governance Committee for consideration
with respect to the Annual Mesting of Stockholders for the year 2008 by writing to the Secretary, AAR
CORP., One AAR Place, 1100 N. Wood Dale Road, Wood Dale, lllinois 60191. To be considered,
proposed nominations must be received prior to April 21, 2008, must state the reasons for the
proposed nomination and contain the full name and address of each proposed nominee, as well as a
brief biographical history setting forth past and present directorships, employment and occupations,
and any other qualifications. Proposed nominations must also include a statement indicating that the
proposed nominees have consented to being named in the Proxy Statement and to serve if elected.

The Nominating and Geovernance Committee held two meetings during Fiscal 2007.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is comprised of David P. Storch {Chairman), James E. Goodwin, Timothy J.
Romenesko and Marc J. Walfish. Mr. Goodwin and Mr. Walfish are each independent directors as
defined by applicable NYSE rules and the Company’s Categorical Standards and Policy for
Determining Director Independence.

The Executive Committee acts pursuant to a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors. The
charter was last reviewed and approved by the Executive Committee and the Board of Directors at
their July 2007 meetings. The full text of the Executive Committee charter appears on the Company’s
web site and is available in print to any stockholder upon written request to the Secretary of the
Company at the Company’s address listed on the first page of this Proxy Statement.

The Executive Committee is authorized to meet between meetings of the Board of Directors and
exercise certain powers of the Board with respect to urgent matters or other matters referred to it by
the Board for deliberation or action, subject to limitations imposed by the Committee’s charter, the
Board, applicable law and the Company’s By-Laws.

The Executive Committee held one meeting during Fiscal 2007.
Directors’ Compensation

The Board believes that compensation for any director who is not an officer or employee of the’
Company or any subsidiary (“Non-Employee Director”) should be primarily a mix of cash and equity
compensation. Director compensation and benefits are recommended to the Board of Directors from
time to time by the Compensation Committee for Board approval.

Currently, each Non-Employee Director receives an annual retainer of $35,000, a fee of $2,500 for
attendance at each meeting of the Board or of any Board committee attended in person ($1,250 per
meeting for telephonic Board and Committee meetings), plus reimbursement of expenses. Each
committee chairman receives an additional $5,000 annual retainer. In addition, each Non-Employee .
Director, upon being elected a director, receives term life insurance coverage of $200,000 and is
eligible (with spouse) to participate in a Company-paid, annual physical program. Directors who are
officers or employees of the Company or any subsidiary receive no additional compensation for
service on the Board or any of its committees. The Company also reimburses its directors and, in
certain circumstances, spouses who accompany directors, for travel, lodging and reiated expenses
they incur in attending Board and Committee meetings.

Annual retainer fees are paid quarterly; Committee Chairman retainer fees are paid annually; meeting
fees are paid promptly following each meeting attended, as are reimbursement of expenses. Each
Non-Employee Director may elect to defer receipt of the annual retainer and meeting fees pursuant to
the Company’s Non-Employee Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan. Under the Plan, deferred
retainer fees are converted into stock units equivalent to shares of Common Stock, and deferred
meeting fees are credited with interest quarterly based on the 10-year United States Treasury Bond
rate. Distributions of deferred retainer fees under the plan occur in cash or equivalent value Common
Stock, at the participant's election, and distribution of deferred meeting fees are made in cash upon
termination of service on the Board and on the happening of certain other events, as specified in the
ptan.
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Each Non-Employee Director also is eligible to receive discretionary stock option grants and restricted
stock awards from time to time under the AAR CORP. Stock Benefit Plan, as may be determined by
the Compensation Committee. Historically, each Non-Employee Director received an annual stock
option grant that expires ten years from the date of grant and becomes exercisable in 25% increments
on each anniversary grant date at the closing NYSE price on the date of grant. All unvested stock -
options became fully vested on May 1, 2006. Commencing in Fiscal 2006, the Compensation
Committee determined that, based on a value of approximately $40,000 per year at the then current
stock price, each Non-Employee Director should receive an annual restricted stock award of 2,500
shares in each of Fiscal Years 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 (having a grant date of July 10 of each
year), vesting pro rata over a three-year period. Consistent with the foregoing, each Non-Employee
Director received a 2,500 share restricted stock grant in Fiscal 2007 having a grant date of July 10,
2006 and for Fiscal 2008 having a grant date of July 10, 2007. Restricted stock recipients are entitled
to receive stock dividends, if any, on restricted stock grants.

The Company terminated the AAR CORP. Non-Employee Directors’ Retirement Plan effective April 10,
2001. Any Non-Employee Director who was a director on the. plan’s effective date of termination or a
retired director then receiving benefits under the plan continues to be eligible to receive benefits
pursuant to the terms of the plan as the plan was in effect and applicable to such participant on the
earlier of the date of Plan termination or date of retirement. Benefits are paid upon reaching age 65 .
and retirement from the Board if such director has compieted at least five years of service as a
director. Benefits are paid quarterly in cash in an amount equal to 25% of the annual retainer payable
from time to time to an active director and are paid for a period equal to the total number of years of
service as a director to a maximum of ten years or until death. Continuing liabilities under the plan are
unfunded. As of May 31, 2007; six former directors are receiving retirement benefits under the plan,
one former director is eligible to receive benefits under the plan upon reaching age 65, and one
current director, Mr. Brocksmith, is eligible to receive benefits under the plan upon retirement from the
Board.
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The following table details the total compensation paid to the Company's Non-Employee Directors for
Fiscal 2007: , o .

.

Director Compensation Table'

: . . Changein .
Pension Value
: and Non-
Fees Non-Equity Qualified
Earned ' Incentive Plan Deferred All Other
or Paid in Stock Option  Compensation Compansatlon Compensation

Name Cash{$}® Awards($)® Awards($)* (%) Earnings($)® ($)° Total ($)
Michael R. Boyce ... ... 45,000 44,200 0 \ 0, 0 0 89,200
James G. Brocksmith, Jr. 71,250 44,200 0 ‘ 0 26,300 2,250 144,000
Gerald F. Fitzgerald, Jr. . 53,750 31,700 0 0 0 0 85,450
Ronald R. Fogleman ... 62,250 44,200 0 0 0 5,400 111,850
James E. Goodwin. . ... 71,250 44,200 0 0 0 4,500 119,950"
Patrick J. Kelly . ....... 38,750 31,700 0 0 ' 0 0 70,450
Marc J. Walfish. ....... 56,250 44,200 0 ! 0 0 1,300 101,750
Ronald B. Woodard . . .. 66,250 44,200 0 0 4] 0 110,450

1 Mr. Storch and Mr. Romenesko are not included in this table as they are employee directors and receive no addition'al
compensation for their service as directors. Their compensation from the Company is set torth on the Summary )
Compensatlon Table in this Proxy Statement. -

2 Ther following table provides a breakdown of director fees earned or paid in cash for fiscal 2007;:

Annual Committee Chair Committee :
Name Retainer ($) Retainer Fees ($) _ Fees (§)  Total {§)

Michae!R.Boyce................unn. 35,000 o 10,000 45,000
James G. Brocksmith, Jr................. 35,000 ' 5000 31,250 71,250
Gerald F, Fitzgerald, Jr. . .......... P 35,000 0 18,750 53,750
Ronald R. Fogleman ................... 35,000 5,000 22,250 62,250
JamesE. Goodwin..................... 35,000 5,000 31,250 71,250
Patrick J. Kelly . ................con... 26,250 0 12,500 38,750
MarcJ.Walfish. .. ..................... 35,000 0 21,250 56,250
RonaldB.Woodard . . .................. 35,000 0 31,250 66,250

3 The amounts in this column represent the Company’s expense recognized in Fiscal 2007 for financial statement reporting
purposes computed in accordance with FAS 123(R), disregarding any adjustments for potential forfeitures, and thus includes
amounts attributable to awards made in prior years. The grant date tair value, computed in accordance with FAS 123(R), of
restricted stock awarded to each Non-Employee Director in Fiscal 2007 is $22.68 per share. As of May 31, 2007, the number
of restricted shares held by each Non-Employee Director was as follows: Mr. Boyce 4,167 shares; Mr. Brocksmith 4,167
shares; Mr. Fitzgerald 2,500 shares; Mr. Fogleman 4,167 shares; Mr. Goodwin 4,167 shares; Mr. Kelly 2,500 shares;

Mr. Walfish 4,167 shares; and Mr. Woodard 4,167 shares.

+ The amounts in this column represent the Company’s expense recognized in Fiscal 2007 for financial statement reporting
purposes computed in accordance with FAS 123(R}. No stock options were granted to Non-Employee Directors in Fiscal
2007 and all previously issued options held by directors are fully vested. The aggregate number of shares issuable pursuant
to stock options held by each Mon-Employee Director as of May 31, 2007 was as follows: Mr. Boyce, 0; Mr. Brocksmith, Jr.,
17.000; Mr. Fitzgerald, Jr.,0; Mr. Fogleman, 17,000; Mr. Goodwin, 17,000; Mr. Kelly, 0; Mr. Walfish, 17,000; and Mr. Woodard,
3,500.

5 Mr. Brocksmith is the only continuing director eligible for a benefit under the Company’s Non-Employee Directors’
Retirament Plan. The amount in this column represents the increase in the present value of accumulated benefits under the
Company's Non-Employee Directors’ Retirement Plan, as of May 31, 2007 determined using assumptions consistent with
those used for reporting purposes in the Company's 2007 Form 10-K. There were no above-market earnings credited under
the Company's Non-Employee Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan.

& [ncludes reimbursed expenses in connection with spousal travel and/for travel and hotel expense in connection with the
Company-paid executive/spouse annual physical program, as well as the cost of tha annual physical program and the cost
of term life insurance.
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V. PROPOSAL 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is presently divided into three classes, each having three-year terms that expire
in successive years. The Board of Directors has nominated four directors to be elected in Class Il at
the Annual Meeting, each to serve a three-year term expiring at the 2010 Annual Meeting or until the
individual is succeeded by another qualified director who has been duly elected.

The nominees for Director in Class Il this year are Norman R. Bobins, Gerald F. Fitzgerald, Jr.,
James E. Goodwin, and Marc J. Walfish,

Information about the nominees and continuing directors whose terms expire in future years is set
forth in Section Vi below.

Each nominee, except Mr. Bobins, is currently serving as a director of the Company and each
nominee has been determined by the Board {o be “independent” within the meaning of NYSE rules.
Mr. Bobins was recommended for consideration as a director nominee by the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and the Nominating and Governance Committee. He was
nominated by the Board of Directors for election as a Director based on his extensive business
experience, financial and banking expertise and the needs of the Company. The Board of Directors
has determined that Mr. Bobins is qualified to serve on the Board as an “independent” director within
the meaning of NYSE rules. The Board expects each nominee to serve if elected as a director. Under
Delaware law and the Company’s By-Laws, the nominees for director who individually receive the
greatest number of votes shall be elected directors of the Company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT
STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR ALL NOMINEES

14




VI. INFORMATION ABOUT THE NOMINEES AND CONTINUING DIRECTORS

information about the nominees and continuing directors whose terms expire in future years is set
forth below:

Director
Since
NOMINEES FOR TERMS EXPIRING IN 2010
Class Il Directors whose terms expire at the 2007 Annual Meeting and Class II
Nominees:
NORMAN R. BOBINS, 64: From 2000 to 2003 and 2007 to present, Chairman of the Nomines

Board of LaSalle Bank Corporation (a financial institution). From 2006 to 2007,
President and Chief Executive Officer of ABN AMRO NorthAmerica. From 2001 to 2007,
President and Chief Executive Officer at LaSalle Bank Corporation. From 2006 to
present Senior Executive Vice President at ABN AMRO Bank N.V., the Dutch parent of
LaSalle Bank Corporation .

Other directorships: LaSalle Bank Corporation, NICOR, inc. and Metal
Management, Inc.

GERALD F. FITZGERALD, JR., 57: Since 2000, Chairman and President, Cornerstone 2006
Bancorp, Inc. Since 1997, Chairman and President of LaSalle Bancorp, Inc. (LaSalle,
IL). From 1990 to 1994, President and Chief Executive Officer of Suburban
Bancorp, Inc.

JAMES E. GOODWIN, 63: Since 2001, an independent business consultant. From 1989 2002
to 2001, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of UAL, Inc. and United Airlines, Inc.,
where he retired after 34 years. From 1998 to 1999, President and Chief Operating
Officer of United Airlines, Inc. From 1992 to 1998, Senior Vice President of United
Airlines, Inc.

Other directorships: First Chicago Bancorp; DBS Communications Inc., and Federal
Signal Corp. ,
MARC J. WALFISH, 55: Founding Partner of Merit Capital Partners (a Mezzanine investor 2003

company) in 2003. From 1991 to 2003, William Blair Mezzanine Capital Partners. From
1978 to 1991, Prudential Capital Corporation, most recently as Senior Vice President.

CONTINUING DIRECTORS:
Class Il Directors whose terms expire at the 2008 Annual Meeting:

RONALD R. FOGLEMAN, 65: Since 1997, President and Chief Operating Officer of B Bar 2001
J Cattle Company (a consulting company) and Chairman of the Durango Group, LLC
(a consulting and business development company). From 1994 to 1997, General, Chief
of Staff, Headquarters United States Air Force, Washington, D.C.

Other directorships: Alliant Techsystems, Inc.; Alpha Security Group; and World Air
Holdings, Inc.

PATRICK J. KELLY, 52: Since 1980, Chief Executive Officer of Resource One (a provider 2006
of computer programming services). Since 1986, Managing Director of KMK &
Associates, LLC (a private equity firm with interests in companies operating in the
distribution, technology, food, real estate and financial services industries).
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TIMOTHY J. ROMENESKO, 50: Since June 2007, President and Chief Operating Officer
of AAR. From 1994 to 2007, Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. From
1991 to 1994, Corporate Controller of AAR.

RONALD B. WOODARD, 84: Since 2003, Chairman of MagnaDrive, Inc. (an industrial
torque transfer equipment company, which he co-founded following his retirement
from The Boeing Company after 32 years). From 1995 to 1998, President of the Boeing
Commercial Airplane Group. From 1991 to 1994, Vice President and General Manager
of the Renton Division of Boeing Commercial Aircraft. From 1987 to 1991, President of
deHavilland Aircraft. Prior to that, Vice President and General Manager of the Materiel
Division of Boeing Commaercial Aircraft, and various other management positions.

Other directorships: Coinstar Inc.; Continental Airlines, Inc.; and Chairman, Seattle
Symphony.

CONTINVUING DIRECTORS:
Class | Directors whose terms expire at the 2009 Annual Meeting:

MICHAEL R. BOYCE, 59: Since 2005, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of PQ
Corporation {an industrial chemicals company). Since 1998, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Peak Investments. From 1980 to 1998, President and Chief
Operating Officer of Harris Chemical Grougp, inc.

Other directorships: PQ Corporation.

JAMES G. BROCKSMITH, JR., 66: Since 1996, an independent business consultant.
From 1990 to 1996, Deputy Chairman, and Chief Operating Officer of KPMG Peat
Marwick, where he retired after 31 years.

Other directorships: Alberto-Culver Company; Nationwide Financial Services, Inc.;
and Sempra Energy. ‘

DAVID P. STORCH, 54: Since June 2007, Chairman of the Board, and Chief Executive
Officer of AAR. From October 2005 until June 2007, Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer of AAR. From 1996 to October 2005, President and Chief
Executive Officer of AAR. From 1989 to 1996, President and Chief Operating Officer of
AAR. From 1988 to 1989, Vice President of AAR.
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VIl. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE'S REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors hereby furnishes the following report to the
stockholders of the Company in accordance with applicable SEC rules.

The Compensation Committee states that it has reviewed and discussed the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis with the Company's management. Based on that review and discussion, the
Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement.

Respectfully submitted, \

James G. Brocksmith, Jr., Chairman
Michael R. Boyce

Ronald R. Fogleman

Patrick J. Kelly

Ronald B. Woodard

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Overview

The Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for structuring and
administering executive compensation. The executive compensation program is designed to attract,
motivate and retain talented executives to achieve corporate and business goals that will result in
superior performance and increased stockholder value. The principal components of the Company's
executive compensation program are annual base salaries, annual cash incentive opportunities, long-
term incentive opportunities, in the form of stock options and restricted stock awards, and retirement
benefits, each of which is described below. The Company also provides a limited number of
perquisites and other benefits as well as certain severance and Change in Control benefits, described
below.

The Compensation Committee is comprised of five individuals, each of whom (i) has been determined
by the Board of Directors to be an independent director of the Company under applicable NYSE

rules and the Company's Categorical Standards and Policy for Determining Director Independence,
(i) is a non-employee director for purposes of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act, and {iii) is an outside
director for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Committee relies upon the
judgment of its members in making compensation decisions after reviewing the performance of the
Company and considering an executive’s performance during the year against established goals,
leadership qualities, operational performance, business responsibilities, career experience, and long-
term potential to enhance shareholder value.

Executive Compensation Philosophy

The phitosophy of the executive compensation program is to enable the Company to attract, motivate
and retain talented executives capable of achieving strategic business initiatives and producing
outstanding business performance and stockholder value. A principal compensation guideline of the
Committee is that there be a strong link between pay and performance both at the Company level and
the individual level. The types and levels of performance-based awards are set so that superior
performance is rewarded with superior compensation, while below target performance results in
below target overall compensation. Performance targets for the measures that are tied to variable
compensation are representative of the-Company’s expectations of high performance. As a result, the
target total direct compensation for each executive, defined as the aggregate of base salary, bonus,
and long-term incentives, is intended to be around the third quartile for the comparative group
described below under “Market Comparisons for Setting Compensation Levels.”
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Total compensation opportunities for each executive are intended to be competitive with those offered
by other companies competing for talent in the Company’s employment market. In designing and
administering the individual elements of the executive compensation program for each executive, the
Compensation Committee strives tc batance short-term and long-term incentive objectives and
employ prudent judgment in establishing base salary levels and performance criteria, evaluating
performance and determining actual incentive payments. To ensure competitiveness and
reasonableness of the Compensation Committee’s compensation decisions, compensation consulting
firms are retained periodically to advise the Compensation Committee in connection with both the
design and implementation of the various elements of the program and the level of individual
executive participation. The Company uses competitive compensation analyses by compensation
consultants to establish base salaries and total compensation opportunities (not actual pay) for the
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, the President and Chief Operating Officer and
other executive officers. These compensation opportunities are established at an appropriate level
relative to the third guartile target based on compensation for such positions at other companies in
the relevant employment market. Generally, as an executive’s level of responsibility increases, a
greater percentage of total compensation opportunity is based on performance, and the mix of total
compensation shifts toward stock, thereby aligning the long-term interests of senior executives with
those of stockholders.

The Company's Chief Executive Officer is responsible for bringing recommendations to the
Compensation Committee regarding compensation actions for his direct reports, which include alt of
the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table. The Compensation Committee
sets the Chief Executive Officer's compensation. The Compensation Committee engages an
independent consulting firm, Capital H Group, to assist it in reviewing the Chief Executive Officer's and
certain other executive officers’ compensation, primarily by compiling and analyzing compensation
and performance data of the comparative group of companies described below on a position-by-
position basis. ‘

Market Comparisons for Setting Compensation Levels

The Company reviews compensation paid by a comparative group of companies in determining base
salary, annual cash incentive opportunity and tong-term incentive opportunity provided to its named
executive officers. The Compensation Committee determined that the appropriate comparative group
of companies for Fiscal 2007, based on the marketplace for executive talent in the Company'’s
businesses, were the companies in the S&P 600 Aerospace/Defense smallcap index. The S&P 600
Aerospace/Defense smallcap index consists of 13 companies, including AAR CORP., Applied Signal
Technology, Armor Holdings, Inc., Ceradyne Inc., Cubic Corp., Curtiss-Wright Corp., EDO Corp.,
Esterline Technologies Corp., GenCorp Inc¢., Kaman Corp., Moog, inc., Teledyne Technologies Inc.,
and Triumph Group Inc. The Committee also reviewed and considered survey information regarding
the compensation practices of similarly-sized non-financial and non-insurance companies with annual
revenues of $600 million to $1.5 billion, and positive return on equity in the past year.

In taking compensation actions, the Compensation Committee also reviews and considers historical
compensation data for named executive officers. This includes rolling 10-year historical summaries of
cash and equity compensation received by executive officers. When setting compensation levels for
Mr. Storch in his employment agreement entered into on May 31, 2006, the Committee reviewed, and
took into consideration, tally sheets prepared by Capital H Group, the Committee’s compensation
consultant, summarizing Mr. Storch’s total annual compensation, including cash and non-cash direct
compensation, cumulative benefits and savings under retirement plans and equity compensation
programs, perquisites and potential payments on termination of employment, whether on a Change in
Control of the Company or otherwise. The Committee also reviewed and considered substantially
similar total compensation tally sheets when setting compensation levels for Mr. Romenesko in
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connection with his promotion to President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company on June 1,
2007.

Base Salary

The Company provides competitive base salaries designed to reward individual performance and
contributions consistent with an executive officer's position and responsibilities. Base salary levels of
all elected corporate officers, including the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, and the
other named executive officers are reviewed annually by the Compensation Committee and may be
adjusted depending upon:

» the executive’'s current salary,;

» the executive’s qualifications, responsibilities, assessed performance contribution, including
significant changes in responsibility or performance related to established goals;

« the executive’s tenure with the Company and the position held by the executive;

« competitive salary considerations refative to similar positions at other companies competing for
talent in the Company's employment market; and

« the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, in the case of all other executive officers.

Base salaries are generally set in the second and third quartiles of salary levels of comparable
positions in the cited comparative group of companies. The Company does not target any specific
proportion of total compensation when setting base salary.

Annual Cash Incentive Opportunities

The Compensation Committee believes that annual incentive opportunities, payable in cash, serve as
an appropriate incentive for achievement of the Company’s short-term performance goals. Within the
first 90 days of each fiscal year, the Company establishes specific performance goals for its executive
officers, including the named executive officers, that govern the payment of annual cash bonuses for
that fiscal year. The Company pays a cash bonus (not to exceed $5 million in any fiscal year),
measured as a percentage of the executive officer’s salary, based on the extent to which the
Company and the executive achieves applicable performance goals. Performance at a target level will
result in a target bonus, and performance above or below target generally will result in payment of a
bonus at a higher or lower percentage of salary, respectively. Performance below a minimum
threshold will result in no bonus payment.

For Fiscal 2007, the performance goals for annual cash incehtive opportunities for the named
executive officers were basad on net income (target of $40,400,000), return on invested capital (target
of 7.5%), and a leverage rafio (target of 50%), except that the leverage ratio goal applied only to

Mr. Storch, Mr. Romenesko and Mr. Pulsifer. For purposes of measuring attainment of these '
performance goals for Fiscal 2007, “net income” is the Company's net income reported in its audited
financial statements: return on invested capital means the percentage which results from dividing net
aperating profit after tax by the average invested capital; and leverage ratio is based on maintaining
long-term recourse debt-to-capital ratio of 50% or less. The choice of these performance measures
reflects the priority placed by the Company on preserving and growing stockholder wealth and
maintaining a strong balance sheet. The two performance goals applicable to Mr. Clark and

Mr. McDonald — income and return on invested capital — are based on the performance of their
respective business groups (Aviation Supply Chain for Mr. Clark and Maintenance, Repair & Overhaul
and Structure and Systems for Mr. McDonald), rather than overall Company performance.
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The relative weight assigned to each of these performance goals for each named executive officer
appears in the table below:

Return on
Name Netincome' Invested Capital Leverage Ratio
DavidR. Storch ........... .. ... ... ..., 50% 25% 25%
-+ Timothy J. Romenesko . .................. . 50% 25% 25%
JamesJ.Clark . ............ ..o oo i, 80% 20% ' N/A
“ MarkMcDonald .............. ... ‘75% 25% N/A
Howard A.Pulsifer . ....................... 50% 25% 25%

' Pre-Tax income in the case of Mr. Clark and Mr. McDonald.

The target annual bonus opportunities as a percentage of base salary far the named executive officers
vary depending on position, the Company's performance and the Committee’s individual assessment
of their individual contributions, and are set forth in the table below:

Name ' - Threshold % Target%  Maximum %'
DavidR.Storch ........ ... v T 70% 100% 150%

Timothy J.Romenesko ..................... ..ot 37.5% 75% 150%
JamesJ. Clark? ... .. ... e — 169% —

Mark McDonald?, .. ... ... i e : — 133% — .
Howard A. Pulsifer . ............ ... ... ........ e 32.5% 65% 130%

' Maximum bonus is based upon attainment of performance goals at 120% of target.

2 Mr. Clark's and Mr. McDonald's incentive compensation program operates on a sliding scale. The target percentage is paid
out. if their respective business unit meets their respective specific incentive plan goals. A prorated amount of the target is
paid when a goal is not met but exceeds a sliding threshold. There is no limit on the incentive payments each can receive
under their respective plans, subjact to a maximum of $5 million, since they receive a flat percentage of each dollar that their
respective business unit exceeds the income goal. Under the incentive compensation programs, the Company reserves the
right to reduce the amount payable based on personal performance and to reflect inclusion or exclusion of extraordinary
itemns.

Annual cash bonuses granted for Fiscal 2007 performance to the named executive officers are set

forth under the “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation” column of the Summary Compensation

Table. As shown, Mr. Storch, Mr. Romeneska and Mr. Clark received actual cash bonuses in excess of

their respective target annual cash incentive opportunities due to performance.

For the fiscal year ending May 31, 2008, the Compensation Committee again has set performance
goals relating to income, return on invested capital, and a leverage ratio.
Long-term Incentlve Opportunities

To reward executives in a manner that best aligns executives’ interests with stockholder interests, the
Company implemented the stockholder-approved AAR CORP. Stack Benefit Plan (“Stock Benefit
Plan ™). This long-term incentive program consists of stock options, performance-based restricted
stock awards, employment-based restricted stock awards, or any combination thereof, granted under
the Stock Benefit Plan, in the discretion of the Compensation Committee. The Stock Benefit Plan also
provides for the use of stock appreciation units; however, to date, no stock appreciation units have
been granted. The,specific terms of any restricted stock or.stock option grants are determined by the
Compensation Committee prior to the issuance of grants subject to the provisions of the Stock
Beneflt Plan. The amount of equity incentive compensation granted is based upon the Company's
strategles and operational and future performance of the Company overall, and reflects the expected
contributions to the Company’s future success.

Generally, when determining restricted stock and stock option grant opportunities, the Committee
considers the recipient’s position and responsibilities in the Company, performance and contributions
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made during the preceding year, capabilities and potential for future contribution to the Cornpany, the
number of restricted stock shares.and options previously granted to the recipient and, for senior
management (including the named executive officers), their stock ownership relative to the
Company’s stock ownership guidelines and the Chief Executive Officer’s recommendation. Under the
Company’s stock ownership guidelines, the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer is
expected to own Company stock having a value of at least three times his base salary; the President
and Chief Operating Officer and other executive officers are expected to own stock having a value of
at least 75% of their base salary; and directors are expected to own 10,000 shares of Company stock
within four years of becoming a director.

The current long-term incentive vehicie for named executive officers is performance-based restricted
stock with grants being issued based on performance over a two-year performance period, subject to
a stock price provision that can accelerate the grant of the restricted stock award. Actual awards are
based on the achievement of goals set by the Compensation Committee at the beginning of the
performance period. For the two-year performance period beginning June 1, 2006 and ending

May 31, 2008, the Compensation Committee set performance goals based on net income (target of
$54,053,000 in Fiscal 2007 and $62,682,000 in Fiscal 2008) and return on invested capital (target of
8.0% in Fiscal 2007 and 9.2% in Fiscal 2008), subject to acceleration of the grant of the restricted
stock on the 20th consecutive trading day after the Company's common stock traded at an average
stock price equal to 30% ($31.30 per share) above its price on the commencement of the
performance period. (§24.08 per share}. In May 2007, the Company's common stock reached the
targeted price and the Company granted the restricted stock to the named executive officers, subject
to the vesting provisions described below. These goals are solely for purposes of measuring
performance under the long-term incentive program and are not intended to forecast future Company
performance. T

In connection with Mr. Romenesko’s promotion to President and Chief Operating Officer, on May 30,
2007 the Compensation Committee approved performance restricted stock opportunities for

Mr. Romenesko (15,000 shares) based on performance against goals for a one-year performance
period commencing June 1, 2007 and ending on May 31, 2008. The Compensation Committee set
performance goals based on net income (target of $67,400,000) and return on invested capital (target
of 9.7%), subject to acceleration of the grant of the restricted stock on the 20th day after the
Company'’s common stock trades at a stock price equal to 30% ($43.47 per share) over its price on
the commencement of the performance period ($33.44 per share). These goals are solely for
purposes of measuring performance under the long-term incentive program and are not intended to
forecast future Company performance.

Once restricted stock awards are granted based upon satisfaction of the applicable performance
goals, or the common stock price acceleration provision, they are subject to vesting periods designed
to encourage executives to build their careers with the Company. The restricted stock issued for the
two year performance period ending May 31, 2008, vests 20% on June 1, 2009, 40% on June 1, 2011,
and 40% on June 1, 2013. The award recipient receives dividends, if any, on the restricted shares and
also has the right to vote the restricted shares. '

The Company did not grant any stock options to its named executive officers in Fiscal 2007 and
currently intends, for the foreseeable future, to rely on grants of performance-based restricted stock to
fund its long-term incentive opportunities for the named executive officers. Stock option grants, when
previously granted, typically expire ten years from the date of grant or earlier upon termination of
employment, become exercisable at fair market value based on the NYSE closing stock price on the
date of grant in equal increments over a period of three to five years on successive grant anniversary
dates or, in some instances, upon meeting pre-determined share price performance criteria. Stock
option grant dates are determined by the Compensation Committee and generally are as of the date
of approval by the Compensation Committee, or if the grant is in connection with a new hire or
promotion of an employee, the grant date is the date of hire or the promotion date, as applicable.
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Pursuant to the Company’s Stock Benefit Plan Internal Administrative Guidelines, the Compensation
Committee may also establish grant dates for options at a specific future date. All unvested stock
opticns became fully vested on May 1, 2006.

Retirement Benefits
The Company’s named executive officers participate in three retirement plans: the Retirement Plan,
the Retirement Savings Plan and the Supplemental Key Employee Retirement Plan (the “SKERP™).

Retirement Plan

Benefit accruals under the tax-qualified Retirement Plan ceased for all highly compensated
employees, including the named executive officers, on June 1, 2005. At termination of employment,.a
participant is eligible to receive the amount credited to his account under the Retirement Plan, which
consists of {i) an opening balance for those participants who participated in the Retirement Plan at
December 31, 1999 equal to the then present value of the benefit accrued as of such date,

(i) quarterly pay credits (through May 31, 2005 for highly compensated participants) based on the
participant’s age and service, and (iii) quarterly interest credits until the account is distributed based
on the 30-year Treasury securities rate for the November preceding each such year.

Retirement Savings Plan

The Retirement Savings Plan is a tax-qualified 401(k) plan that covers most U.S. employees. An
employee c¢an elect 1o defer up to 75% of his compensation on a pre-tax basis, up to a maximum of
$15,500 in 2007, or $20,500 if age 50 or over. Unless an employee elects otherwise, participation is
automatic at a 3% deferral rate. The Company provides a matching contribution equal to 20% of the
participant's deferrals (up to 5% of compensation}, a profit sharing contribution of up to 4% of
compensation based on the participant's deferrals and the performance of the participant's operating
unit, and a retirement benefit contribution of up to 4% of compensation based on the participant’s age
and service.

SKERP

The SKERP is a nonqualified retirement plan that contains a defined benefit portion and a defined
contribution portion. Benefits accruals ceased as of October 1, 2001 for all employees other than
Mr. Storch, Mr. Romenesko and Mr. Pulsifer and were distributed to the participants. The benefits
accrued as of May 31, 2006 for the three remaining participants have been or will be converted to a
lump sum and transferred by June 1, 2008 to the defined contribution portion of the SKERP.

The defined contribution portion of the SKERP is intended to provide eligible employees with the
portion of their elective deferrals and the Company's matching and profit sharing contributions that
could not be made under the Retirement Savings Plan due to Internal Revenue Code limitations on
the amount of compensation that can be taken into account in determining contributions ($225,000 in
2007). The Company also makes annual supplemental contributions equal to 22% of salary and
bonus for Mr. Storch and 10% of salary and bonus for the other eligible named executive officers,

Executive Perquisites

In addition to the Company’s Welfare Plans and contractual benefits for executives discugsed
elsewhere in this Proxy Statement, it has been the Company’s histarical practice to provide certain
other executive perquisites to senior executives. The Company continues this practice and offers one *
or more of the following executive perquisites to named executive officers, depending on the
individual executive’s position, years of service, level of responsibility and total compensation
package:

» Annual vehicle altowance.
+ Reimbursement of pre-approved professional, club and association fees and charges.
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« Reimbursement of travel and related expenses in connection with participation in meetings of
pre-approved not-for-profit, educational and professional organizations.

« Third party professional executive financial planning assistance.
« Reimbursement of professional tax preparation fees.
« Executive and spousal annua! physical and preventative health program.

« Participation in executive housing relocation program, including home purchase and
reimbursement of relocation expenses.

» Executive supplemental life, split dollar life, long-term disability, accidental death and
dismemberment, and travel insurance.

» Reimbursement of travel and related expenses for spouse traveling with Named Executive
Officers.

The costs of such perquisites to the Company are included in the Summary Compensation Table
below in accordance with SEC rules.

Employment, Severance and Change In Control Agreements

The Company does not have employment agreements with its executive officers, except for its
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, David P. Storch. See “Compensation Arrangement with Chief
Executive Officer” on page 26 for a description of the compensation terms applicable to Mr. Storch
under his employment agreement.

The Company has severance and Change in Control agreements with each of the named executive
officers other than Mr. Storch. See “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control of the
Company” on page 37 for a description of these agreements, including a description of the severance
and Change in Control provisions applicable to Mr. Storch under his employment agreement.

In June, 2007, the Company adjusted the compensation of Timothy J. Romenesko in connection with
his promotion to President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company, effective June 1, 2007. See
footnote 1 to the Summary Compensation Table on page 24 for a description of the compensation
terms applicable to Mr, Romenesko as President and Chief Operating Officer.

Impact of Favorable Accounting/Tax Treatment on Compensation

Federal Income Tax Considerations

IRC Section 162(m) generally prevents any public company from ctaiming a deduction for
compensation in excess of $1 million for the Chief Executive Officer or any of the four highest
compensated executive officers. This deduction limitation, however, does not apply to performance-
based compensation that satisfies certain requirements under Section 162(m). The Compensation
Committee has determined that it is in the best interests of the Company and its stockhaolders to
structure compensation of executive officers so that compensation will not be subject to the deduction
limit to the extent that it can reasonably do so in a manner that provides adequate incentives and
allows the Company to attract and retain qualified executives. However, the Compensation Committee
has previously and may in the future structure compensation arrangements that under certain
circumstances may be subject to the deduction limit.

The Company maintains the AAR CORP 162(m) Incentive Goal Program. Under this Pragram, the
annual cash bonuses and performance-based restricted stock awards under the Stock Benefit Plan
qualified in Fiscal 2007 as performance-based compensation under Section 162{m). None of the
compensation paid by the Company in Fiscal 2007 was subject to the Section 162(m) deduction limit.

As required under the tax rules, the Company must obtain stockholder approval every five years of the
material terms of the performance goals for qualifying performance-based compensation, including
annual incentive bonuses. The Company last received stockholder approval of the performance goals
under its 162(m) Incentive Goal Program at the 2006 annual meeting.
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth compensation information for the Company’s Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and the three other most highly compensated executive officers (“named
executive officers”) for the Fiscal 2007.

Change in
Pension
Value and
Non-Equity Nongualifiad
Ingantlva Plan Deterred All Other
Salary Bonus Stock Option  Compensation Cornpensation Compansation Total

Name and Principal Position Year (8} ($) Awards ($)° Awards (5)° N Earnings ($)° ()¢ [£3)]
DAVIDP.STORCH.......... 2007 741,500 0 855,500 0 1,084,800 43,800 612,700 3,348,400

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

QFFICER (ALSO

PRESIDENT FOR FISCAL

2007)
TIMOTHY J. ROMENESKQ' ... 2007 330,000 0 221,400 0 402,500 29,000 152,300 1,135,200

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF

OPERATING OFFICER (VICE

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF

FINANCIAL OFFICER FOR

FISCAL 2007)
JAMESJ. CLARK , . ......... 2007 299,400 0 214,900 ] 568,500 6,800 112,300 1,201,800

GROUP VICE

PRESIDENT — AVIATION

SUPPLY CHAIN
MARK MCDONALD" . ... ..... 2007 299,400 0 207,300 0 231,600 2,400 95,970 836,670

GROUP VICE PRESIDENT,

MAINTENANCE, REPAIR &

OVERHAUL AND

STRUCTURES & SYSTEMS
HOWARD A. PULSIFER . ..... 2007 286,400 0 165,700 0 186,300 102,500 123,300 864,200

VICE PRESIDENT GENERAL .

COUNSEL AND

SECRETARY

' In connection with his promation to President and Chief Operating Cfficer of the Company effective June 1, 2007, the Compensation
Committee adjusted Mr. Romenesko's compensation to reflect his increased responsibilities. The Compensation Committee
established his base salary at $400,000, increased his target annual cash bonus incentive to 100% of base salary, and pravided him
an opportunity to receive 15,000 sharas of restricted stock under the Company's Stock Benefit Plan based on attainment of
performance goals for the one-year period beginning June 1, 2007.

2 The amounts in this column reprasent the Company’s expense recognized in Fiscal 2007 for financial statement reporting purposes
with respect to all ouistanding restricted stock awards held by each named exscutive officer, computed in accordance with
FAS 1Z3(R), disregarding adjustments for potential forfeitures, and thus includes amounts attributable to stock awards made in Fiscal
2007 and prior years. See footnote 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for an explanation of the assumptions made by the Company in the valuation of these awards. The “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis™ section of this Proxy Statement contains additional information about the stock awards made in Fiscal
2007.

? No stock options were granted to any named executive officer in Fiscal 2007 and all outstanding options held by the named
executive officers have vested. Accerdingly, the Company recognized no expense in Fiscal 2007 for financial statement reporting
purposes with respect to stock options held by the named executive officers.

* This coclumn shows the annual cash incentives earned by each named executive officer for Fiscal 2007 under the Company's bonus
plan covering named executive officers. The “Compensation Discussion and Analysis™ section of this Proxy Statement contains
additional information about the incentive compensation.

% This column includes amounts transterred from the defined benefit portion of the SKERP to the defined contribution portion of the
SKERP for Messrs. Storch, Romenesko and Pulsifer. There were no above-markat earnings credited under the Company's Non-
Employes Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan,

® Al other compensation received by each named executive officer in Fiscal 2007 is as follows:
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Company-Paid
Company Company Split-Dollar
401 (k) Plan SKERP Club  Financial Auto Life Insurance Executive Spouse
Contributions Contributions Dues Planning Allowance Premium Physical Travel Other

Name %) ($ {$) ($) % ($) [£3] £ $)
Mr. Storch ...... 19,600 457,800 86,200 13,000 12,300 23,300 0 500 —
Mr. Romenesko . . 19,500 103,700 21,100 — -— 3,400 2,200 2,400 —
Mr. Clark ....... 18,800 92,100 — — — 1,400 , — — —
Mr. McDonald . . . 13,600 82,200 _ — — — — 100 —_
Mr. Pulsifer. . . ... 19,500 20,600 12,200 — - 13,300 11,900 — 45,800

* |n connection with the cessation of benefit accruals (as described above) under the Retirement Plan, effective June 1, 2005,
supplemental payments are made on a periodic basis directly to highly compensated employees who were previously receiving
grandfathered or transition benefits under the Retirement Plan. This additional benefit is based on a formula that provides for a
cantinuation of grandfathersd and transition benefits as previously provided under the Retirement Flan, offset by the value of the
retirement benefit contribution (described above) provided under the Retirement Savings Plan.

7 Mr. McDonald resigned as an officer of the Company effective May 31, 2007 and as an employee effective July 31, 2007.
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Compensation Arrangement with Chief Executive Officer

The Company has an employment agreement with Mr. Storch that was amended and restated for a
term commencing May 31, 2006 and ending May 31, 2010 subject to extension by the parties. The
agreement provides for (i} a base salary of not less than $717,100 per year or such increased amount
as the Compensation Committee may determine, (i) an annual cash incentive opportunity of up to
150% of Base Salary for performance against financial goals established by the Compensation
Committee; (iii) a long-term equity incentive compensation opportunity to receive shares of restricted
stock under the Company's Stock Benefit Plan as described in the next paragraph below;

(iv} specified fringe benefits, including personal use for Mr. Storch and his accompanying family
members of Company aircraft (subject to payment by Mr. Storch for each accompanying passenger),
annual automobile allowance, payment of country club dues, fees and certain charges,
reimbursement of dues, fees, charges and expenses relating to membership in professional
clubs/organizations and not-for-profit educational organizations, financial planning and tax
preparation services, executive physical, and payment of reasonable legal fees incurred to negotiate
the agreement.

Under his long-term incentive opportunity, Mr. Storch can receive restricted stock based on two
two-year performance periods, from June 1, 2006 through May 31, 2008 and from June 1, 2008
through May 31, 2010. The value of Mr. Storch’s long-term equity incentive compensation opportunity
is equal to $600,000 for achievement of each of the following performance goals: (a) the Company’s
net income for each fiscal year within a performance period and (b) return on invested capital for each
fiscal year within a performance period, plus an additional award opportunity of up to 50% of the total
two-year award, based on the combined achievement against these two goals for each performance
period, for an aggregate opportunity value of up to $3.6 million for each two-year performance period.
The number of shares available to be granted with respect to each fiscal year within the performance
period will be determined at the beginning of each such performance period by dividing $600,000 by
the fair market value of one share of Common Stock on that date, based on the NYSE closing price for
such date. if at any time during the performance period, the closing price of Comman Stock is 50%
higher than the price at the beginning of the performance period for 20 consecutive trading days, all
performance restricted stock opportunity shares (including the additional 50% opportunity) will be
granted immediately.
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The following table sets forth information for each named executive officer with respect to

Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

(1) estimated possible payouts under non-equity incentive plan award opportunities for Fiscal 2007,
(2) estimated possible payouts under equity incentive plan award opportunities for Fiscal 2007,
(3) other stock awards made in Fiscal 2007, and {4) stock options granted in Fiscal 2007.

All Other
Option
All Other Awards:  Exercise
Estimated Possible Payouts Estimated Possible Payouts Stock Awards: Numberof orBase Grant Date
Under dNon Equity Under Equity Number of Sacurities Price of  Fair Value of
Date of Incentive Plan Awards® Incentive Plan Awards* Sharesof  Underying Option Options and
Grant Committee Threshold Target Maximum Threshold Target Maxmum StockorUnits  Options  Awards Awards®
Name Datg’ Action” {3 (S} $) (#) # {#) L] ("? ($/sh) $)
David P. Storch ., . 5/11/07  5/31/08 515,600 742,300 1,113,400 65000 130,000 130,000 0 0 N/A 4,338,100
Timothy J. >
Rom:nesko .... BMj07  5/31/06 123,600 247,800 495500 15,000 30,000 30,000 0 0 NfA 1,001,100
James J. Clark. ... 5/11/07  5/31/06 — 508,000 — 15,000 30,000 30,000 o 0 NiA 1,001,100
Mark McDonald . .. 5/11/07  5/31/08 — 400,000 — 15,000 30,000 30,000 [} 0 N/A 1,001,100
Howard A.
Pulsifer ... .... 5M11/07  5/31/06 93,200 186,400 372,700 15000 30,000 30,000 [ o N/A 1,001,100

The grant date of restricted stack awards is the date the stock price performance target was achieved.

On the date the Compensation Committes established the performance periods, and approvad the performance goals, {or the restricted stock awards, it also
autharized the grant of restricted stock wilh a grant date of the earfier of the last day of the performance perdod of the date during each performance period when tha
Comparty's average stock price is 30% higher than the price at the beginning of each performance pariod for 20 consecutive trading days.

Payouts under the Company’s bonus plan covering named executive officers were based on performance for Fiscal 2007, which has now occurred. Thus, the
intormation in these columns reflect the ranga of potential payouts when the performance goals were sat in July 2006. The amounts actually paid under the ptan for
Fiscal 2007 appear in the “Non-Equity Incantive Plan Compensation™ column of the Summary Compensation Table. See the "Compansation Discussion and Analysis™
section of this Proxy Statement for a description of the bonus plan, inciuding the performance goals.

The information in these columns show the range of potential restricted stock grants that could have been eamed by the named executive officers based on the two
year performance period beginning June 1, 2008. The restricted stock was granted on May 11, 2007, which was the date during the performance pericd when the
Company's stack price was 30% higher than the prica at the beginning of the performance period for 20 consecutive trading days. The actual number of shares of
restricted stock awarded for the performance period is as tollows: Mr. Storch, 130,000; Mr, Romenesko, 30,000; Mr. Clark, 30,000; Mr. McDonald, 30,000; Mr. Pulsifer,
30,000. -

No stock options were granted to any named executive officer in Fiscal 2007.
The columin shows the grant date fair vatue, computed in accordance with FAS 123(R), of the restricted stock awarded to each named executive officer In Fiscal 2007.

Mr. Clark's and Mr, McDonald's incentive Compensation Program operates on a sliding scale. The target percentage is paid out if their respective businass unit meats
their specific incentiva plan goals exactly. A prorated amount of the target is paid when a goal Is not mat but axceeds a sliding threshold. There is no limit on the
incentive payments each can racelve since they recaive a flat percantage of each dollar that their respective business unit exceeds the income goat.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End Table

This table sets forth information for each named executive officer with respect to (1) each stock option

that remained outstanding as of May 31, 2007, and {2)
vested and remained outstanding as of May 31, 2007,

each award of restricted stock that was not

.’.

+

Option Awards’ Restricted Stock Awards
Equity
Equity Equity Incentive Plan
Incentive Incentiva Plan Awargs:
Plan Awards: Awards: Market or

Number of Number of Number of Number of Payout Value
Sacurities Securities Securities Number of Market Value Uneamed of Unearned
Underlying Underying Underlying Shares or of Shares or  Shares, Units,  Shares, Units

Unexercised Unexercised  Unexercised  Option Option Units of Stock  Units of Stock  or Other Rights  or Other Rights
Options {#)  Options (#) Uneamed  Exercise Expiration That Have Not ThatHave Not That Have Not  That Have Not
Name Exarcisabte Unexercisable  Options (#)  Price (§) Date Vested (#)° Vasted (3)° Vested (#} Viastad (3)

David P. Storch. . . .. .. 170,000 0 1] 23.50 1/1/08 267,335 8,668,300 0 0
185,000 0 23.50 1/1/09
128,556 1] 14.96 10/11/10
29,800 0 2241 10111110
29,799 Y 2241 101110
116,668 0 2241 THOM
95,138 0 16.18 7/9112
29,730 0 16.18 T/aN2
25,724 0 14.95 7/912
33,161 0 14.96  7/2113
27,607 0 17.97  7/2113

Timothy J. Romenesko . 15,000 0 0 23.0834 10/8/07 73,184 2,378,400 ) 0
26,750 [} 17.75 10/14/08
25,000 0 22625 7/13f08
20,094 o] 1606 71140
8,425 0 2552 7111410
4,000 0 14890  710/11
9,341 0 2552  7THOM
2141 0 16.05 7/9/12
2,140 0 16.05 71912
30,000 0 696 7/21/13
3,977 4] 17.50 7/21113

James J. Clark . . .. ... 6,000 0 0 23.0834 10/8/07 70,434 2,289,100 0 o}
8,750 0 17.75 10/14/08
12,750 0 22,625 7M13/09
9,615 0 2795 THIMO0
3,000 ¢ 1490 7/10/11
6,297 o 2785 7M10M11
10,631 1] 16.16 79112
2,801 0 16.33 Tieh2
2,657 1] 16.16 71912
30,000 0 696 7/2113
5,493 0 2534 7/2113
5,493 Y 2534  7/2113
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Qutstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End Table (cont’d)

Option Awards’ Rastricted Stock Awards
Equity
'Equ':ty ' Equity Incentiva Plan
Incenttve Incentive Plan Awards:
Lt Plar Awards: et + Awerds: Market or
Number of Number of Number of N L Number of Payout Value
Sacurities Securities Sacurities Numbser of Market Value Unearned of Uneamed
‘Underlying Underlying Underlying Shares or of Sharesor  Shares, Units,  Shargs, Linits
Unexercised  Unexercised  Unexercised  Option Option  Units of Stock  Units of Stock  or Other Rights  or Other Rights
Options (#)  Options (#) Unearnad Exercise [Expiration ThatHave Not That Have Not  That Have Not  That Have Not
Name Exercisable  Unexarcisable _Options {#) Price ($) Date Vested (#)° Vested {§)* Vested (#) Vested {($)
Mark McDonald*. . .. .. 2,689 0 00 27.42 10/14/08 67,334 2,188,300 0 1]
4,951 0 Y2742 7/13/09
5,759 0 17.50 7/1110
1,000 0 1480  7H0/M1
3,405 0 17.50 710N
4,981 0 15.52 719112
996 0 15.52 7912
2,000 0 3.20 10/9/12 -
206 0 1552 10/912
183 0 17.50 10/9/12
116 0 2742 10/9N12
30,000 Q 696 72113
7.954 0 17.50  7/2113
Howard A. Pulsifer . . .. 12,000 0 0 23.0834 10/8/07 70,034 2,276,100 1] 0
9,100 1] 17.75 10/14/08
- 5078 1] 25.34 10/14/08
13,000 o 22,825 T7N3/09 '
2,767 1] 17.00 711110
, 1,502 1] 17.00  7/11/10
7.424 1) 2534 7/11/10
4,030 1] 2534 71110
3,000 o 1490 7/10/11
7,056 o 2534 - 7101 -
1,592 o 16.18 7/9/12
6,371 [+] 16.18 7/9/12
1,860 [¢] 13.85 - 792 '
30,000 0 696 72113
5,025 4] 13.85 7/2113 .
3,873 0 1797 72113 !

! All stock options held by named executive officers are fully vested. Certain options listed are “reload” options which have
an exercise price equal to the NYSE closing price on the date the original option was exercised but-retain the original

oplion expiration date. The Company no longer grants reload option

eliminate the reload provisions. .
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End Table (cont'd)

2 These restricted stock awards were granted in connection with attainment of previously established performance goals
under the Stock Benefit Pian. The vesting schedules applicable to the restricted stock are as follows:

Restricted Stock Award Grant Date Vesting Date Vasting Percentage

10/8/97 10/8/01 30%
10/8/04 30%
10/8/07 40%
7/11/00 711/04 25%
7/11/06 25%
711/07 50%

7/21/03 7/21/06 33.33%

7/21/07 33.33%

7/21/08 33.34%
5/31/05 7/15/06 20%
7/16/08 40%
7/15/10 40%
6/3/05 7/15/06 20%
7/16/08 40%
715/10 40%
5/11/07 6/1/09 20%
8/1/11 40%
6/1/13 40%

| Vesting Is accelerated upon the participant's termination of employment as follows:

Retirement (as defined in the Stock Benefit Plan): For the 10/8/97, 7/11/00 and 7/21/03 awards, the awards vest as of such
retirement date. For the 5/31/05, 6/2/05 and 5/11/07 awards, the awards vest in accordance with the vesting schedule.

Death or Disability (as defined in the Stock Benefit Plan) on or before third anniversary of grant: the difference between
one-halt of the total award shares and the number of shares already vested will vest as of such termination. After the third
anniversary of grant: all award shares vest as of such termination.

2 This column shows the market value of the unvested restricted stock held by the named executive officers, basedon a
price of $32.50 per share (the closing market price of the common stock on May 31, 2007).

‘ All restricted stock for Mr. McDonald not vested on July 31, 2007 was forfeited pursuant to the terms of the restricted stock
grant due to his resignation.




Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table

This table sets forth information for each named executive officer concerning (1) the exercise of
options during Fiscal 2007, (2) the dollar amount realized on exercise of the options, (3) the number of
shares of restricted stock that vested during Fiscal 2007, and (4) the value of those vested shares.

QOption Awards Stock Awards

Number of Shares Value Realized Number of Shares Value Realized
Name Acquired on Exercise (#) on Exercise ($)'  Acquired on Vesting (#)  on Vesting ($)
David P, Storch . .......... 438,836 6,068,300 42 665 971,800
Timothy J. Romenesko ..... 345 3,000 17,041 392,800
James J. Clark ............ 0 1] 15,666 360,100
Mark McDonald ........... 0 0 12,666 288,800
Howard A. Pulsiter . .. ... ... 0 0 14,416 330,400

' These amounts represent the pre-tax difference between the option exercise price and the closing market price of the
common stock an the date of exercise, multiplied by the number of shares of common stock covered by the options
exercised.

2 These amounts represent the closing market price of the common stock on the date of vesting, multiplied by the number of
shares that vested.
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Retirement Program Benefits

Pension Benefits

The Company provides defined benefit pension benefits under the Supplemental Key Employee
Retirement Plan ("SKERP”} and the Retirement Plan. This table shows the years of service currently
credited to each named executive officer under the applicable plan and the present value of the
accumulated benefit payable under the applicable plan to each named executive officer at the earliest
age an unreduced benefit is payable.

Pension Benefits Table

Number of Years Present Value Of Payments During

Credited Service  Accumulated Benefit Last Fiscal Year
Name Plan Name (#)* 2 ($)
DavidP.Storch ................... Retirement Plan 26.4 549,800 0
SKERP N/A 604,000 0
Timothy J. Romenesko ............. Retirement Plan 24.4 486,000 0
SKERP N/A 99,400 0
JamesJ. Clark® . ............ ... ... Retiremeant Plan 22.6 144,900 0
SKERP N/A N/A N/A,
Mark McDonald®. . ................. Retirement Plan 9 51,500 0
SKERP N/A N/A N/A
Howard A. Pulsifer . .., ............. Retirement Plan 17.7 807,400 0
SKERP N/A 325,500 0

' Number of Years of Credited Service as of May 31, 2005, the date the plan was frozen,

2 Amounts shown in this column are calculated as of May 31, 2007, which is the measurement date for reporting purposes in
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal 2007. See footnote 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
corntained in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for an explanation of the assumptions made by the Company in
determining the amounts reported in this column.

3 Mr. Clark and Mr. McDonald are not participants in the defined benefit portion of the SKERP.

SKERP — Defined Benefit Portion

The Company provides supplemental retirement benefits to certain executives and key employees
under the SKERP. The SKERP, which is a non-qualified plan, contains a defined benefit portion and a
defined contribution portion (discussed below). Only Mr. Storch, Mr. Romenesko and Mr. Pulsifer
participate in the defined benefit portion of the SKERP, the material terms and conditions of which
include the following:

Benefit Accruals:  Under the defined benefit portion of the SKERP, benefits were accrued until
October 1, 2001 pursuant to a formula that provides a monthly single life annuity at retirement at age
65 equal to (i} V42 of 60% (50% for Mr. Romenesko and Mr. Pulsifer) of Final Average Earnings less

(i) the monthly benefit payable under the Company's Retirement Plan determined as of October 1,
2001. For purposes of this benefit formula, (i) Final Average Earnings is defined as % of a participant’s
Compensation during the consecutive five years within the last 10 years preceding termination of
employment during which such Compensation was the highest, and (i) Compensation is defined as
the participant’s income reponted on Form W-2, including pre-tax contributions to the Retirement
Savings Plan, reduced by the income attributable to restricted stock and stock options,
reimbursements or other expense allowances and fringe benefits. Benefits accrued on and after
October 1, 2001 under the defined benefit portion of the SKERP will accrue pursuant to a formula that
provides a monthly single life annuity at retirement at age 65 equal to 2 of 80% (50% for

Mr. Romenesko and Mr. Pulsifer) of 25% of the percentage increase in the participant's base salary
from September 30, 2001 to the date of the participant’s termination of employment. The benefits
accrued by each of the three participants under this formula as of May 31, 2006 have been or will be
transferred to the defined contribution portion of the SKERP and held in an account established and
maintained thereunder for each participant, so that as of June 1, 2008 the entire benefit accrued as of
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May 31, 2006 will have been transferred. Of the amounts shown in the “Present Value of Accumulated
Benefit" column above, the following amounts remain to be transferred to the defined contribution
portion of the SKERP: Mr. Storch $586,000; Mr. Romenesko $93,300; Mr. Pulsifer $310,300.

Benefits accrued under the defined benefit portion of the SKERP for all other participants, including
the other named executive officers, ceased on October 1, 2001 and were distributed to them in a lump
sum as soon as practicable thereafter. )

Benefit Entittement: A participant is eligible to receive the benefit accrued under the SKERP following
termination of employment when he attains age 65. If a participant terminates employment after he
has attained age 55 and his age plus years of service equal or exceed 62, benefits will be paid on the
date of his termination or on a date no later than 15 years after termination of employment, as
previously specified by the participant. '

Form of Benefit Payment: Each participant has previously elected to have the remainder of his
retirement benefit paid in a lump sum. The assumptions set forth in the Company’s Retirement Plan
will be used to convert the retirement benefits from an annuity payment to a lump sum. The participant
may change the time or form of payment in accordance with procedures set forth in the SKERP.

Forfeiture Events: A participant will forfeit the retirement benefit if his employment is terminated due
to theft, embezzlement or fraud or willful misconduct in the performance of his duties that materially
injures the Company, or if during employment or the one-year period thereafter the participant violates
the covenant not to compete contained in the SKERP. As a condition to receiving his retirement
benefit, a participant must agree in writing to return his benefit, plus 8% interest, in the event of such a
forfeiture. The forfeiture provision does not apply if the participant’s termination of employment causes
benefits to be paid to him under Change in Contral provisions of any agreement between the
participant and the Company.

Retirement Plan

The Company’s Retirement Plan is a tax-qualified pension plan. Benefit accruals ceased under the
Retirement Plan with respect to most participants, including the named executive officers, effective
June 1, 2005. The material terms and conditions of the Retirement Plan as they pertain to the named
executive officers are as follows:

Benefit formula:  Until January 1, 2000 benefits were accrued pursuant to a formula that provides a
monthly single life annuity at retirement at age 65 equal to 1-2% of the participant's Final Average
Earnings reduced by the participant's Social Security offset determined under the Plan, multiplied by
the participant’s years of Credited Service (up to 20). Effective as of January 1, 2000, the Plan was
converted to a cash balance type of plan subject to a “grandfather” provision applicable to certain
participants based on age and years of service. An account is maintained for each participant which
consists of (i) an opening account balance equal to the then present vatue of the benefit accrued by
the participant under the prior formula as of December 31, 1999, (i) quarterly contributions made by
the Company equal to a percentage of compensation based on the participant’s age and years of
Credited Service, and (i) quarterly interest credits made by the Company equal to 25% of the 30-year
Treasury securities interest rate for the second month preceding the beginning of each quarter. For
purposes of the benefit formulae, “Final Average Earnings” and “Compensation” have the same
definitions as used in the SKERP, as discussed above.

The benefits under the Retirement Plan generally ceased accruing on June 1, 2005, although the
participants’ cash balance accounts continue to be credited with interest until the benefits are
distributed. In connection with the benefit cessation, the Company will continue to make transition
credits to the accounts of certain non-highly compensated participants until they have attained 20
years of Credited Service. None of the named executive officers are eligible for these transition credits.

Vesting: Participants are eligible to receive benefits from the Retirement Plan after completing five
years of Vesting Service.
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Payment of Retirement Benefits: Participants can elect to receive their benefits upon termination of
employment or they can defer receipt of benefits until normal retirement age (age 65). A participant
who terminates employment after age 55 with 10 years of service can elect to receive benefits early,
with the normal retirement benefit being reduced by .5% for each of the first 60 months by which the
benefit commences before age 65 and .25% for each of the next 60 months by which the benefit
commences before age 65. A participant who is not eligible for a normal or early retirement but who
has 10 years of service can elect benefits at any time after attaining age 55, with the benefit reduced
as described above. Any vested participant can elect benefits at any time after termination of
employment, with the benefit actuarially reduced to reflect payment prior to age 65. The Retirement
Plan also provides for a disability retirement benefit.

Forms of Benefit Payment: The normal form of benefit payrment for a married participant is a joint and
50% survivor annuity, and the normal form of benefit payment for an unmarried participant is a single
life annuity. Participants, with spousal consent if applicable, can waive the normal form and elect to
have benefits paid in various annuity forms, which are the actuarial equivalent of the normal form, orin
a lump sum.

Retirernegnt Savings Plan: In connection with ceasing benefits under the Retirement Plan, the
Company amended its Retirement Savings Plan to provide additional benefits, as described below in
the discussion following the Nonqualified Compensation table.

Nonquallfied Deferred Compensation

The Company provides non-qualified deferred compensation benefits under the defined contrlbutlon
portion of the SKERP. The table below shows the contributions made by each named executive officer
and the Company in Fiscal 2007, the earnings accrued on the named executive officer’s account
balance in Fiscal 2007 and the account balance at May 31, 2007.

Non-Quallfied Deterred Compensation Table

Exscutive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
) Contributions  Contributions in ~ Earningsin  Withdrawals/  Balance at
In Last FY Last FY Last Distributions Last FYE

Name _ (8’ {8) {%° {$) {8)*
DavidP.Storch ........... ... .. ... 35,500 1,025,700 505,300 0 3,248,700
Timothy J. Romenesko .............. 52,000 194,200 86,700 0 550,800
JamesJ. Clark . .................... 4,600 92,100 8,800 0 114,500
MarkMcDonald .................... 111,100 82,200 80,600 0 511,800
0 1,569,200

Howard A. Pulsifer .. ................ 97,400 320,100 204,400

' The amount of contributions made by each named executive officer and reported in this column in respect of salary deferrals
in Fiscal 2007 is included in each named executive officer's compsnsation reported on the Summary Compensation Table as
Salary. The amount of contributions reported in this column atso reflects deferral of cash bonuses pald in Fiscal 2007 but
earned and reported on the Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal 2006,

2 This amount includes the amounts transferred from the definad benefit portion of the SKERP to the defined contribution
portion of the SKERP during fiscal 2007 for benefits earned prior to fiscal 2007, in the following amounts: Mr. Storch,
$567,900; Mr. Romenesko, $90,400; and Mr. Pulsifer, $299,500. Thase amounts are not included in the All Other
Compensation Table.

* The investment earnings reported in this column for each named executive officer are not reported on the Summary
Compensation Table.

4 The aggregate balance as of May 31, 2007 raported in this column for sach named executive officer reflects amounts that
have been previously reported a5 compensation on the Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal 2007 or prior years, axcept
the following amounts of earnings included in the account balance: Mr. Storch, $852,600; Mr. Romenesko, $138,500;

Mr. Clark, $8,800, Mr. McDonald, $123,100 and Mr. Pulsifer, $398,000, and the following cumulative amounts transferred
from the defined bensfit portion of the SKERP: Mr. Storch, $1,126,800; Mr. Romenesko, $179,500; and, Mr. Pulsifer,
$593,700.
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SKERP — Defined Contribution Portion

The defined contribution portion of the SKERP covers certain executives and key employees,
including all of the named executive officers, and provides the portion of a participant’s benefit that
cannot be paid under the Retirement Savings Plan due to any Internal Revenue Code limits, including
the limit on the amount of compensation that can be taken into account in determining benefits
($220,000, in 2006 and $225,000 in 2007). The material terms and conditions include the following:

Contributions: Each participant may make an election prior to the beginning of a calendar year to
contribute a portion of his base salary (up to 75%) for that calendar year that exceeds the Code’s
compensation limit and a portion of the bonus (up to 75%) paid to him for the Company's fiscal year
beginning in such calendar year that exceeds the Code’s compensation limit. The Company makes a
matching contribution under the SKERP using the formula in the Savings Plan (i.e., 20% of the
participant’s salary and bonus deferrals made under the SKERP, up to 5% of such salary and bonus),
as well as the portion of the Company's profit sharing contribution that could not be made under the
Savings Plan due to the Code's compensation limit. Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company also"
makes annual supplemental contributions to the accounts of the Chief Executive Officer (22% of base
salary), and certain other executive officers (10% of base salary). To receive a credit of this
contribution, the eligible participant must be employed as of the day before the contribution is made
to the SKERP (unless termination of employment is due to death or disability}.

Mr. Storch, Mr. Romenesko and Mr. Pulsifer also have amounts held in a supplemental account that
were or will be transferred from the defined benefit portion of the SKERP, which represent the lump
sum value of each participant's accrued benefit as of May 31, 2006 under the defined benefit portion.
Once transferred, such amounts are subject to the term and conditions of the defined contnbutlon
portion of the SKERP.

Vesting: A participant is fully vested in amounts attributable to his own deferral contnbutlons as well
as the Company matching and profit sharing contributions. A participant vests in amounts attributable
to Company supplemental contributions upon the earlier of age 57 with 15 years of service, or age 65.
Mr. Storch, Mr. Romenesko and Mr. Pulsifer are fully vested in the amounts of their benefits
transferred from the defined benefit portion of the SKERP. L

Investments: Each participant's plan accounts are credited with earnings and losses based on
investment alternatives made available by the plan committee and selected by the participant from
time to time. The investment options currently offered under the SKERP consist of 24 mutual funds
including 10 “Life Cycle” fund choices. Participants may change investment elections at any time.

Distributions: Distribution of a participant’s accounts is generally made upon the participant’s
termination of employment or on a date no later than 15 years after termination of employment, as
previously specified by the participant. Participants were to elect by December 31, 2005 whether their
accounts are to be paid in a lump sum or installments not to exceed 15 years (a participant who failed
to make an election will have his account paid in a lump sum). Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) a .
participant may elect distribution of the portion of his accounts earned and vested as of December 31;
2004 (and earnings thereon) upon six month’s advance written election or if such distribution is
subject to a 10% forfeiture; (i) a participant can change the time and form of payment of the portion of
his accounts earned and vested after December 31, 2004 in accordance with procedures set forth in
the plan; (i) a participant can elect a distribution at any time in order to satisfy an unforeseeable
hardship (as defined in the plan); (iv) in the event of a potential Change in Control of the Company (as
determined by the Board), the portion of the participant’s accounts earned and vested as of
December 31, 2004 (including earnings thereon) will be distributed in an immediate lump-sum; and
(v) in the event of adverse financial condition of the Company occurring prior to January 1, 2008 (as
specified in the plan), the Company can elect to distribute within 30 days the amounts credited to
participant's accounts as of March 21, 2006 in an immediate lump sum. Distributions to “key
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employees” as defined in Code Section 409A upon termination of employment will not be paid earlier
than six months following such termination.

Forfefture Events: A participant will forfeit the portion of his plan accounts attributable to Company
supplemental contributions and to amounts transferred from the defined benefit portion of the SKERP,
if applicable, if his employment is terminated due to theft, embezzlement or fraud or willful misconduct
in the performance of his duties that materially injures the Company, or if during employment or the
one-year period thereafter the participant violates the covenant not to compete contained in the
SKERP. As a condition to receiving such amounts, a participant must agree in writing to return such
amounts, plus 8% interest, in the event of such a forfeiture. The forfeiture provision does not apply if
the participant's termination of employment causes benefits to be paid to him under Change in
Control provisions of any agreement between the participant and the Company.

Fletirement Savings Plan

The Rettrement Savings Plan is a tax-qualified. retirement plan that covers ail U.S. employees generally
(excluding certain union employees), including the named executive officers. The material terms and
conditions are as follows:

Contributions: A participant can elect to defer 1%1to 75% of his Compensation on a pre-tax basis, up
to a maximum of $15,500 for 2007, or $20,500 if age 50 or older. Participation for non-union
employees is automatic, at a 3% deferral rate, unless the participant affirmatively elects not to
participate or to participate with a different deferral amount. The Company provides a matching
contribution, a profit sharing contribution and a retirement benefit contribution. The current matching
contribution is made as of each payroll period in an amount equal to 20% of the participant’s pre-tax
contributions {up to 5% of compensation) to the Plan for such payroll period. The profit sharing

contribution is made as of the end of each calendar year and is based on the participant’s pre-tax
contributions and the economic performance of the participant’s operating unit and is equal to a
percentage of the participant’s compensation, up'to 4%. The retirement benefit contribution, which is
also made as of the end of each calendar year, was added to the Plan, effective June 1, 2005, and is
equal to a percentage of compensation (up to 4%) based on the participant's age and years of
credited service. A participant must have earned a year of service to be eligible for a retirement benefit
contribution, and generally rust be employed on the last day of the calendar year to receive a profit
sharing contribution. Compensation for purposes of determining contributions includes cash
compensanon shown as income on the participant’s Form W-2, reduced by pre-tax contributions to
the plan'and excluding the income attributable to restricted stock options, reimbursements or other
expense allowances and fringe benefits and subject to the Code's compensation limit ($225,000 for
2007).

Investments: Each participant's plan accounts are cred1ted with earnings and losses based on
investment alternatrves made available by the plan committee and selected by the participant from
time to timé. The investment options currently offered under the plan consist of 24 mutual funds
including 10 “Life Cycle” fund choices. Participants may change investment elections at any time.,

Vesting: Participants hired prior to July 1, 1999 are fully vested in their accounts under the plan.
Participants hired on or after January 1, 1999 are fully vested in their pre-tax contribution accounts,
and vest in the Company contribution accounts at a rate equal to 33'4% for each year of vesting
service (subject to full vesting upon age 65, death or disability.

Distributions: _Participants can elect distributions of thé plan accounts upon termination of
employment, in a lump sum, an eligible rollover distribution, or, |f early or normal retirement has been
attained, in instaliments not to exceed 15 years.
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Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control of the Company

The Company provides certain benefits to eligible employees upon certain types of termination of
employment, including a termination of employment following a Change in Control of the Company. '
These benefits are in addition to the benefits to which the employees would be entitled upon a
termination of employment generally (i.e., vested retirement benefits accrued as of the date of
termination, stock options and restricted stock that are otherwise vested as of the date of termination
and the right to elect continued health coverage pursuant to COBRA). These benefits as they pertain
to the named executive officers are as described and set forth in the tables below.

Employment Agreement of David P. Storch

The Company has entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Storch with a term that ends on
May 31, 2010 unless the parties mutually agree to an extension. The agreement provides the following
severance benefits:

Termination — Prior to a Change in Control:  f employment agreement term expires without
extension and Mr. Storch’s employment subsequently terminates for reasons other than Cause, or if
prior to a Change in Control either the Company terminates his employment without Cause or

Mr. Storch terminates his employment for Good Reason, he is entitled to (i) continued payment of his
base salary for 36 months, and (i) a lump sum payment equal to three times the average of the cash
incentive bonus paid to him for the preceding three fiscal years of the Company. If Mr. Storch’s
termination is due to retirement after age 55, he and his eligible dependents are entitled to continued
coverage under the Company’s medical, dental and executive health programs for his lifetime (or until
he abtains health coverage from a new employer). Payments cease upon any material breach of the
confidentiality and non-compete provisions set forth in the agreement, which are in effect for the two-
year period following any voluntary termination of employment or a termination of employment by the
Company without Cause prior to a Change in Control.

Termination — Following a Change in Control:  If Mr. Storch’s employment is terminated within

24 months following a Change in Control either by the Company for other than Cause or disability or
by Mr. Storch for Good Reason, or if his employment terminates for any reason other than disability or
death during the 30-day period following the 24th month after a Change in Control, he is entitled to

(i) an immediate lump sum payment equal to the sum of (A) any unpaid salary and bonus earned for
the preceding fiscal year, (B) a prorata portion of the bonus that would have been paid to the
executive had he remained employed until the end of the fiscal year and all performance targets were
met, and (C) three times his base salary and cash bonus for either the most recently completed fiscal
year prior to the termination or the preceding fiscal year, whichever produces the higher amount,

(iiy continued coverage for the executive and his dependents under the Company's welfare and fringe
benefit plans for three years following termination of employment (the executive and his dependents
can elect continued medical and dental coverage pursuant to COBRA at the end of such three year
period, (iii} a lump sum payment of the additional benefits that would be earned under the Company's
Retirement Savings Plan and SKERP equal to the amount attributable to Company contributions that
would have been made had his elective contributions continued and had he accumulated three
additional years of service, and a gross-up payment to cover any related income tax liability,

(iv) Company-paid outplacement services for the earlier of 18 months or the attainment of new
employment (up to a maximum Company expense of 3.5% of the amount paid to Mr. Storch pursuant
to (i)(C) above), (v) reasonable legal fees incurred by the executive in enforcing the agreement, and
(vi) a gross-up payment to cover any excise and related tax liability arising under Section 280G of the
Internal Revenue Code as a result of any payment or benefit arising under the agreement. The
agreement’s non-compete provisions do not apply in the case of a termination of employment
following a Change in Control.
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Termination — Disability: If Mr. Storch’s employment terminates due to disability, Mr. Storch will
receive payment pursuant to the Company’s disability plans then in effect and will continue to receive
coverage under the Company’s medical, dental and life insurance plans for three years following such
termination.

The agreement also provides that upon any Change in Control, all outstanding stock options and
restricted stock vest immediately, and all performance based restricted stock shares will be awarded
according to the performance matrix set forth in the agreement based on the higher of the target or
actual Company performance through the date of the Change in Control.

For purposes of the agreement:

“Change in Control” means (i) a person's acquisition of more than 35% of the voting power of the
Company’s outstanding stock, (ii) a merger or consolidation of the Company that results in the
holders of the voting stock immediately prior thereto holding less than 60% of the voting stock of the
resulting or surviving entity, (iii) a sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets other than to an
entity at least 80% owned by the Company, or (iv} the election, without the consent of the incumbent
Board, of a majority of the directors then in office.

“Cause” means Mr. Storch’s (i) dishonesty, intentional breach of fiduciary duty, or intentional
wrongdoing, (ii} disregard of proper direction from the Board or Company, or (iii) material breach of
the Agreement that is not cured within 30 days of receipt of notice from the Company.

“Good Reason” means (i) a raterial reduction in the nature or scope of Mr. Storch's duties or
responsibilities or in his compensation (including benefits), {ii) his determination that as a result of a
material change in employment circumstances he is unable to adequately carry out his duties, (i) a
material breach of the Agreement by the Company that is not cured within 30 days of receipt of notice
from Mr. Storch, or (iv) a relocation of his primary place of employment of 50 or more miles.

Severance and Change in Control Agreements

The Company has entered into severance and change in control agreements with the named
executive officers other than Mr. Storch and with certain other key employees. The Agreements as
they pertain to these named executive officers provide for the following benefits upan the foliowing
types of employment termination:

Termination — Prior to a Change in Controf: If a Change in Control of the Company has not occurred
and the executive's employment is terminated by the Company for other than Cause, he is entitled to
(i) continued salary for 12 months, or if earlier, until the executive obtains comparable employment,

(i) any earned bonus not yet paid for the preceding fiscal year, and {iii) a prorata portion of the bonus
that would have been paid to the executive had he remained employed until the end of the fiscal year
in which the termination occurs. Any bonus will be paid in a lump sum on the later of the time bonuses
are paid to other officers and the end of the severance period {with interest at the prime rate plus 1%
from the earlier of such dates). If the executive terminates his employment, or if the Company
terminates the executive's employment for Cause, the Company may, but is not required to, pay the
above-described severance benefits. Severance payments will cease if the executive breaches the
confidentiality or non-compete provisions in the agreement, which are in effect for the one-year
severance period.

Termination — Following a Change in Control: i the executive's employment is terminated within 18
months (24 for Mr. Clark) following a Change in Control by the Company for other than Cause or
disability or by the executive for Good Reason, or if the executive’s employment terminates for any
reason other than disability ar death during the 30-day period following the 18" month (24" month for
Mr. Ciark) after a Change in Control, he is entitied to (i) an immediate lump sum payment equal to the
sum of (A) any unpaid salary and bonus earned for the preceding fiscal year, (B) a prorata portion of
the bonus that would have been paid to the executive had he remained employed until the end of the
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fiscal year and all performance targets were met (including the value of any restricted stock granted in
lieu of bonus), and {C) three times his base salary and cash bonus for either the most recently
completed fiscal year prior to the termination or the preceding fiscal year, whichever produces the
higher amount, (i) continued coverage for the executive and his dependents under the Company's
welfare and fringe benefit plans (medical, dental and life insurance plans for Mr. Clark) for three years
following termination of employment {the executive and his dependents can elect continued medical
and dental coverage pursuant to COBRA at the end of such three year period), (iii} an immediate lump
sum payment equal to the actuarial equivalent of the additional benefits that would be earned under
the Company's retirement plans with three additional years of service and for Mr. Romenesko,

Mr. McDonald and Mr. Pulsifer, a gross-up payment to cover any related income tax liability,

(iv) Company-paid outplacement services for the earlier of 18 months or the attainment of new
employment (up to a maximum Company expense of 3.5% of the amount paid to the executive
pursuant to (i}(C) above), {v) reasonable legal fees incurred by the executive in enforcing the
agreement, and (vi) a gross-up payment to cover any excise and related tax lability arising under
Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code as a result of any payment or benefit arising under the
agreement. The agreements’ non-compete provisions do not apply in the case of a termination of
employment following a Change in Control.

Termination — Disabifity: If the executive's employment terminates due to disability, the executive will
receive payment pursuant to the Company'’s disability plans then in effect and will continue to receive
coverage under the Company's medical, dental and life insurance plans for three years following such
termination.

The agreements also provide that upon any Change in Control, ali outstanding stock options and
restricted stock will vest immaediately.

For purposes of the agresments:

“Change in Control” means (j) a person’s acquisition of more than 20% of the voting power of the
Company's outstanding stock, (i) @ merger or consolidation of the Company that results in the
holders of the voting stock immediately prior thereto holding less than 60% of the voting stock of the
resulting or surviving entity, (i) a sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets other than to an
entity at least 80% owned by the Company, or {iv) the election, without the consent of the incumbent
Board, of the lesser of three directors or a majority of the directors then in office.

“Cause” means the exscutive’s (i) dishonesty, intentional breach of fiduciary duty, or intentional
wrongdoing, (il) disregard of proper direction from the Board or Company, or (iii) material breach of
the Agreement that is not cured within 10 days of receipt of notice from the Company.

“Good Reason” means (i) a material reduction in the nature or scope of the executive’s duties or
responsibilities, or in his compensation (including benefits), (ii) if Mr. Storch is not the Chief Executive
Officer at the time of termination, the executive’s determination that as a result of a material change in
employment circumstances he is unable to adequately carry out his duties, or (iii) a relocation of the
executive’s primary place of employment by more than 100 miles.

Spilit Dollar Insurance Agreements

The Company has also entered into split dollar life insurance agreements with certain key employees,
including four of the named executive officers. Under the agreements, the employees own the
policies, except that the Company owns the cash value portion of the poticies. The Company funds
the annual insurance premiums for the policies during the term of the agreement subject to
reimbursement from the cash value or death benefit proceeds of the policies. Upon a Change in
Control of the Company (as defined above), the Company will prepay all premiums, plus any amounts
necessary for the cash value and death benefits to be at the same level at the Change in Control date.
If the executive’s employmaent terminates after a Change in Control and benefits are paid under the
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Severance and Change in Control Agreements, the Split Dollar Agreements will continue for the
severance period. '

Restricted Stock and Stock Options

The severance and change in control agreements provide that on a Change in Control of the
Company, all restricted stock and stock options immediately vest.

Mr. Storch’s employment agreement provides that on a Change in Control of the Company, all
restricted stock and stock options immediately vest, and all performance-restricted stock shares will
be awarded according to the performance matrix set forth in the agreement based on the higher of the
target or actual Company performance through the Change in Control date.

A named executive officer’s termination of employment can also result in enhanced benefits under the
Company Stock Benefit Plan, depending on the reason for such termination:

If the termination is due to Retirement (as defined in.the Plan), options continue to remain exercisable
as if employment continues. If the termination is due to Disability (as defined in the Plan) or death, or if
the Executive dies within three months of termination for reasons other than cause, options will expire
on the earlier of one year from death or the expiration of the option by its terms.

If the termination is due to Retirement (as defined in the Plan) ail restricted stock awards vest as of
such termination for awards having a grant date earlier than September 1, 2004; awards having a
grant date on or after 9/1/04 continue to vest in accordance with their vesting schedule. If the
termination is due to Disability (as defined in the Plan) or death on or before the third anniversary of
the date of grant, then the difference between one-half of the total award shares and the number of
shares already vested will vest as of such termination. If the termination is due to Disability or death
after the third anniversary of the date of grant, all awards shares will vest as of such termination.

Table of Potential Payments
Upon Termination of Employment
"~ or Change in Control
The tables set forth below quantify the additional benefits described above that would be paid to each

named executive officer under the foliowing termination or change in control event, assuming a
change in.control or a termination accurred on June 1, 2007

' Mr. McDonald is excluded from the tables because he is no longer an employee of the Company.
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1

Change in Control (No Termination of Employment)

Name Vesting of Restricted Stock' ($)
DavidP.Storch ........... ... .. ... 8,688,300
Timothy J. Romenesko .................. 2,378,400
JamesJ.Clark . ... ... ... L, 2,289,100
Howard A.Pulsifer . . .................... 2,276,100

Under the Stock Benefit Plan, all restricted stock vests upon a Change in Control of the Company. This amount reflects the

number of shares that would have vested upon a Change in Control on June 1, 2007, based on the number of shares
multiplied by $32.50, the closing price of the common stock on May 31, 2007. All stock options are already vested.

. Termination Prior to a Change in Control

Other Than Cause Disability Death

Restricted  Health & Health & Stock Restricted  Stock  Restricted
Salary' Bonus? Stock Stock* Wellare® Welfare® Options”  Stock’  Options’  Stock®

Name 6] {$) . Options® (8} ($) ] () 3 #_ &

David P. Storch. .. .. .. 2,304,700 2,727,700 0 0 372,600 52,900 0 3,650,800 0 3,650,800
Timothy J. Romenesko . 400,000 0 0 o 0 52900 0 - 871,200 0 871,200
James J. Clark . .... .. 310,500 0 0 0 0 52500 0 883,400 0 883,400
Howard A. Pulgifer . ... , 296,700 0 0 0 0 46,300 0 878,600 0 878,600

3

Per employment agreement (Mr. Storch) and severance and change In control agreements,

Per employment agreement (Mr. Storch) and severance and change in control agreements.

If terminaticn is due to retirement, options remain exercisable for their term. This amount reflects the value of the options remaining exercisable
past the 90 day post-termination period that would otherwise apply upon termination without Cause on June 1, 2007.

If termination is due to retirement, restricted stock awards continue to vest in accordance with the award's vesting schedule subject to
compiiance with non-compete covenants applicable to all awards.

Available if Mr. Storch retires after age 55.
Per employment agreement (Mr. Storch) and severance and change in contro! agreements,

Under the Stock Benefit Plan, if termination is due to death or disability, options remain exercisable for one year, or if earlier, until the options
expire by thelr terms. This amount reflects the value of the options remaining exercisable past the 80 day post-termination period that would
otherwise apply upon termination without Cause. 1

‘This amount reflects the value of the restricted stock that would have vested upon termination due to death or disability at June 1, 2007, based

on the number of sharas, multiplied by $32.50, the closing price of the stock on May 31, 2007.

Termination Following Change in Control’

Vestingof  Health & Additional
Restricted Waelfare Retirement Qutplacement 280G
Salary Bonus Stock?  Continuation Plan Credits Services Gross-Up
$ $ $ N $

Name $

DavidP.Storch . ............ 2.304,700 3,284,500 0 52,900 1,509,000 195,600 5,643,100
Timothy J. Romenesko .. ...... 1,200,000 1,207,700 o} 52,900 361,100 84,200 2,201,500
James J.Clark . .. ... ..\ . 931,500 1,705,700 0 52,900 395,500 92,300 2,324,600
Howard A. Pulsifer ... ........ 890,200 559,000 0 46,300 72,400 50,700 1,590,700

1

2

Per employment agreement (Mr. Storch) and severance and change in control agreements,

Vesting of restricted stock occurs upon the Change in Control. See Table captioned “Change in Control {No termination of
Employment)” table.
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Viii. REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

During Fiscal 2007, the Audit Committee was comprised of five independent directors. Each member
of the Audit Committee is independent within the meaning of the applicable SEC regulations, NYSE
rules and the Company's Categorical Standards and Policy for Determining Director Independence,
and is qualified as an “audit committee financial expert.”

The Company’s management is primarily responsible for the Company’s financial statements and the
quality and integrity of the reporting process and systems of internal control. The Company's
independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for auditing the Company’s financial
statements and management's assessment and the effectiveness of internal controls over financial
reporting and for expressing opinions thereon. The Audit Committee has the authority to obtain advice
and assistance from outside legal, accounting or other advisors as the Audit Committee deems
necessary to carry out its duties with funding from the Company.

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the
Company’s audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2007, with the Company’s
management and representatives of the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm,
including a discussion of the reasonableness of significant judgments and accounting estimates, and
clarity of disclosures in the financial statements. The Audit Committee also reviewed with
management and the independent registered public accounting firm the preparation of the financial
statements and related disclosures contained in the Company's earnings announcements and
quarterly reports. Management has represented to the Audit Committee that the Company’s financial
statements were prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(*GAAP") and the independent registered public accounting firm has expressed an opinion based on
their audit that the financial statements are in conformance with GAAP in all material respects. The
Audit Committee is not responsibie for pfanning or conducting audits, or the determination that the
Company's financial statements are complete and accurate and in accordance with GAAP, That is the
responsibility of management and the independent registered public accounting firm.

The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm
and management the overall scope and plans for the audit, the quality, adequacy and assessment of
the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting, and the internal Audit Department’s
management, organization, responsibilities, budget and staffing. The Audit Committee also met with
the independent registered public accounting firm representatives without management present and
discussed the results of their audits, their evaluation of the Company's internal controls over financial
reporting, disclosure controls and the overall quality (not just acceptability) of the Company's
accounting policies and financial reporting.

The Audit Committee also discussed with the representatives of the independent registered public
accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. €1,
Communication with Audit Committees, as amended, the independent registered public accounting
firm's independence from the Company and its management, including the matters in the written
disclosures and letter furnished to the Audit Committee by the independent registered public
accounting firm and required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, Independence
Discussions with Audit Committees, and determined that the non-audit services provided to the
Company by the independent registered public accounting firm are compatible with maintaining the
independent registered public accounting firm’s independence.

In reliance on its review of the audited financial statements and the discussions referred to above and
subject to the limitations on the role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee referred to above and
in the charter, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited financial
statements be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31,
2007, for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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The Audit Committee also (i) reviewed and assessed the adequacy of the Audit Committee Charter
and (i} conducted an Audit Committee self-assessment in which it concluded that the Committee
operates effectively and successfully carried out all of its Charter responsibilities.

Audit Committee

James E. Goodwin, Chairman
James G. Brocksmith, Jr. -
Gerald F. Fitzgerald, Jr.

Marc J. Walfish

Ronald B. Woodard
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IX. PROPOSAL 2
RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF KPMG LLP AS THE COMPANY’S
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors appointed KPMG LLP (“KPMG”) as the
Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending May 31, 2008
(“Fiscal 2008"), after consideration and determination of KPMG's independence in light of all services
rendered to the Company and its performance as the Company's independent registered public
accounting firm in prior years. The Board of Directors asks that the stockholders ratify the
appointment of KPMG as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for Fiscal
2008. Representatives of KPMG are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting, with the
opportunity to make a statement if they so desire and to respond to appropriate questions of
stockholders.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees And Services

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm reports to, and is engaged at the
direction of, the Audit Committee.

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed by KPMG to the Company for Fiscal 2007 and
Fiscal 2006 for audit, audit related, tax, and other services provided by the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm:

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Services

Type of Fees Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2008
F U0 [ == - O $1,335,000 $1,265,000
AUt Related FaES . .. i it et e e 140,800 117,600
TN FEEE L L ittt et e e e e e e e 200,200 193,000
Al OINEr FOBST . . o oot ittt i i e e e — 28,300

T Audit related fees in FY20086 were for a comfort letter, statutory audits of foreign subsidiaries and acquisition due diligence
assistance; audit related fees in FY2007 were for acquisition due diligence and statutory audits of foreign subsidiaries.

2 Tax fees include federal tax return reviews,

3 Al other fees in FY2006 include consuitation and assistance regarding government contract accounting.

Audit Committee pre-approval is required for any audit, audit related, tax or other services to be
provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in excess of $100,000 in the
aggregate, with the Audit Committee Chairman to report any decisions to pre-approve such services
to the full Audit Committee at its next meeting.

Information regarding security ownership of management and certain beneficial owners is
incorporated by reference to the information contained under the caption “Security Ownership of
Management and Cthers” in Part Il on pages 7 and 8 above.

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of Common Stock present in person or by proxy and
voting at the Annual Meeting is required to ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF KPMG LLP AS THE COMPANY'S INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM.
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X. OTHER BUSINESS

Management knows of no other matters which are to be brought before the Annual Meeting, However,
if any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, the named proxy holders will vote all
proxies in their discretion and best judgment on such other matters.
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XI. STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS
FOR THE 2008 ANNUAL MEETING

Any stockholder who wishes to present a proposal for consideration at the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held in 2008 must submit such proposal in accordance with the rules promulgated
by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Under the Company’s By-Laws, in order for a proposal
to be eligible for action by the stockholders at and inclusion in the Company’s Proxy Statement and
form of proxy relating to the 2008 Annual Meeting, the stockholder must submit such proposal to the
Company, in writing, to be received by the Secretary of the Company, AAR CORP., One AAR Piace,
1100 N. Wood Dale Road, Wood Dale, lllinois 60191, no later than April 21, 2008.

A stockholder proposal submitted outside Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act for presentation at the
2008 Annual Meeting will be considered untimely for purposes of Rules 14a-4 and 14a-5 under the
Exchange Act if notice of the stockholder proposal is received by the Company after April 16, 2008.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Howard A. Pulsifer
Secretary

August 31, 2007

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY RECORD HOLDER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF
COMMON STOCK OF AAR CORP., THE COMPANY WILL PROVIDE, WITHOUT CHARGE, A
COPY OF ITS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2007. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE
TO MR. HOWARD A. PULSIFER, SECRETARY, AAR CORP., ONE AAR PLACE, 1100 N. WOOD
DALE ROAD, WOOD DALE, ILLINOIS 60191, (630) 227-2000.
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APPENDIX 1

AAR CORP.
CATEGORICAL STANDARDS AND POLICY FOR
DETERMINING DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

It is the policy and practice of AAR CORP. (“AAR" or “Company”) that the directors of the Company,
when carrying out their duties, must exercise their independent judgment in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

In addition, it is the policy of the Company that a majority of its directors, and all directors serving on
the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee, shall
be “independent”, as determined by the Board in accordance with the independence standards of the
New York Stock Exchange (*“NYSE").

At least once each year, the Board shall review the “independence” of each director and any nominee
for director and make a determination whether the director or nominege has any material relationship
with the Company (either directly or indirectly as a partner, shareholder, or officer of an organization
that has a relationship with the Company) that would impair the director's ability to exercise
independent judgment as a member of the Board.

To assist it in determining a director's “independence”, the Board has adopted the following
categorical standards for determining director “independence” status with respect to service as a
director":

1. For purposes of these guidelines, “AAR” or “Company” includes each of the Company's
subsidiaries and “immediate family member” means the spouse, parents, children, siblings,
mothers- and fathers-in-law, sons- and daughters-in-law, brothers- and sisters-in-law, and anyone
{other than domestic employees) who shares the person’s home; provided, that any such
persons who no longer have any such relationship as a result of legal separation or divorce, or
death or incapacitation, shall not be considered immediate family members.

2. No director shall be independent if he/she does not meet the independent standards adopted
from time to time by the NYSE. Specifically, a director will not be “independent” if, currently or
within the preceding three years:

(i} the director is or was an employee of the Company, or whose immediate family member is or
was an executive officer of the Company; or

(i) the director or an immediate family member of the director receives or received more than
$100,000 in direct compensation from AAR in any year during the most recent three year
period, other than director and committee fees, pension or other forms of deferred
compensation for prior service; or

(iif) (A} The director or an immediate family member is a current partner of a firm that is the
Company’s internal or external auditor; (B) the director is a current employee of such firm;
(C}) the director has an immediate farmily member who is a current employee of such firm and
who participates in the firm’s audit, assurance or tax compliance (but not tax pianning)
practice; or (D) the director or an immediate family member was, within the last three years
{but is no longer), a partner or employee of such firm and personally worked on the
Company's audit during that time; or

(iv) the director or an immediate family member of the director is or was within the last three
years an executive cfficer of another company on whose Compensation Committee any of
AAR's present elected officers serves or served; or

' Directors serving on the Audit Commitiee must also meat the enhanced “independence” requirements under applicable
NYSE rules and SEC regulations (see paragraph 6 below).




(v) the director or an immediate family member of the director is or was an executive officer,

partner, employee, or greater than 10% owner of another company that makes payments to,
or receives payments from, the Company that in any single fiscal year exceeds the greater of
$1 million or 2% of the other company’s consolidated gross revenues (payments to and
payments from are compared against the benchmarks separately).

In determining director independenc’é, the Board will give consideration to all known relevant

facts and circumstances.

Subject to the Board's determination pursuant to this Section 4, the following commercial or
charitable relationships are deemed not material retatioriships that would impair a director's
independence unless otherwise determined by the Board after considering all relevant facts and
circumstances:

(i) The director or an immediate family member of the director receives or received less than
$100,000 in direct compensation from the Company in any year other than director and
committee fees, pensions or other forms of deferred compensation for prior service,

(i) The director or an immediate family member of the director is an executive officer, partner,
employee, or has an ownership interest in, another company that does business with the
Company and the gross annual revenues from such business to the Company or such other
company account for less than the greater of $1 million or 2% of their respective gross
annual revenues;

(i) If a director or an immediate family member of the director serves as an officer, director or
trustee of a charitable organization, and AAR’s charitable contributions to the organization do
not exceed in any year the greater of $50,000 or 1% of that organization’s total annual
charitable receipts.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a director or his/her immediate family member has another
significant relationship with the Company that is not described in Section 2 or this Section 4, or, at
any time, is the subject of a written request by any director to the Chairman of the Nominating
and Governance Committee requesting a review of another director’s independent status and
stating the reasons therefor, then the Board of Directors will determine whether that director’s
relationship is a “material relationship” that would impair the director’s ability to exercise
independent judgement as a member of the Board.

Any determination of director independence notwithstanding the existence of a potential material
relationship due to exceeding the threshold in Section 4, will be disclosed in the Company’s -
proxy statement, as required by the:NYSE rules.

Members of the Audit Committee must satisfy the enhanced “independence” criteria under
applicable rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the New York Stock Exchange
from time to time. In particular, the following enhanced “independence” qualifying criteria shall
apply with respect to directors selected for service on the Audit Committee:

 Director may not have accepted any direct or indirect consulting, advisory or other
compensatory fee from the Company other than amounts received as compensation for
membership on the Board or Board committees, pension or other forms of deterred
compensation for prior service.

« Director may not be an “affiliated person”, i.e. a person who directly or indirectly controls, is
controlled by or is under common control with, the Company (typically, one who is an
executive officer or who owns more than 10% of the Company's securities is considered an
“affiliated person”).
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters
AAR CORP.

1100 North Wood Dale Road
Wood Dale, linois 60101
Telephone: 630-227-2000
Facsimile: 630-227-2019
www.aarcorp.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
Providence, Rhode [sland

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held
at 9:00 a.m. (CDST) on Wednesday, October 17,
2007, at AAR Corporate Headquarters, 1100 North
Wood Dale Road, Wood Dale, Illinois 60191.

The Investor Service Program

AAR CORP. provides its stockholders the opportunity
10 purchase additional shares of common stock

of the Company by awiomatic reinvestment of

dividends and optional additional investments.
Stockholders may obtain information regarding
this plan by contacting the Secretary, AAR CORP,,
1100 North Wood Dale Road, Wood Dale,

[Hlinois 60191,

Special Counsel
Schiff Hardin LLLLP
Chicagoa, lllinois

Ticker Symbol
AAR stock is traded on the New York and
Chicago Stock Exchanges. Ticker symbol AIR.
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